
A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

2
1

T
Ü

V
 N

O
R

D
 A

G

FROM VISION 
TO VALUE

A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



T Ü V  N O R D  G R O U P   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T

+ 103.7

K E Y F IN A N C I A L R AT I O S IN  2 0 2 1

In € million

R E V E N U E T R E N D S

In € million

T R E N D IN W O R K F O R C E N U M B E R S

 International  Domestic  Total

D I S T R IB U T I O N O F R E V E N U E B Y  

B U S IN E S S U NI T

in %

* before special items

 2021 2020

EBIT * 73.1 47.8

EBT 73.3 31.9

Balance sheet total 1,102.4 1,045.6

Net financial position 121.1 82.6

Pension provision 500.4 531.4

3.8  
Aerospace

0.2  
Holding / Services

2.3  
IT

8.5
Engineering 
and Natural 

Resources

5.8 
Training

34.7 
Mobility

44.7  
Industrial 
Services

The TÜV NORD GROUP in figures

2019 2020 2021

11,959
11,658

11,276

3,8503,668
3,387

8,1097,9907,889

2019 2020 2021

1,265.6

1,369.3

1,282.4



The motivated employees of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP contribute 

new ideas every day, work close-
ly together to create new con-
cepts and transform the enor-
mous pool of knowledge to be 
found within the Group safely 
and responsibly into specific, 

real-world applications. This is 
one of the great strengths of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP: the power to 

turn visions into real benefits that 
will stand the test of time. 
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We are currently all deeply affected by the military on-
slaught on a sovereign European state. An onslaught that is 
causing great suffering and whose effects will be felt across 
the world for a long time to come. The employees of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP have committed themselves unhesitatingly 
to providing humanitarian aid in the crisis zone and securing 
Germany’s energy supply. In our day-to-day work in more 
than 100 countries, we are actively committed to the cause 
of peaceful, democratic and respectful coexistence between 
people and states and exemplify the values of our diverse and 
multifaceted corporate culture.

The rapid changes in economic and social conditions world-
wide are underscoring the common human need for a safe 
and sustainable world. A particular focus must be on man-
aging the finite resources of our earth, cybersecurity in the 
digital world, the exploitation of outer space and the effects 
of environmental risks on future generations. We in the 
TÜV NORD GROUP and our customers have recognised that the 
state of our planet calls for urgent action.  

The urgently needed changes can only be implemented 
through technological innovations, digitalisation and digital 
connectivity, coupled with resolute and decisive action. New 
mobility, the energy transition, and the protection of the en-
vironment and health are all key pillars of sustainable action. 
Our initial focus is on our own business as we increasingly 
turn to digitally supported remote technologies to provide 
more and more services, which in turn no longer always re-
quire the physical presence of members of staff. Following on 
from our great success with certification audits using remote 
technology in the first year of the pandemic, 2020, in 2021 
we significantly increased the number of remote inspections 
carried out with digital video support in the Industrial Ser-

vices business unit. Other business segments are also turning 
to remote digital technologies: since the beginning of the 
coronavirus pandemic, TÜV NORD Bildung has been organising 
online job fairs at which up to 500 jobseekers at a time can 
present themselves to potential employers in virtual rooms. 

When it comes to energy-efficient conversions and new 
buildings at our sites, building materials that cannot be 
preserved are consistently recycled in line with the principles 
of the circular economy. This applies to the TÜV NORD CAMPUS 
ESSEN for 1,500 employees, which was ceremonially opened 
in autumn 2021, and to our food laboratory in Pune, India. 
There, new solar modules on the roofs are saving about 130 
tons of CO2 per year. We have set ourselves some ambitious 
goals: by the end of this decade, we aim to make our company 
carbon-neutral. The results achieved so far are encouraging. 

Our daily commitment to the safety of people and technol-
ogy and to effective environmental protection once again 
motivated many people to join the TÜV NORD GROUP in 2021. 
The overall number of employees grew to a total of 14,253. At 
which point we would like to offer a warm welcome to all new 
members of the TÜV NORD family worldwide! 

The demands on vehicle and IT inspection engineers posed by 
the requirements of the mobility of the future and, in particu-
lar, automated driving increased once again in 2021. In the 
future, vehicle manufacturers will have to provide evidence of 
a cybersecurity and a software update management system if 
they wish to be granted type approval. TÜV NORD Mobilität has 
been accredited for these tasks and is involved in the practical 
Berlin-based project for autonomous driving which goes by the 
name of BeIntelli and whose aim is to illustrate the imple-
mentation of complex technologies in “smart” vehicles and 

Dear clients and partners, 
dear colleagues,
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infrastructures. For the international umbrella organisation for 
the automotive sector, the FIA, TÜViT has inve stigated ways in 
which a highly secure cybersecurity architecture can be put in 
place in the vehicles of the future to ensure protection against 
cyberattacks when in self-driving mode.

Hydrogen will play a decisive role in the mobility and in-
dustry of the future. Three business units have been paying 
highly specialised attention to this technology for years. 
To allow them to offer integrated customer solutions from 
a single source as quickly as possible, the strengths of the 
individual specialist areas have been pooled in a cross- 
divisional HydroHub. The objectives of this new HydroHub 
are to offer expert advice for tested hydrogen production 
alongside confidence-building, compatible hydrogen infra-
structures and support for ambitious lighthouse projects 
involving hydrogen, all from a single source. We are also 
participating in the implementation of a pan-European 
hydrogen certification system, which the new German 
government intends to put in place domestically. You can 
read more about the hydrogen-related activities of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP in this annual report.

One priority of the Group’s activities is the international ex-
pansion of our market presence in the area of testing, inspec-
tion and certification (TIC). ALTER TECHNOLOGY is the first and, 
so far, only Notified Body in Europe to be allowed to certify 
unmanned aerial vehicles. Two sites in Croatia developed into 
customer-oriented hubs for the entire Balkan region in 2021. 
Under the TÜV NORD ADRIATIC label, branches have already 
opened in Bosnia-Herzegovina and Serbia, with more to follow 
shortly in Slovenia and the Croatian metropolis of Split. In  
Qatar, TÜV NORD Gulf has commenced operations for TIC ser-
vices throughout the region. 

Overall, the international units made a more significant con-
tribution to the business success of the TÜV NORD GROUP in 
2021 than ever before. In a year that was once again marked 
by severe travel and contact restrictions due to the corona-
virus pandemic, the TÜV NORD GROUP was able to improve its 
relevant key financial ratios and achieve the highest revenue 
in its history, at 1.37 billion euro. Operating profit before 
special items (EBIT) rose by 52.9 percent year on year. On 
behalf of the Board of Management and the Group Executive 
Committee, I would like to thank all our employees for their 
outstanding performance. My heartfelt thanks also go out to 
our customers and suppliers for the trust they have shown 
in us and to our shareholders and the supervisory bodies and 
staff councils. 

I wish every one of you the best of health and success in 
2022; may we all live and work together in peace. 

Kind regards,

Dr. Dirk Stenkamp
Chairman of the Board of Management 
TÜV NORD AG 
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The Group Executive Committee

“ With our diversity, the courage to 
change and a culture of trust, we 
will continue to meet the require-
ments of our customers in the  
future. Our employees are contri - 
bu ting to the company’s success 
with their commitment and skills.”   
D R .  A S T R I D  P E T E R S E N ,  
Chief Human Resources Officer

“ Wherever artificial intelligence 
features prominently in matters  
of security or areas of our personal 
life, it must be tested for trans-
parency and controllability. To 
this end, we’re developing test  
procedures and calling for risk-
based controls.” 
 
D R .  D I R K  S T E N K A M P,  
Chairman of the Board of Management

“ We’re investing in new labora-
tories, measurement and test-
ing technology and digital  
educational offers, as well as 
modern workplaces. This is 
how we’re shaping our future 
and moti va ting employees to 
get involved in our knowledge 
company.”   
J Ü R G E N  H I M M E L S B A C H ,  
Chief Financial Officer

“ Automated driving has a lot of  
dimensions. We’re dealing with 
complex sensors and compo-
nents that talk to each other. 
With the periodic vehicle inspec-
tions adapter, we can detect er-
rors in all safety-relevant driver 
assistance systems.”   
H A R T M U T  A B E L N ,  
Mobility business unit

“ Hydrogen is playing an increasing-
ly important role in the creation of 
a CO

2
-free and sustainable energy 

system. We’re already deploying 
our experience and expertise to 
support the use of green electrici-
ty in industry, mobility and the 
building sector and will continue 
to do so in the future.”  
 
D R .  R A L F  J U N G ,  
Industrial Services business unit
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“ Just a few years ago, we wouldn’t 
have been able to detect the 
smallest displacements in the 
ground. In the wake of the flood 
disaster, we’re now using our 
Safeguard geomonitoring system 
on site in vulnerable areas so 
that we can provide early warn-
ing of new dangers.” 
 
D R .  M A I K  T I E D E M A N N ,  
Engineering and Natural Resources business unit

“ Hackers and advances in quantum 
technology are a threat to securi-
ty on the Internet. Post-quantum 
cryptography is already providing 
protection against cyberattacks 
and will keep us safe from future 
attacks by quantum computers. 
We want the digital infrastructure

to be secure at all times.” 
 
D I R K  K R E T Z S C H M A R ,  
IT business unit

“ The shortage of skilled workers 
has spread to a lot of industries. 
With our vocational training of-
fers, we’re helping companies to 
maintain their skills and acquire 
know l edge. This applies in parti-
cular to nursing specialists.”   
A X E L  D R E C K S C H M I D T,  
Training business unit

“ Unmanned aerial vehicles are being 
used more and more frequently to 
improve safety, sustainability and 
other applications. We’ve become 
the first company in Europe to be 
granted accreditation for the 
confor mity assessment of UAVs and 
are making them even safer.”   
L U I S  G Ó M E Z ,  
Aerospace business unit

05



T Ü V  N O R D  G R O U P   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T

Report of the Supervisory Board

At the meeting of 7 December, the budget for 2022 was dis-
cussed and approved by the Supervisory Board. The beginning 
of 2022 also saw two extraordinary meetings of the Supervisory 
Board (on 5 and 18 January), at which a major project of the  
subsidiary DMT GmbH & Co. KG was discussed with consent 
being duly granted at the meeting of 18 January. 

The Board of Management was present at the meetings of the 
Supervisory Board, recusing itself only for deliberations on the 
subject of Board remuneration and other Board-related matters. 

In order to carry out its tasks and prepare its deliberations and 
decisions, the Supervisory Board set up two committees which 
effectively support the work of the plenum.

The presidium / HR committee held three meetings in the financial 
year, and additional telephone consultations were held as  
required. The discussions focused primarily on the preparation 
of the plenary sessions and of the HR and remuneration de-
cisions to be made by the Supervisory Board. Where necessary, 
the Supervisory Board was furnished with recommendations for 
decision-making 

In 2021, the Finance Committee met four times in advance of 
the Supervisory Board meetings and paid particular attention 
to the annual financial statement, earnings trends, risk and op-
portunities management and interest rate trends, particularly in 
respect of pension obligations. Due to the ongoing pandemic, the 
impact of coronavirus on business and liquidity trends was also 
closely monitored. In its meeting of 30 November, the Finance 
Committee addressed the plans for the 2022 fiscal year. At each 
Supervisory Board meeting, the Chairman of the Finance Com-
mittee reported on the important findings from the deliberations 
of the Finance Committee leading up to the meetings.

The auditors appointed by the General Meeting of 23 March 
2021, BDO AG from Essen, audited the annual financial state-
ments of the TÜV NORD AG and the consolidated financial state-
ments, including the associated reports on the situation of the 
company and the Group, published by the Board of Management 
on 31 December 2021. The auditors issued an audit opinion that 
was free of any reservations. The auditors noted that the Board 
of Management had established an appropriate information 
and monitoring system whose design and operation rendered it 
suitable for anticipating developments that might pose a risk to 
the continued existence of the company.

In 2021 reporting period, the Supervisory Board carried out the 
tasks incumbent upon it according to the law and the articles of 
association. It closely followed and supported the Board of Man-
agement in its leadership of the company, carefully monitoring 
its activities and offering advice. The Supervisory Board is fully 
confident in the lawfulness, regularity and fitness for purpose of 
the company’s management. 

Due to social distancing requirements and travel restrictions, 
videoconferencing systems were used in part for the execution 
of all the meetings of the Supervisory Board and its committees. 
Face-to-face sessions were held under strict hygiene and social 
distancing conditions.

The Supervisory Board ensured that it was regularly kept 
informed, both verbally and in writing, of the position of the 
Group and the business trends within it. In 2021, four regular 
scheduled meetings of the Supervisory Board took place on 23 
March, 15 June, 21 September and 7 December, at which the 
Board of Management reported in detail on the current situation 
of the Group and the major Group companies. 

The Board of Management also delivered assessments of the 
opportunities and risks that might present themselves as the 
year goes on and of the current financial and asset status of 
the Group. As in the previous year, very close attention was 
paid to the effects of the pandemic on the Group. In this way, 
the Supervisory Board was kept abreast of corporate policy 
intentions, corporate planning and ongoing business transac-
tions. Particular attention was paid to economic development 
under the influence of the coronavirus pandemic. Outside the 
meetings, the Chairman of the Supervisory Board was also kept 
regularly informed of current issues by the Chairman of the 
Board of Management. 

At its meeting on 23 March, the Supervisory Board approved a 
real estate acquisition in the immediate vicinity of the company 
premises in Hamburg. 

An update on the implementation of the strategy was presented 
at the September meeting. This meeting was held in the new 
central building on the Essen campus “Am Technologiepark”, 
which had been occupied a few days earlier. At this meeting, the 
Supervisory Board also gave its consent to the construction of a 
new building at the Dortmund site, combined with the merger of 
the former Hagen and Dortmund sites. 
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The financial statement documents and the audit reports for 
the 2021 fiscal year were discussed at length in the meeting of 
the Finance Committee on 22 March 2022 and the Supervisory 
Board meeting of 29 March 2022. The Board of Management 
and the auditors were present at the deliberations on the annual 
and consolidated financial statements. The auditors reported on 
the main results of their audit and their findings concerning the 
internal control system and risk management. They also made 
themselves available to the Supervisory Board should the latter 
require additional information. 

On the basis of its own audit of the annual and consolidated 
financial statements and the management reports and based on 
the report and the recommendation of the Finance Committee, 
the Supervisory Board felt able to concur with the auditors’ 
conclusions. No objections were raised. The Supervisory Board 
approved both the annual and the consolidated financial state-
ments. 

Mr. Reinhold Rüther stepped down from the Supervisory Board 
on 30 June 2021. The General Meeting appointed Mr. Fabian 
Fechner as Mr. Rüther’s successor on the Supervisory Board 
for the remainder of the latter’s term. Ms. Elisabeth Terodde 
stepped down from the Supervisory Board on 31 August 2021. 
She was succeeded by Ms. Svenja Schroerschwarz as an elected 

substitute member. The Chairman of the Supervisory Board 
acknowledged Ms. Terodde’s and Mr. Rüther’s dedicated work 
on the Supervisory Board and thanked them on behalf of the 
committee for their constructive cooperation.

At the end of 30 June 2021, Prof. Karl Friedrich Jakob resigned 
as Chairman of the Supervisory Board. He will continue to be a 
full member of the Board. The Supervisory Board appointed  
Mr. Thomas Biedermann as the new chair. 

In connection with the abovementioned changes in the Super-
visory Board, there were also two changes in the Finance Com-
mittee: Ms. Tuesday Porter and Mr. Fabian Fechner were elected 
as new members of the Finance Committee at the September 
meeting of the Supervisory Board, succeeding Ms. Terodde and 
Mr. Biedermann. 

At the beginning of 2021, Labour Director Dr. Astrid Petersen as-
sumed responsibility for Human Resources in the Board of Man-
agement. The Supervisory Board resolved on the reappointment 
of Dr. Dirk Stenkamp as Chairman of the Board of Management 
until 31 December 2027. 

The Supervisory Board would like to thank all the Group’s 
employees worldwide, the company management boards, the 
Board of Management, the Group Executive Committee and 
the employee representations for their contribution and their 
successful and energetic commitment in 2021, a year in which 
the pandemic once again posed some major challenges.

The Supervisory Board

Thomas Biedermann
Chairman

Hanover, March 2022
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At home in 50 countries

and active in 100

Employees worldwide

Sales in € million.

50

100

> 14.000

1,369.3

In brief 

As a recognised technology service provider, we are the global byword for security and trust, 
neutrality and quality. At the same time, we have the digital future fi rmly in mind. Independent 
engineers and IT security professionals off er excellent solutions for safety, security and quality 
and in outstanding competitive position. At home in 50 countries and active in over 100, our 
workforce of more than 14,000 employees supports companies in the exercise of their responsi-
bility for people, technology and the environment. We have accompanied every industrial revo-
lution and participated in the development of globally recognised safety standards – and we are 
now also laying our part in making the world safe and secure in the digitally networked age.
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We have been working to protect people 
and the environment for over 150 years. 
Thanks to our services, this vision was 
quickly transformed into a real and 
direct contribution to the success of our 
customers and to society at large.
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Always think ahead. That is our ambi-
tion. We act early to pave the way for 
new technologies that were conceived 
yesterday and are needed today. The 
same applies to digitalisation. With our 
expert knowledge, we are helping to 
drive the digital transformation.
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Visions can only create a positive value 
for society if people from different 
 backgrounds pull together. The 
TÜV NORD GROUP needs diversity. 
The world needs diversity.
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WHEN A 
S TICKER 
IS A SAFET Y 
THRE AT

With the increasingly widespread use of artifi cial intelligence (AI), 
both the opportunities and the risks of its use in technical applica-
tions are growing. The TÜV NORD GROUP has recognised this 
potential and, as a pioneer in the market, is already off ering AI 
testing services.

The voice assistant built into our smartphones immediately answers that pressing question, 
and that technical text in another language is translated in seconds. Artificial intelligence 
is no longer a distant vision: it has long since found its way into our everyday lives. 
Attempts to transfer human learning and thinking to computers with the help of data and 
software and to allow technology solve problems independently are proving successful 
on an ever larger scale. Transport vehicles are trundling independently through factory 
halls, and machines can detect quality defects with the aid of image recognition software. 
Self-driving vehicles are likely to become a fixture of life in towns and cities in the near 
future. More and more companies around the world are working to refine all the new 
convenient functions using the right training data for machine learning.

People want secure AI applications 
When it comes to the future of AI, the fear often arises that beings like the Terminator 
could take control. While this will probably remain in the realm of science fiction, there 
are some very real risks that companies need to prepare for. As the use of AI spreads ever 
more widely, the risks posed by faulty AI systems, data misuse or cyberattacks will also 

How should a political AI strategy be designed? 
This was the topic discussed by representatives 
from politics and business at the AI Conference of 
the TÜV-Verband on 27 October 2021 in Berlin.
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“Only through trust 
in AI can markets and products

develop into AI investments.”

At the AI Conference, Dr. Dirk Stenkamp 
explains why regulations are the basis for 
the functional and ethical security of AI.

D R .  D I R K  S T E N K A M P

increase. Dr. Dirk Stenkamp, Chairman of the Board of Management of TÜV NORD AG and 
acting President of the TÜV-Verband (TÜV association), sees artificial intelligence as being 
at a turning point: “We’re now seeing the move from abstract ideas to specific applications. 
Only through trust in AI can markets and products develop into AI investments,” explained 
Dr. Stenkamp at the TÜV AI Conference in October 2021 in Berlin. 

This point is also underlined by a representative study by the TÜV-Verband on the safety of 
artificial intelligence: 78 percent of people in Germany would like to see laws and regulations 
put in place to regulate AI. 85 percent believe that AI products should not be launched onto 
the market until their safety has been independently verified. 

Innovation award for new AI testing method
This is exactly where the TÜV NORD GROUP comes in, with the work of TÜV Informa-
tionstechnik (TÜViT). As an independent testing service provider for IT security, TÜViT 
is an international leader and represents the entire IT business unit, one of six in the 
TÜV NORD GROUP. Driven by its vision of trustworthy and secure AI, the TÜViT team 
in Essen has been focusing on innovation since 2018, explains Dr. Henning Kerstan, 
Senior IT Security Expert at TÜViT. “From the very beginning, we’ve asked ourselves 
this ques tion: What do we need if we want to enable us to test AI applications? What 
would attackers do?”

In specific terms, Dr. Kerstan’s team is working on a testing tool for AI and a methodical 
evaluation scheme based on that tool to analyse the security of AI applications. For this 
work, Dr. Kerstan and AI specialists Vasilios Danos and Thora Markert were honoured with 
the Innovation Award at the DIGITAL Leadership Convention of the TÜV NORD GROUP in 
June 2021. For example, TÜViT's own testing tool, which was developed on the initiative 
of Vasilios Danos, uses special tests to measure the robustness of AI – after all, it is this 
very quality that will determine whether and how well an AI algorithm can withstand 
hacker attacks or natural disruptions such as weather events. Based on these test results, 
which are embedded in the corresponding evaluation scheme, it is possible for the experts 
to make a structured statement on the security properties of an AI system.

The basis for AI applications is large amounts of data. An essential characteristic of AI, 
or, more precisely, of the machine learning sub-area, is the recognition of patterns in such 
data. This is what the AI system learns in the training phase: during supervised learning, 
images of humans and animals are shown to an AI. The AI can then recognise a cat, for 
example. However, as Vasilios Danos found out in the case of a smart surveillance camera, 
if it is tattooed on the arm of a thief, an image of a cat becomes a disruptive factor in a 
system that is supposed to use image recognition to provide protection against intrud-
ers. If such pictures have not already been encountered in training, the thief with the 
cat picture might be classified overall as a “cat” and, consequently, not trigger an alarm. 
While such obvious mistakes are still easy to understand, “even the smallest changes 
that are barely perceptible to the human eye can lead to a mistaken decision and thus to 
serious errors,” says Dr. Henning Kerstan. This fundamental weakness in the robustness 

AI I N  M O B I L I T Y 

More security for artifi cial intelli-

gence (AI) in road traffi  c: the Federal 

Offi  ce for Information Security (BSI) 

and the technology company ZF 

Friedrichshafen AG have launched a 

joint project to investigate how the IT 

security of AI systems in cars can be 

tested according to generally accepted 

criteria. TÜV Informationstechnik 

(TÜViT), the TÜV NORD GROUP com-

pany specialising in IT security, is also 

involved as a project partner.

The fi ndings from the project will be 

used in the medium-term development 

of test criteria for AI systems in the 

form of a modular technical guideline. 

This may infl uence the future devel-

opment of security tests for cars and 

international standardisation eff orts.
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D R .  D I R K  S T E N K A M P
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of machine learning is the reason why it needs to be tested. Otherwise, a small sticker 
can suddenly turn a stop sign at a busy junction into a right of way sign. “AI systems 
can fail in situations that we humans perceive as humdrum.” This is why the extent to 
which an application can withstand such manipulations needs to be carefully examined.  

Test procedures are becoming more fluid
TÜViT’s collective expertise is creating a genuine competitive advantage for the 
TÜV NORD GROUP in the increasingly attractive market for testing and certification pro-
viders: the Group is already working with some pioneering companies, for example from 
the automotive sector, thereby already offering real-world added value derived from its 
vision. “We’re helping manufacturers to enhance and objectively demonstrate the security 
of their AI technologies,” says Dr. Kerstan. “We’re already offering testing services that 
future regulation is going to make mandatory as part of a holistic system testing process.”

When testing and measuring the various AI applications, although the TÜViT specialists 
can draw on their wealth of methodological experience as inspectors they also have to 
take into account completely new testing tools and analytical methods. A great deal of 
expertise is also required in the application and evaluation of the test. “It isn’t just a 
matter of ticking a box once you’ve used a measuring device,” reports Dr. Kerstan. Since 
the procedures are also constantly evolving and every use case is different, dynamic pro-
cedures will also be required in the future with regard to testing and certification work. 
“We’re going to have to adopt a completely new mindset: there’s no longer a quality seal 
for the status quo; instead, the testing methods are becoming more fluid.”

Putting people first
These developments also require a political response. At the European level, the findings 
of the AI White Paper are being used in the specific design of a regulation; the work in 
Germany is to continue the government’s AI strategy. With the newly founded TÜV AI 
Lab, the TÜV-Verband is actively involved in the debate on the technical and regulatory 
requirements for AI. In the development laboratory jointly operated by the TÜV compa-
nies, the idea is to follow and support the development of standards for the testing of 
safety-critical AI applications. “The TÜV AI Lab is going to make an important contribution 
to making AI safer and allowing its use in safety-critical areas,” says Dr. Dirk Stenkamp. 
These include, for example, automated vehicles, assistance systems in medicine, and 
mobile robots. Moreover, AI systems have to be able to meet certain requirements when 
fundamental rights such as privacy or equal treatment are at risk. “With the development 
of suitable testing methods, we’re supporting the regulation of AI which the majority of 
people want and providing practical examples of its use,” says Dr. Stenkamp. 

AI is a game changer which has left the policymakers floundering in its wake – and this 
is why the regulatory framework needs the kind of elasticity called for by the experts at 
the Berlin TÜV AI Conference in October. Dr. Dirk Stenkamp also warned against focusing 
too much on risk in the evaluation of AI. Intelligently selected training data can reduce 
latent discrimination, for example when it comes to granting loans. And it will also be 
virtually impossible to fend off cyberattacks without the support of artificial intelligence. 
“Regulation should therefore be as open to technological developments as possible,” Dr. 
Dirk Stenkamp demands. “AI should be functionally secure and respect civil rights. We 
need to put people first here too.”

“We’re helping
manufacturers to

enhance and 
objectively 

demonstrate the
security of their AI

technologies.”
D R .  H E N N I N G  K E R S TA N

With the newly founded TÜV AI Lab, the 
TÜV-Verband has become actively involved 

in the debate on the technical and 
regulatory requirements for AI and, with 
the idea of an AI Testing Hub as a central 

national point of contact for artifi cial 
intelligence, is acting as a driving force.

. 
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The world needs visions. Above 
all, however, it needs specifi c 
actions that will allow the value 
of those visions to unfold. This is 
why the TÜV NORD GROUP has 
been working for some time to 
promote the safe and sustainable 
use of new technologies and 
developments for its customers 
and society as a whole. Seven 
examples show what this means 
in practice.

22

T Ü V  N O R D  G R O U P   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T



The world needs visions. Above 
all, however, it needs specifi c 
actions that will allow the value 
of those visions to unfold. This is 
why the TÜV NORD GROUP has 
been working for some time to 
promote the safe and sustainable 
use of new technologies and 
developments for its customers 
and society as a whole. Seven 
examples show what this means 
in practice.

23

M
A

G
A

Z
IN

E



Speedy Assistance

This service from DMT has provided some 
crucial support. July 2021: in the German 
Rhein-Erft district, which has been severely 
affected by flooding, reliable facts are in 
demand. Several houses which have been 
poised on the edge of a scarp have collapsed. 
Are more at risk of following suit? It’s in such 
perilous situations that the DMT SAFEGUARD 
monitoring platform is a reliable helper: it 
measures even the smallest movements or 
vibrations and uses the collected data to 
evaluate risks in the subsoil. “We were quick-
ly on site. Providing real help at very short 
notice is something to be proud of,” says 
Dr. Karsten Zimmermann. The geomonitoring 
expert is part of a very experienced team at 
DMT, which brings together experts from 
various disciplines who can respond flexibly 
to a wide variety of needs.

Last summer’s fl ood disaster hit large parts 
of Germany's North Rhine-Westphalia and 
Rhineland-Palatinate very hard. This made 
it all the more important to stick to routines 
and act professionally. When DMT is asked for 
risk assessments in mining, building and civil 
engineering or environmental monitoring, its 
clients are usually interested in plannable safety 
concepts. But fast and safe solutions are also re-
quired in the event of sudden natural disasters 
such as fl oods or landslides triggered by heavy 
rain. DMT experts joined a hastily convened 
crisis team in the Rhein-Erft district, which 
fi rst met digitally and then on site. Whenever 
it met, the team was always confronted with 
the same urgent question: when would it be 
safe for residents, tradespeople and helpers 
to return to certain buildings?

The answer to this question was supplied by 
SAFEGUARD, a monitoring system based on 
innovative sensors. Ground movements, vi-
brations, object deformations and seismicity 
are constantly monitored and analysed. Data 
can be evaluated and shared very quickly 
and used by the experts to prepare their risk 
assessment. This benefits, for example, first 
responders such as THW, Germany’s disaster 
response organisation, and the fire brigade, 
alongside the geological service and official 
bodies, construction experts and, in certain 
cases, the general public.

DMT has been continuously refining SAFE-

GUARD for more than a decade. This proven 
monitoring procedure collates data centrally 
and securely, uses Web View to make them 
visible and can trigger alarms. In the Rhein-
Erft district, SAFEGUARD succeeded in giving 
people not only a sense of security, but also 
relief and new hope.

Benefiting underground hazard assessments: DMT’s 
geomonitoring offers disaster relief in flood areas

D R .  K A R S T E N  Z I M M E R M A N N

DMT, Civil & Mining Engineering Business Segment
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DMT, Civil & Mining Engineering Business Segment
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The Mobility of 
Tomorrow

One of hydrogen’s key properties is that it 
can combine with almost any other element. 
In this case, hydrogen is also connecting TÜV 
NORD China with Chinese enterprise REFIRE, 
a leading global provider of hydrogen fuel 
cell technology. “We often work with leading 
companies in many fields,” says Rilian Zhu, 
Operations Director at TÜV NORD China Mo-
bility. “Our customers appreciate our breadth 
of expertise and the successes we’ve accumu-
lated from past projects.” And REFIRE is no 
exception: Mr. Zhu and his team have used 
their expert knowledge in the field of hydrogen 
propulsion systems to support REFIRE in the 
testing and certification of the PRISMA VI 
fuel cell system. Fuel cells in PRISMA VI split 
hydrogen atoms to generate emissions-free 
energy which is suitable for use, for instance, 
in the propulsion systems of lorries and buses.

For PRISMA VI fuel cell systems to be licensed 
for sale on the European market, however, 
they need a European EMC certificate. It’s for 
this reason that TÜV NORD China has been 
supporting the company in the preliminary 
stages of its certification process with rigorous 
audits and evaluations. ECE Regulation No. 10 
governs the electromagnetic compatibility of 
vehicles and their components. This means 
that electronic equipment or systems must 
be able to function perfectly in their environ-
ments without generating impermissible dis-
ruptive electromagnetic fields in the process. 
Certification by a recognised and experienced 
testing service provider such as TÜV NORD 
China is allowing REFIRE to access European 
markets while also making history in a small 
but significant way: Prisma VI is the first fuel 
cell system from China to have been awarded 
this certification. 

TÜV NORD China und REFIRE are set to con-
tinue their collaboration. Mr. Zhu is optimistic: 
“In the context of international collaboration, 
REFIRE will be able to move its vision of intro-
ducing of hydrogen-powered mobility onto the 
European market one step closer to reality.” 
Further projects are already in the starting 
blocks: TÜV NORD China plans to cooperate 
with other leading companies from various 
industries and aims to support its customers, 
for example, in the development of fuel-cell 
cars and ammonia fuel cells.

Things are currently looking good for the fu-
ture of hydrogen technology. Thanks to their 
promise of pollution-free energy generation, 
ever closer attention is being paid to fuel cells. 
“Deriving energy from hydrogen is still very 
expensive, but we’re confident that this type 
of fuel will unleash a revolution. This is being 
confirmed by developments in the sector, 
such as REFIRE’s PRISMA VI,” Mr. Zhu says.

Benefiting environmentally friendly mobility: certification of 
fuel cell technology by TÜV NORD China

R I L I A N  Z H U

TÜV NORD China Mobility, Operations Director
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Sustainable 
Quality

In the age of climate change, high quality food 
which has been sustainably produced is in de-
mand. To ensure that these twin requirements 
can be met is the task of the Controllo e Cer-
tificazione (CCPB) organic certification body, 
headquartered in Bologna, Italy. The compa-
ny’s support for the TÜV NORD GROUP’s food 
business segment is making a big difference, 
particularly when it comes to the interaction 
with other certification companies and food 
laboratories. Lorenzo Pileri, CCPB’s Manag-
ing Director, is sure of one thing: “The best 
way to guarantee sustainability is through 
organic production. The organic dimension 
brings together important pillars such as 
environmental protection, biodiversity and 
ethical and social considerations.” This is a 
view shared by the European Union, which 
has placed a sustainable food system at the 
heart of its Green Deal. According to regula-
tions first introduced in 1992, products may 
only be declared “organic” in the EU if an 
independent monitoring body has approved 
them as such, and CCPB is one such organi-
sation. Although CCPB is primarily focused 
on the organic issue, it has developed fur-
ther expertise over the years and now offers 
over 80 certification services. These include 
GLOBALGAP, BRC and IFS to improve food 
safety, certifications for traceability systems 
in the agri-food sector such as ISO 22005 and 
environmental product declarations (EPDs). 
With the GOTS certification for sustainable 
textiles and organic production certification 
in the cosmetics industry, CCPB is also active 
in industries outside the food sector. 

CCPB staff conduct audits to assess whether 
customers are complying with all the neces-
sary regulations. Once the audits have been 

successfully completed and the documents 
verified, CCPB issues the organic production 
certificate. “The process leading up to organic 
certification has a lot of different elements,” 
says Mr. Pileri. “Comprehensive verification 
and transparent tests are the only way to 
prove the high quality of the products and 
the sustainability of their cultivation” – and 
this applies all over the world. The EU has 
concluded agreements under which certi-
fied organic products, such as those from 
the CCPB, can be declared organic and sold 
worldwide. “CCPB is recognised as an organic 
certification body in over 50 countries,” Mr. 
Pileri explains. 

The EU’s line is clear: products in all industries 
need to become more sustainable. Organic 
farming can help here, but it is not only in 
agriculture that organic production is a proven 
method of achieving this objective. “There 
are now other certifications which, when 
combined with organic certificates, are of 
real use in different industries and areas. This 
is why CCPB offers a whole range of related 
certifications with a global perspective,” ex-
plains Mr. Pileri. All CCPB certifications have 
one common aim: to improve sustainability.

Benefiting sustainable food and products: 
organic certification from Italy

L O R E N Z O  P I L E R I 

Managing Director, CCPB
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plains Mr. Pileri. All CCPB certifications have 
one common aim: to improve sustainability.

Benefiting sustainable food and products: 
organic certification from Italy

L O R E N Z O  P I L E R I 

Managing Director, CCPB

29

M
A

G
A

Z
IN

E



One Step Ahead

For many computer experts, 2019 marked the 
start of a new era for IT: this was the year in 
which the Internet giant Google announced 
that it had put one of the world’s first quantum 
computers into operation. Quantum comput-
ers do not function like normal computers 
with bits and bytes, but follow the complex 
laws of quantum mechanics. This gives them 
access to hitherto inconceivable computing 
power.

TÜViT is keeping a close eye on the progress 
of quantum computing technology. For the 
supercomputers of the future, data encryption 
methods which are currently considered ab-
solutely secure will no longer be an obstacle. 
Although quantum computers will not come 
onto the market for a further 10 to 30 years 
and even then only as exotic rarities, today’s 
cryptography needs to be brought up to the 
standard of tomorrow as quickly as possible to 
ensure that it will remain secure in tomorrow’s 
world. After all, many data and products have 
very long life cycles, and IT systems need to 
be protected from cyberattacks even in the 
age of quantum computers. “The good news is 
that what we call post-quantum cryptography 
already offers protection against attacks by 
both quantum and conventional computers. 
It can also be used to effectively protect 
conventional binary computers,” explains 
Lucie Kogelheide, Information Technology 
Security Consultant at TÜViT. The “post” tag is 
important here. This is because, unlike quan-
tum cryptography, this method also protects 
conventional computers. “So you don’t need 
a quantum computer to use post-quantum 

cryptography,” says Ms. Kogelheide pithily. As 
an IT security expert, she examines hardware 
in the laboratory with regard to the security of 
its encryption methods and advises customers 
on how to effectively protect their computer 
systems with suitable cryptography. 

The consulting and testing work which TÜViT 
is conducting in tandem with the development 
of the technology is indispensable, especially 
when it comes to converting conventional 
encryption to post-quantum cryptography. 
Unlike today, these procedures will not offer 
just one standard for all systems and appli-
cations. This means that users will need to 
select the right algorithm for their application. 
Added to this is the issue of protection against 
attacks by conventional computers, which 
will of course still need to be maintained. 
“What this means is that the demands on 
cryptography will continue to grow, as will 
the need to select the right algorithm and get 
the right advice in this area,” Ms. Kogelheide 
says, summing up the task ahead. 

Benefiting data encryption: protecting computers from 
cyberattacks using post-quantum cryptography

L U C I E  KO G E L H E I D E

TÜViT, IT Security Hardware Evaluation
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L U C I E  KO G E L H E I D E
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Certified Flights

Benefiting flying safety: unmanned aerial vehicle 
certification from Spain

The employees of ALTER TECHNOLOGY (ATN) 
have every reason to celebrate. The Entidad 
Nacional de Acreditación (ENAC) has awarded 
them a specific accreditation, as confirmed 
by the Agencia Estatal de Seguridad Aérea 
(AESA): This marks the first time that a Euro-
pean company has been authorised according 
to EU regulation 2019/945 as a Notified Body 
for the conformity assessment of unmanned 
aerial vehicles (UAV). Behind the scenes of 
any accreditation is always a long process 
and hard work. As Julián Gallego, Testing and 
Certification Manager at ATN, recalls: “We 
started the accreditation process in 2020. 
We’d been dealing with this area long before 
then, in that we’d been working on our internal 
processes and procedures.”

Not everything that can fly is actually allowed 
to do so. Since UAVs fly at an altitude of 
no more than 120 metres, much lower than 
aircraft, there is more risk involved for peo-
ple on the ground below. It’s for this reason 
that, since 2021, UAVs have been required to 
have a CE mark and a UAS class identification 
label, the guidelines for which are set out in 
Directive EU 2019/945. The UAV classes from 
C0 to C6 determine the minimum distance 
which these unmanned aerial vehicles must 
keep from uninvolved third parties and resi-
dential, commercial or industrial areas when 
in flight. UAVs in classes C0 to C4 belong to 
the “open” category, meaning that pilots don’t 
need a license or permit to fly them. In other 
words, there are already rules in place. And 
yet, it isn’t always clear which UAVs belong 
to which categories. ATN is now authorised to 
classify UAVs in the open categories of classes 

C0 to C4. With the aid of various laboratory 
and flight tests, ATN’s role is to ensure that 
UAVs fulfil the statutory requirements in their 
various classes.

But precisely which criteria must a UAV satis-
fy before it is permitted to take to the skies? 
“There’s no way you can fly a UAV unless 
you have complete mastery of its operating 
system,” says Mr. Gallego pithily. “This is the 
main reason for the development of specific 
safety testing procedures.” In the laboratory, 
specialists test the individual parts for secure 
and safe functionality. Once at the airfield, 
the staff test whether the UAV can be safely 
controlled by a sufficiently skilled remote 
pilot in terms of stability, manoeuvrability 
and performance of the command and con-
trol connection and in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions. The ATN team is 
thus playing its part in ensuring that there 
will be far fewer accidents involving UAVs 
in the future. 

J U L I Á N  G A L L E G O

ALTER TECHNOLOGY, Testing and Certifi cation 
Manager

32

T Ü V   N O R D   G R O U P   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T



Certified Flights

Benefiting flying safety: unmanned aerial vehicle 
certification from Spain

The employees of ALTER TECHNOLOGY (ATN) 
have every reason to celebrate. The Entidad 
Nacional de Acreditación (ENAC) has awarded 
them a specific accreditation, as confirmed 
by the Agencia Estatal de Seguridad Aérea 
(AESA): This marks the first time that a Euro-
pean company has been authorised according 
to EU regulation 2019/945 as a Notified Body 
for the conformity assessment of unmanned 
aerial vehicles (UAV). Behind the scenes of 
any accreditation is always a long process 
and hard work. As Julián Gallego, Testing and 
Certification Manager at ATN, recalls: “We 
started the accreditation process in 2020. 
We’d been dealing with this area long before 
then, in that we’d been working on our internal 
processes and procedures.”

Not everything that can fly is actually allowed 
to do so. Since UAVs fly at an altitude of 
no more than 120 metres, much lower than 
aircraft, there is more risk involved for peo-
ple on the ground below. It’s for this reason 
that, since 2021, UAVs have been required to 
have a CE mark and a UAS class identification 
label, the guidelines for which are set out in 
Directive EU 2019/945. The UAV classes from 
C0 to C6 determine the minimum distance 
which these unmanned aerial vehicles must 
keep from uninvolved third parties and resi-
dential, commercial or industrial areas when 
in flight. UAVs in classes C0 to C4 belong to 
the “open” category, meaning that pilots don’t 
need a license or permit to fly them. In other 
words, there are already rules in place. And 
yet, it isn’t always clear which UAVs belong 
to which categories. ATN is now authorised to 
classify UAVs in the open categories of classes 

C0 to C4. With the aid of various laboratory 
and flight tests, ATN’s role is to ensure that 
UAVs fulfil the statutory requirements in their 
various classes.

But precisely which criteria must a UAV satis-
fy before it is permitted to take to the skies? 
“There’s no way you can fly a UAV unless 
you have complete mastery of its operating 
system,” says Mr. Gallego pithily. “This is the 
main reason for the development of specific 
safety testing procedures.” In the laboratory, 
specialists test the individual parts for secure 
and safe functionality. Once at the airfield, 
the staff test whether the UAV can be safely 
controlled by a sufficiently skilled remote 
pilot in terms of stability, manoeuvrability 
and performance of the command and con-
trol connection and in accordance with the 
manufacturer’s instructions. The ATN team is 
thus playing its part in ensuring that there 
will be far fewer accidents involving UAVs 
in the future. 

J U L I Á N  G A L L E G O

ALTER TECHNOLOGY, Testing and Certifi cation 
Manager

33

M
A

G
A

Z
IN

E



Modern cars are increasingly turning into 
computers on wheels. The use of complex 
software structures will be required for the 
realisation of future vehicle functions for 
automated and connected driving, but even 
everyday tasks such as controlling lighting 
or air conditioning would no longer be con-
ceivable without calculation algorithms. In 
the future, system updates – for example 
to correct errors or expand functions – will 
simply be downloaded to the car via a mobile 
connection or wireless LAN, as is currently the 
case with PCs and smartphones. In the first 
instance, manufacturers are for the most part 
using these “over-the-air” updates primarily 
for comfort and infotainment systems: for 
example, to add a new road map to the satnav. 
“In the future, over-the-air software updates 
will also be carried out for homologation and 
safety-relevant vehicle functions and have to 
be evaluated with regard to possible safety 
risks and effects which have a bearing on 
approval,” explains Heiko Ehrich, Head of 
Department Automotive Electronics at TÜV 
NORD Mobilität. 

As in all areas of road traffic, safety must 
be given the highest priority. With the in-
troduction of UN-R156 in 2021, an approval 
regulation was created to ensure the future 
safety and traceability of software updates 
in vehicles. To comply with the regulation, 
the manufacturer must prove that it has im-
plemented a Software Update Management 
System (SUMS) to evaluate the effects of the 
software adjustments on vehicle functionality 
and ensure that they are implemented in its 
vehicles. 

Only when the SUMS has been certified by 
the approval authority is the manufacturer 
cleared to be granted UN-R156 system ap-
proval for the vehicle type. TÜV NORD Mo-
bilität is supporting the manufacturers as a 
technical service provider in this two-stage 
procedure. “First of all, we audit the manu-
facturer’s SUMS and assess the processes it 
has in place to evaluate, develop and install 
software updates. In the second stage, we 
test the vehicle technology used to install 
the software updates in the control systems,” 
Mr. Ehrich says. Drivers of future vehicles will 
benefit from this new technology, as software 
updates enable keepting safety and security 
of vehicles up to date."

Safe Driving

Benefiting drivers: safe and secure software updates 
for vehicle electronics

H E I KO  E H R I C H 

TÜV NORD Mobilität, Head of Department 
Automotive Electronics 
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Digital Supplement

Benefiting training: modernising teaching at 
TÜV NORD Bildung nursing training schools

Carmen Ndokon Dingong makes no secret 
of how proud she is. The head of the Berg-
kamen nursing school is delighted with the 
way training at TÜV NORD Bildung has been 
modernised. “We’ve become more digital, 
effective and flexible,” says the manager and 
trainer. A new blend of face-to-face and digital 
teaching is having its effect in Bergkamen and 
other places, improving nursing training and 
attracting a great deal of interest. “In 2021, 
we had more applications than ever before,” 
reveals Ms. Ndokon Dingong.

During the coronavirus pandemic, a new aware-
ness of nursing as a profession of fundamen -
tal value has emerged. This increase in appreci-
ation is motivating nursing staff  and boosting 
interest in good nursing training. The new 
teaching concepts from TÜV NORD Bildung are 
paving the way to a form of learning that is 
appropriate for the modern age. It’s a perfect 
time to try out new things. Since 1 January 
2020, one generalised training course has 
brought together the professions of geriatric, 
general and paediatric nursing in Germany 
under one roof. The day-to-day programme of 
learning is correspondingly diverse. Trainee 
nurses learn, for example, about the nuances 
involved in the physical care of babies, adults 
and the elderly. Interactive dolls are used to 
raise awareness of the diff erences. Alongside 
everyday tasks, such as skin and hair care, 
they can also be used to practise particular 
skills. These include simulating elevated blood 
pressure or a situation in which a patient col-
lapses. The reactions of the students to such 
emergencies and various clinical pictures are 
fi lmed and then discussed. In this way, the 
knowledge is securely transmitted.

Nursing training thrives on proximity, interac-
tion and practical experience. To reconcile the 
need to promote good training practice with 
the observance of social distancing as an im-
portant coronavirus measure, TÜV NORD Bil-
dung makes use of technical support. Here’s 
a shining example: at the nursing school in 
Bergkamen, all the trainees receive a free 
tablet PC with a camera and microphone. This 
allows physical distances to be bridged and 
knowledge gaps to be closed. “Our students 
can participate flexibly in online lessons and 
use the tablet to do independent research. 
This makes them more independent and in-
creases personal responsibility,” says Ms. 
Ndokon Dingong. She continues to see face-
to-face teaching as the basis for thorough 
and meticulous training. But these digital 
aids are making an important contribution 
to qualified and effective nursing training.

C A R M E N  N D O KO N  D I N G O N G

Head of Bergkamen nursing school TÜV NORD Bildung
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In the energy transition, a lot of hope has been 
pinned on hydrogen as one of the cleanest energy 
sources in the world – albeit only if the entire life 
cycle from production to transport is environmen-
tally friendly. The TÜV NORD GROUP has been 
working in this fi eld for around a decade and is 
currently pioneering the development of a sustain-
able and safe infrastructure for hydrogen. Silvio 
Konrad, Managing Director of TÜV NORD Systems, 
and Dr. Carsten Gelhard, Head of HydroHub, 
explain in an interview the contribution the 
TÜV NORD GROUP is making to the hydrogen 
market and which projects the company is 
carrying out.“M
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Mr. Konrad and Dr. Gelhard, what benefi ts do you see in hydrogen as 
an energy carrier?

SILVIO KONRAD At the TÜV NORD GROUP we believe that hydrogen could catalyse a rev-
olution in the energy and industrial sectors and make a significant contribution to climate 
protection. The great value of hydrogen lies in its versatility, which makes it possible 
to build bridges between sectors such as energy, mobility, agriculture and other areas.  

DR. CARSTEN GELHARD If the energy transition is going to succeed, we need alternatives 
to fossil fuels, and hydrogen is going to play a key role here. The advantage of hydrogen 
is that its properties allow for a high degree of flexibility in energy supply. Electrolysers 
used to produce hydrogen, for example, can absorb excess amounts of energy and feed 
it into the power grid when required. With this integrated energy system, the hydrogen 
economy could make a significant contribution to the security of supply in the entire 
energy landscape. 

The TÜV NORD GROUP has intensifi ed its work on hydrogen in recent years. 
Why is this?

SK Hydrogen isn’t a new field for us. We set up some hydrogen filling stations at the Port 
of Hamburg a good ten years back. However, we’ve redoubled our efforts in this area 
because there’s been a rethinking of hydrogen technology in politics and business. Our 
customers are now increasingly asking for services in this area, one example being copper 
producer Aurubis, which is converting its anode production from natural gas to hydrogen. 
We carried out a risk assessment for Aurubis and provided safety-related support in the 
commissioning of this pilot project. The growing market demand means that we need to 
expand our knowledge but also to adapt existing services and develop new ones.
 
CG The TÜV NORD GROUP has the clear goal of driving forward the energy transition 
and leading its customers and society safely into a sustainable future. We aim to use 
our expertise to help shape the development of an infrastructure for hydrogen. To get 
ourselves in the position to do this, we’ve set out in a new direction that brings together 
different business segments within the Group. The best example of this is the founding 
of HydroHub, an initiative of several companies from the TÜV NORD GROUP. With this 
brand, we’re pooling our expertise in the areas of consulting, training and engineering 
and offering these services on the hydrogen market.

The Port of Hamburg has the 
ambition to become an important 
hub for hydrogen imports. The 
TÜV NORD GROUP is supporting the 
city of Hamburg in this project.
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So what are the challenges facing the hydrogen economy right now?

CG The biggest challenge lies in the fact that we’re currently in the market ramp-up phase. 
This means that there are still lots of open questions, such as how the gas network can be 
converted to hydrogen. We’re helping our customers with the transformation process in 
all phases from strategic planning and conceptual design through to the implementation 
of the required systems. In the initial phase, for example, our experts are carrying out 
market analyses, formulating location strategies and developing concepts for a sustainable 
supply chain. We’re also presented with the challenge that huge amounts of electricity 
from renewable energies are required for the environmentally friendly production of 
hydrogen. That’s why the HydroHub in the TÜV NORD GROUP is currently focusing on 
supporting the development of a hydrogen infrastructure. As soon as the infrastructure 
is in place for everything from generation to application, hydrogen will boom. 

SK Hydrogen is still being used sparingly just now because the policymakers haven’t 
yet come up with the regulatory framework necessary for reliable investments running 
into the billions of euro. Here, too, we’re helping to define the framework conditions for 
a successful hydrogen economy within local and international networks. For example, 
we’re a member of the Hamburg Renewable Energy Cluster and the Hydrogen Advisory 
Board in Essen, and we’re also represented on the World Energy Council and Hydrogen 
Europe. In these bodies, we’re using our many years of accumulated knowledge to steer 
projects to a successful outcome. 

Let's stay with this question for a moment: which specifi c projects is the 
TÜV NORD GROUP pushing ahead with?

SK In the “WindH₂” project, we’re working with companies from various industries to 
set up an integrated energy system in Salzgitter. We also supported the construction 
of a wind farm for Avacon, a regional energy supplier, the green electricity from which 
is now being used to power an electrolyser built by Siemens Energy. This electrolyser 
in turn is producing green hydrogen, which is then transported by Linde, an expert in 
process gases, to the Salzgitter steel group. Once delivered, the hydrogen gets used 
as a low-carbon energy source for steel production. We’ve provided safety-related 
support for each of these stages. “WindH₂” emphatically demonstrates how effectively 
hydrogen can bring different sectors together. 

CG The port city of Hamburg wants to set itself up as a national and international hub 
for hydrogen imports in the coming years. A site like Hamburg is particularly impor-
tant for an industrialised country like Germany, which has to import the majority of 
its energy. We were commissioned by Hamburg to evaluate the technological options 
for various hydrogen carrier materials, and we clearly and comprehensively communi-
cated the advantages and disadvantages from an ecological, economic and safety-
relevant point of view and contributed to the discussion about the required hydrogen 
infrastructure. As you can see, creating a hydrogen infrastructure is one of the key 
issues. In a general planning capacity, the experts from the TÜV NORD GROUP are also 
supporting terranets bw in the construction of a new 100-kilometre section of a South 
German natural gas pipeline which is earmarked for the future transport of hydrogen. 
So, with our expertise, we’re making a significant contribution to energy security.

“We want to 
use our expertise 
to help shape the 

development of an 
infrastructure 
for hydrogen.”

D R .  C A R S T E N  G E L H A R D

Head of HydroHub

What goals has the TÜV NORD GROUP already achieved in relation to hydrogen?

SK In 2021, we achieved and in some cases even exceeded our ambitious targets. For 
example, we drove various innovations without using up our entire budget. We also 
generated sales through projects in our first year, showing that hydrogen projects can 
be profitable even under the current conditions. Our pioneering status in the energy 
transition is a strong motivator for our employees.

CG We want to use our services to position ourselves as a key player in safety, sustainabil-
ity and reliability in the hydrogen economy. As I see it, we reached two major milestones 
in 2021. On the one hand, thanks to the close cooperation between the various business 
units, we’ve seen the development of much stronger internal coherence. On the other, 
alongside our classic inspection business, the broad range of expert knowledge in our 
various divisions and companies has helped cement the status of the TÜV NORD GROUP 
as a leading service provider in the hydrogen economy under the HydroHub brand. 

What will be at the top of the TÜV NORD GROUP’s hydrogen agenda in the future?

CG One key theme is the development of a uniform classification system with transparent 
characteristics for sustainable hydrogen. Although hydrogen is an emissions-saving energy 
carrier, when it comes to sustainability we need to look at the entire value chain from 
production to transport and application. At the same time, economic and social criteria 
must be taken into account alongside ecological factors when it comes to evaluating the 
sustainability of hydrogen. 

SK We also want to integrate other technological fields into the hydrogen economy. 
For example, in the case of offshore wind farms, the question arises as to whether they 
can produce green hydrogen as an integrated system. These are questions that we will 
continue to deal with in the future, and we’re going to use our expert knowledge to push 
ahead with the development of a safe and sustainable hydrogen infrastructure.

“We see hydrogen
as a revolution in 
the energy and 
industrial sectors.”
S I LV I O  KO N R A D

Managing Director at TÜV NORD Systems

Once safe and sustainable infrastruc-
ture is in place, from production 
through to transport and application, 
hydrogen will be an unstoppable force.
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So what are the challenges facing the hydrogen economy right now?
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hydrogen. That’s why the HydroHub in the TÜV NORD GROUP is currently focusing on 
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Board in Essen, and we’re also represented on the World Energy Council and Hydrogen 
Europe. In these bodies, we’re using our many years of accumulated knowledge to steer 
projects to a successful outcome. 

Let's stay with this question for a moment: which specifi c projects is the 
TÜV NORD GROUP pushing ahead with?

SK In the “WindH₂” project, we’re working with companies from various industries to 
set up an integrated energy system in Salzgitter. We also supported the construction 
of a wind farm for Avacon, a regional energy supplier, the green electricity from which 
is now being used to power an electrolyser built by Siemens Energy. This electrolyser 
in turn is producing green hydrogen, which is then transported by Linde, an expert in 
process gases, to the Salzgitter steel group. Once delivered, the hydrogen gets used 
as a low-carbon energy source for steel production. We’ve provided safety-related 
support for each of these stages. “WindH₂” emphatically demonstrates how effectively 
hydrogen can bring different sectors together. 

CG The port city of Hamburg wants to set itself up as a national and international hub 
for hydrogen imports in the coming years. A site like Hamburg is particularly impor-
tant for an industrialised country like Germany, which has to import the majority of 
its energy. We were commissioned by Hamburg to evaluate the technological options 
for various hydrogen carrier materials, and we clearly and comprehensively communi-
cated the advantages and disadvantages from an ecological, economic and safety-
relevant point of view and contributed to the discussion about the required hydrogen 
infrastructure. As you can see, creating a hydrogen infrastructure is one of the key 
issues. In a general planning capacity, the experts from the TÜV NORD GROUP are also 
supporting terranets bw in the construction of a new 100-kilometre section of a South 
German natural gas pipeline which is earmarked for the future transport of hydrogen. 
So, with our expertise, we’re making a significant contribution to energy security.

“We want to 
use our expertise 
to help shape the 

development of an 
infrastructure 
for hydrogen.”

D R .  C A R S T E N  G E L H A R D

Head of HydroHub
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example, we drove various innovations without using up our entire budget. We also 
generated sales through projects in our first year, showing that hydrogen projects can 
be profitable even under the current conditions. Our pioneering status in the energy 
transition is a strong motivator for our employees.

CG We want to use our services to position ourselves as a key player in safety, sustainabil-
ity and reliability in the hydrogen economy. As I see it, we reached two major milestones 
in 2021. On the one hand, thanks to the close cooperation between the various business 
units, we’ve seen the development of much stronger internal coherence. On the other, 
alongside our classic inspection business, the broad range of expert knowledge in our 
various divisions and companies has helped cement the status of the TÜV NORD GROUP 
as a leading service provider in the hydrogen economy under the HydroHub brand. 

What will be at the top of the TÜV NORD GROUP’s hydrogen agenda in the future?

CG One key theme is the development of a uniform classification system with transparent 
characteristics for sustainable hydrogen. Although hydrogen is an emissions-saving energy 
carrier, when it comes to sustainability we need to look at the entire value chain from 
production to transport and application. At the same time, economic and social criteria 
must be taken into account alongside ecological factors when it comes to evaluating the 
sustainability of hydrogen. 

SK We also want to integrate other technological fields into the hydrogen economy. 
For example, in the case of offshore wind farms, the question arises as to whether they 
can produce green hydrogen as an integrated system. These are questions that we will 
continue to deal with in the future, and we’re going to use our expert knowledge to push 
ahead with the development of a safe and sustainable hydrogen infrastructure.

“We see hydrogen
as a revolution in 
the energy and 
industrial sectors.”
S I LV I O  KO N R A D

Managing Director at TÜV NORD Systems

Once safe and sustainable infrastruc-
ture is in place, from production 
through to transport and application, 
hydrogen will be an unstoppable force.
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The Corporate Responsibility Report for 2021 can be found at tuev-nord-group.com /  
en / company / annual-reports-facts-and-figures / annual-report-2021

CORPORATE 
RESPON
SIBILITY
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The TÜV NORD GROUP published its first Corporate  
Responsibility Report in 2018. In 2019 and 2020, we re-
leased progress reports outlining the economic, environment-
al and social impacts respectively of our business activities. 
This year, as in 2018, we are once again publishing a com-
prehensive Corporate Responsibility Report. This presents 
our Strategy 2025 for Corporate Responsibility in terms of 
“Company”, “People” and “Environment”. We also reveal the 
goals we want to achieve by 2023.

This chapter on “Corporate Responsibility” consists of  
excerpts from the Corporate Responsibility Report,  
which is published in a separate document.

44  Our Corporate Responsibility Strategy 2025
46  Managing Corporate Responsibility
47  Values and Responsibility
48  Shaping Relations with our Stakeholders
49 Materiality of our CR Topics
50 Our CR Roadmap 2023
52 Company
56 People
60 Environment
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Our Corporate 
Responsibility Strategy for 2025

F U R T H E R  D E V E L O P M E N T  A N D  R E F I N E M E N T 
O F  T H E  C R  S T R AT E G Y

Sustainability and responsibility are the driving force behind the 
entrepreneurial vision of the TÜV NORD GROUP, and these qual-
ities are firmly embedded in our DNA. Our long-term Group-wide 
Corporate Responsibility (CR) Strategy is at the heart of all our 
activities. In response to the extraordinarily dynamic develop-
ment of the conditions under which we have been operating over 
the past two years, we have further developed and refined our 
CR Strategy. In March 2021, the new CR Strategy 2025 came into 
force which will determine the influence of Corporate Responsi-
bility on our actions as a company for the coming years. To 
achieve the goals set out therein, we also developed an initial CR 
Roadmap for the years 2021 to 2023, which was released at the 
same time as the CR Strategy 2025. In 2023, we plan to develop 
a roadmap for the period 2024 to 2025.  

Our CR Strategy and the goals, measures and indicators formulat-
ed in the roadmap are embedded in the overall strategic position-
ing of the TÜV NORD GROUP (“Strategy2025”), which is in turn 
significantly influenced by the current scientific findings of cli-
mate research. According to these findings, limiting the man-made 
global temperature increase to a maximum of 1.5 degrees Celsius 
is imperative. To achieve this goal, CO2 emissions must be sig-
nificantly reduced before 2030 and net zero emissions achieved 
by 2050. In the light of the above, the Sustainable Development 
Goals (SDGs) set out in the United Nations’ Agenda 2030 have 
also met with an extraordinarily high level of acceptance in the 
economic sector; the SDGs are shaping the strategic orientation of 
customers and competitors alike. At the same time, our stake-
holders (> see “Shaping Relations with our Stakeholders”, p. 48) are 
calling on us to make an appropriate contribution to the sustainable 
development of the environment and society. The legislature, in 
turn, is imposing requirements on non-financial reporting, which is 
giving rise to an increasing need to establish a uniform management 
system for non-financial indicators. 

The combination of all the above sets the context for the TÜV NORD 
GROUP’s sustainability endeavours: since 2020, we have defined 
sustainability as one of our guiding values. With the “Strategy2025”, 
sustainability is also set to become a main strategic thrust for 
our Group and all its business units and functional divisions. This 
means that we intend to strategically position ourselves as a leading 
company in the TIC (Testing, Inspection, Certification) industry with 
an ecologically, economically and socially sustainable product and 

service portfolio. In addition to our explicit commitment to the 
1.5-degree target, for us this includes the need to move into sustain-
able growth areas and the application of sustainability criteria to 
innovations and services. For us, Corporate Responsibility is a key 
guiding value that is reflected in our business activities and corpo-
rate culture (> see section on “Values and Responsibility”, p. 47). 

A  H O L I S T I C  M A N A G E M E N T  A P P R O A C H 

Our CR follows a holistic management approach. The focus is on 
three fields of action: “Company”, “People” and “Environment”  
(> see From “Shared Value” to “System Value”, p. 45). We are pur-
suing its implementation along the entire value chain. In doing 
so, we are taking a long-term approach and using the Group's 
integrated management system for the implementation. 

The goals and measures defined in the CR Strategy and the CR 
Roadmap are based on a materiality analysis (> see “Materiality of 
our CR Topics”, p. 49). As they implement the strategy, the business 
units and Group companies can set different priorities and define 
and shape their contribution to the joint achievement of goals in 
line with the possibilities open to them and their current strengths. 
What is crucial is for the Group-wide targets to be achieved by 
aggregating all the contributions. 

How the planning and implementation of CR is being coordinated  
is described in the “Managing Corporate Responsibility”  
chapter (p. 46).

PA R A D I G M  S H I F T  T O  A  S Y S T E M I C  A P P R O A C H

With our CR Strategy 2025 and our clear shift in positioning 
towards sustainability-oriented value creation, the TÜV NORD 
GROUP is making a paradigm shift from the shared value 
approach previously pursued as part of the CR Strategy 2020 
to a future-oriented system value approach based on systems 
thinking (> see From “Shared Value” to “System Value”, p. 45). In 
this way, we make it clear that the three subsystems of the global 
system (economy, society and environment) are interdependent 
and interact with each other in line with the inclusion model 
described. As a company, we have therefore decided to make our 
corporate success contingent also on the contribution we make 
to the sustainable development of the economy, society and the 
environment (> see also our Corporate Responsibility Guidelines).

https://www.tuev-nord-group.com/fileadmin/Content/TUEV_NORD_GROUP/files/CR_Leitlinie.pdf
https://www.tuev-nord-group.com/fileadmin/Content/TUEV_NORD_GROUP/files/CR_Policy.pdf
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Business

Transition Path 2025

Objective: to significantly strengthen our 

impact on sustainable development
BusinessEnvironment

Environment

Society

Society

F R O M  »S H A R E D  VA L U E«  T O  »S Y S T E M  VA L U E«

SHARED VALUE SYSTEM VALUE

CR Strategy 2020

Economic success consistent with  

the needs of people and the natural world

CR Strategy 2025

Corporate success as a contribution to the  

sustainable development of the economy, society  

and the environment

The CR Strategy 2025 is thus anchored in the TÜV NORD 
GROUP’s new Corporate Responsibility Guidelines, which 
were likewise published in March 2021. In tandem with the CR 
Roadmap 2023 (and, subsequently, the CR Roadmap 2025), the 
document is intended to provide impetus for the implementation 
of the “Strategy2025”, to point the way to the sustainable further 
development of the Group and to focus on sustainability issues 
in the long term, including beyond 2025. In addition, the new CR 
Strategy, together with the subordinate roadmaps, will serve to 
establish a framework and appropriate metrics for the manage-
ment of non-financial indicators in the Group until 2025.

A L I G N M E N T  W I T H  T H E  S U S TA I N A B L E  
D E V E L O P M E N T  G O A L S  A N D  T H E  U N I T E D  
N AT I O N S  G L O B A L  C O M PA C T

Our strategic orientation is not limited solely to megatrends: 
since 2018 we have also been increasingly aligning ourselves 
with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). 
In the past two reporting years, we paid particularly close atten-
tion to the transformative potential of the SDGs for our own dig-
italisation projects, innovations, services and business activities 
and anchored this potential in our “Strategy2025” as an objective 
for our “Sustainable Product and Services Portfolio”.

In 2021, we once again evaluated the new innovation projects of 
all the German business units and Group companies on the basis 

of fixed sustainability criteria that take their cue from the SDGs. 
In the process, we also undertook a structured assessment of 
the impact of the projects on the SDGs. Each innovation project 
was reviewed within the innovation process to determine the 
extent to which the innovation is contributing to the sustainable 
development of the economy, society and the environment. For 
this purpose, the competent innovation managers record both 
the SDG indicators to which an innovation is contributing and the 
extent to which it is doing so, including how it is contributing to 
the implementation of the Group’s CR Roadmap.

In the current reporting year, we created the essential organi-
sa tional and methodological prerequisites for the structured 
evaluation of our service portfolio in the German part of the TÜV 
NORD GROUP and began determining the impact of our services 
on the SDGs in two business units (Industrial Services and Mo-
bility). In the future, we aim to ensure that we will contribute to 
the achievement of the Sustainable Development Goals not only 
with our innovations and the resulting new services but with our 
business activities as a whole. We will then use the insights we 
gain to manage our sustainable impact as a company in a more 
strategically and operationally targeted manner.

Since August 2021, the TÜV NORD GROUP has also been a mem-
ber of the United Nations Global Compact, the world’s largest 
initiative for sustainable and responsible corporate governance. 
By joining the Global Compact, we have underlined and strength-
ened our commitment to sustainability. We are committed to 
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Managing Corporate 
Responsibility

In the TÜV NORD GROUP, Corporate Responsibility (CR) is en-
shrined at the highest level of corporate governance: the overall 
responsibility for CR lies with the Group Executive Committee and, 
within this body, with the Chairman of the Board of Management. 
At the level of the business units or functional divisions, it is the re-
spective division managers who are responsible for CR; at company 
level, it is the relevant management boards. 

As before, the CR manager staff function will continue to be 
responsible for the further development of the CR Strategy, the 
coordination of overarching CR activities and CR communication. 
He or she also organises and manages the CR Steering Committee 
and advises the business units, functional divisions and Group 
companies on the implementation of the CR Strategy. He or she is 
supported by the CR coordinators from the divisions. In addition, 
he or she regularly exchanges views on CR topics and activities 
with the management officers’ group. 

The CR Steering Committee is made up of the CR coordinators who 
represent the respective business units and functional divisions. 
They are assigned competencies with strategic CR relevance and 
exchange information on all overarching CR topics and activities 
in the Steering Committee. This also includes the development and 
implementation of the CR Strategy 2025 and the CR Roadmaps for 
2023 and 2025. The CR Steering Committee met every two months 
in 2021, a total of six times.  

As a rule, the CR activities of the Group companies are managed 
by the relevant company’s management officer. He or she consults 
closely with the CR coordinator of the higher-level business unit 
and is essentially responsible for monitoring the implementation of 
the CR requirements within the Group company.

integrating the Compact and its principles into our corporate 
strategy, corporate culture and day-to-day business. We also 
pledge to participate in cooperation projects that promote the 
general goals of the United Nations, in particular the SDGs. 

C R E AT I N G  T R A N S PA R E N C Y :  
A N N U A L  R E P O R T I N G  

It is important to us to share our CR Strategy in a readily under-
standable way. This is why we report annually on the current 
progress of our sustainability endeavours. In doing so, we are also 
fulfilling our duty of accountability within the framework of the 

UN Global Compact. In terms of content, our reports adhere to the 
following principles: involvement of stakeholders, sustainability 
context, materiality and completeness. We report on the basis of 
clearly defined and implemented data sources which are retrie v-
able and verifiable at all times. 
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Values and Responsibility

Responsibility and sustainability – which are brought together un-
der the term Corporate Responsibility – are essential pillars of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP’s corporate activities. They define our actions 
and are the founding principles of our business. Our corporate suc-
cess is thus intimately linked with the contribution we make to the 
sustainable development of the economy, society and the environ-
ment (> see also our Corporate Responsibility Guidelines). Since 
the beginning of 2020, sustainability has been part of the mission 
statement of the TÜV NORD GROUP. In this way, we give the issue 
the same weight in our company as it has among the general public 
and our stakeholders. We see the management of Corporate Respon-
sibility as a long-term project. This path is based on the following six 
corporate values, which apply to all our employees as a mandatory 
guideline for their personal actions in the company. 

T H E  F O C U S  I S  O N  O U R  C U S T O M E R S

We consider it our responsibility to contribute to the success of 
our customers – we always have and always will. We offer them 
services of the highest quality and efficiency in the context of a 
sustainable portfolio of services and new ideas to help them on 
their future path.  

O U R  E M P L OY E E S  A R E  T H E  K E Y  T O  
O U R  S U C C E S S

As an employer, we are responsible for creating an attractive 
work environment which is a clear statement of the appreciation 
we have for our employees. We offer our employees the space 
they need to design a working life which is characterised by 
individual responsibility; we also set great store by teamwork, 
promote the reconciliation of work and private life and offer 
individual training opportunities. The employees in turn have a 
responsibility to contribute to the success of the company.

O U R  I N T E G R I T Y  I S  T H E  B A S I S  O F  
E V E R Y T H I N G  W E  D O

We see it as our responsibility towards our stakeholders, the 
environment and society to act transparently, in compliance 
with the law and sustainably at all times. Integrity is therefore 
explicitly related to the effects of our actions on the environment 
and wider society. 

O U R  S U S TA I N A B I L I T Y  O P E N S  U P  N E W  PAT H S 
T O  A  S H A R E D  F U T U R E

We pay particular attention to the economic, environmental 
and societal impact of our decisions and actions. Sustainability 
is an elemental part of our brand – in the service portfolio and 
in all innovation-related matters. We are constantly working to 
reduce our environmental footprint. 

O U R  D I V E R S I T Y  O P E N S  U P  N E W  
O P P O R T U N I T I E S

We see it as our responsibility towards all employees to respect 
the individuality of each and every member of staff and to 
promote equal opportunities. By emphasising mixed teams and 
interdisciplin ary work in and between all areas of the company, we 
are putting in place key conditions to allow us to offer our custom-
ers tailor-made solutions in all markets.

O U R  C U LT U R E  O F  I N N O VAT I O N  I S  
T R E N D - S E T T I N G

We consider it our responsibility for the future viability of our 
company to continuously improve our products and processes, to 
develop cutting edge and sustainable business models and services 
and to align ourselves with the Sustainable Development Goals of the 
United Nations. We encourage our employees to be creative and offer 
an environment that promotes this kind of innovation.

Corporate Responsibility is also a key value driver. It is opening up 
new business models and services with which we can increase our 
contribution to a more sustainable world. At the same time, Corpo-
rate Responsibility will secure the future of our company by allowing 
us at all times to recognise the economic, ecological and social effects 
of our decisions and actions, to manage their impact in a targeted 
manner and to create added value for the economy, society and the 
environment. 

https://www.tuev-nord-group.com/fileadmin/Content/TUEV_NORD_GROUP/files/CR_Policy.pdf
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Shaping Relations with  
our Stakeholders

In the fulfilment of our Corporate Responsibility, the TÜV NORD 
GROUP sets great store by intensive regular dialogue with those in-
ternal and external stakeholders who are relevant to our corporate 
direction both within and outside the value chain. 

Different groups of stakeholders are involved. The groups we 
identify as relevant are: 

As a way of involving the stakeholders, we recorded and evaluated 
the relevant economic, social and/or ecological matters of concern 
to our stakeholders in 2017 and assigned them to the four fields of 
action of the CR Strategy 2020. We also entered into dialogue with 
our stakeholders during the development of our CR Strategy 2025: 
in 2020, we put on a stakeholder event at which we presented our 
draft strategy and collected feedback. With the help of target- 

group-specific surveys, in 2021 we involved our stakeholders in the 
assessment of the relevance of our matters. We incorporated the 
results into our materiality analysis (> see Materiality of our CR 
Topics, p. 49).

In principle, we include both those stakeholders with whom we 
work along the value chain and those who do not contribute 
directly to our value chain. These groups offer us the opportuni-
ty to assess the economic, social and ecological impacts of our 
actions more effectively and to shape our service portfolio with 
an even clearer sense of purpose. 

O T H E R  D I A L O G U E  F O R M AT S  

We are engaged in a lively internal dialogue with staff councils, for 
instance. This communication is ensured by the Group Staff Council 
(GSC), which is also represented in the CR Steering Committee and 
kept informed separately at GSC meetings. The CR manager reports 
on and discusses the Group’s CR topics at the meeting of senior 
executives. Representatives of all TÜV NORD divisions are involved 
in the annual International Quality & Sustainability Conference. 
Since 2021, regular meetings have also been held with international 
companies, which will gradually be integrated into the Group-wide 
CR management structure.

We ensure that dialogue on sustainability issues takes place with 
our market competitors through the sustainability committees of the 
TIC Council and the TÜV-Verband. 

We also use networks to exchange ideas on Corporate Responsibility 
matters. These include the networks of our stakeholders such as the 
CSR Network Hamburg (CSR-Netzwerk Hamburg) and the German 
Network for Business Ethics (Deutsche Netzwerk Wirtschaftsethik – 
dnwe), out involvement in the latter taking place, for example, with-
in the framework of the dnwe Regional Forum NRW and the CSR 
Communication Congress. We also use social media such as LinkedIn 
and Twitter to actively stay in touch with our stakeholders. All these 
channels help us more effectively to assess the way our actions are 
perceived and their impacts. They also help us to communicate with 
the outside world and in the initial and ongoing development of 
ideas and topics.

* Stakeholders who make a direct or indirect contribution to value creation in the  
TÜV NORD GROUP

Internal stakeholders

Supervisory Board (internal)

Board of Management

Group Executive Committee (GEC)

Heads of the business units and 
functional divisions

Companies in Germany  
(management and experts)

Regions and companies abroad 
(management and experts)

Group representatives

Group of management  
representatives

Employee representatives (staff 
councils, other representative bodies)

Employees

External

Supervisory Board (external)

Customers

Subcontractors, suppliers, service 
providers

Cooperation partners

Financial partners

Shareholders (TÜV associations)

Committees* 

Accreditation and certification  
organisations*

Authorities* with the power to grant 
permissions

Legislators and regulators*

Competition*

Associations and NGOs*
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 1 Sustainable innovations and services
 2 Digital business models, processes and tools
 3 Integrity and compliance
 4 Responsibility in the value chain
 5  Integration of Group companies into non-financial 

reporting

 13 Environmentally friendly travel behaviour
 14 Energy efficiency in buildings
 15 Resource economy and efficiency

 6 Value-oriented corporate and Human Resource management
 7 Individual development and advancement of employees
 8 Societal role in accordance with our vision and mission
 9 Respect for human rights
 10 Appropriate working environment, health and safety
 11 Diversity and inclusion
 12  Targeted commitment consistent with our value 

creation
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 E N V I R O N M E N T

 P E O P L E 

The size of the circles is directly proportional to the relevance of the CR topics to our 
stakeholders. 

Materiality of our 
CR Topics 

In the context of a materiality analysis in 2021, we determined 
which CR topics play a major role for the TÜV NORD GROUP and 
which of them we should focus on in our CR Strategy. The CR topics 
identifi ed using this instrument form the basis for our actions and 
activities in the context of Corporate Responsibility. In the 
materiality analysis, we considered three dimensions: the evaluation 
of the business relevance of our CR topics, an evaluation of the 
economic, ecological and/or social impact of our actions and 
assessments of relevance delivered by the stakeholders.

We determined business relevance by conducting a relevance 
survey of top management (Board of Management and business 
unit management). The impact was assessed semi-quantitatively, i.e. 
each CR topic was assigned to a point along a given scale by 
internal experts (CR Steering Committee, specialists). We defi ne 
impact as the “degree” of the positive and negative eff ects of 
corporate action in respect of a specifi c CR topic. The impact 
assessment is in principle derived from a consideration of the 
intensity and probability of occurrence of these eff ects. Further-

more, we surveyed our stakeholders on a target-group-specifi c basis 
with regard to the relevance of our CR topics. This created a 
comprehensive and transparent overall picture for our future CR 
endeavours.

The following CR topics have been taken from the Materiality 
Report 2021 – structured by fi elds of action. The matters in black 
are material and are therefore given the highest relevance; those 
shown in grey are important.

In 2021, compared to the previous materiality analysis for 2018 to 
2020, the topics of “Energy effi  ciency in buildings” and “Respect for 
human rights” were upgraded from important to material topics and 
will accordingly be prioritised.
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M AT E R I A L I T Y  M AT R I X  2 0 2 1

 1 Sustainable innovations and services
 2 Digital business models, processes and tools
 3 Integrity and compliance
 4 Responsibility in the value chain
 5  Integration of Group companies into non-financial 

reporting

 13 Environmentally friendly travel behaviour
 14 Energy efficiency in buildings
 15 Resource economy and efficiency

 6 Value-oriented corporate and Human Resource management
 7 Individual development and advancement of employees
 8 Societal role in accordance with our vision and mission
 9 Respect for human rights
 10 Appropriate working environment, health and safety
 11 Diversity and inclusion
 12  Targeted commitment consistent with our value 

creation

 C O M PA N Y 

 E N V I R O N M E N T

 P E O P L E 

The size of the circles is directly proportional to the relevance of the CR topics to our 
stakeholders. 

Materiality of our 
CR Topics 

In the context of a materiality analysis in 2021, we determined 
which CR topics play a major role for the TÜV NORD GROUP and 
which of them we should focus on in our CR Strategy. The CR topics 
identifi ed using this instrument form the basis for our actions and 
activities in the context of Corporate Responsibility. In the 
materiality analysis, we considered three dimensions: the evaluation 
of the business relevance of our CR topics, an evaluation of the 
economic, ecological and/or social impact of our actions and 
assessments of relevance delivered by the stakeholders.

We determined business relevance by conducting a relevance 
survey of top management (Board of Management and business 
unit management). The impact was assessed semi-quantitatively, i.e. 
each CR topic was assigned to a point along a given scale by 
internal experts (CR Steering Committee, specialists). We defi ne 
impact as the “degree” of the positive and negative eff ects of 
corporate action in respect of a specifi c CR topic. The impact 
assessment is in principle derived from a consideration of the 
intensity and probability of occurrence of these eff ects. Further-

more, we surveyed our stakeholders on a target-group-specifi c basis 
with regard to the relevance of our CR topics. This created a 
comprehensive and transparent overall picture for our future CR 
endeavours.

The following CR topics have been taken from the Materiality 
Report 2021 – structured by fi elds of action. The matters in black 
are material and are therefore given the highest relevance; those 
shown in grey are important.

In 2021, compared to the previous materiality analysis for 2018 to 
2020, the topics of “Energy effi  ciency in buildings” and “Respect for 
human rights” were upgraded from important to material topics and 
will accordingly be prioritised.
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R O A D M A P  2 0 2 3  –  O U R  K E Y- O B J E C T I V E S 

Our CR Roadmap 2023

Field of action Key message Key objective Status

Company The TÜV NORD GROUP is strategically positioning itself 
as a leading company in the TIC sector in terms of the 
ecologically, economically and socially sustainable design 
of its product and service portfolio; its positioning strategy 
includes identifying and moving into sustainable growth 
areas and applying sustainability criteria to innovations 
and services.

We are enhancing the positive character of our actions along 
the value chain in terms of their ecological, economic and 
social impacts. To this end, we are using innovative develop-
ments and digital technologies that support and accelerate 
sustainable development. At the same time, integrity and 
compliance are non-negotiable foundational elements of our 
Corporate Responsibility, which must be maintained and 
expanded.

in 
progress

People The TÜV NORD GROUP is strategically positioning itself as 
a leading company in the TIC industry with regard to: 
•  the authentic communication of the meaningfulness and 

positive infl uence of their own business activities on 
people and their livelihoods 

•  acting responsibly towards internal and external stake-
holders at all times, and 

•  our establishment as a values-oriented company with a 
positive infl uence as a social actor

Through sustainable, mutually appreciative, motivating and 
responsible action, we are creating a working environment 
that puts people at the heart of what we do. Based on a 
culture that is the byword for diversity, sustainability and 
innovation, we are an attractive employer which is committed 
to the further development of its employees and aware of its 
social responsibility.

in 
progress

Environment The TÜV NORD GROUP is explicitly committed to the 
1.5-degree target, has committed itself to decarbonisation 
by 2030 and is strategically positioning itself as a leading 
company in the TIC industry with regard to environmental 
and climate protection.

The CO
2
 emissions from business-related travel and the use of 

real estate and of resources by the entire TÜV NORD GROUP 
are to become carbon-neutral by 2030 through the use of 
targeted avoidance, reduction and mitigation measures.

in 
progress

    

The Roadmap 2023 off ers us guidance on our journey towards the 
systematic integration of Corporate Responsibility into all the 
business units of the TÜV NORD GROUP. It forms the basis of all 
our actions and activities relating to Corporate Responsibility. It 
includes an overarching goal and at least one specifi c self-deter-
mined goal for each of the fi elds of action which, unless a longer 
term deadline has been set for its achievement, we aim to achieve 
by the end of 2025. Moreover, in combination with our overarch-
ing CR Strategy 2025, the Roadmap 2023 (for the years 2021 to 
2023) and the Roadmap 2025 (for the years 2024 to 2025, not 
yet developed), provide the framework and metrics for the 
management of non-fi nancial indicators in the Group until 2025. 

The CR Steering Committee began developing the current CR 
Roadmap 2023 in May 2020. It was put into eff ect along with the 
new CR Strategy 2025 by the Group Executive Committee (GEC) 
in the fi rst quarter of 2021. A second CR Roadmap will cover the 
period from 2024 to 2025. This will be developed in 2023, based 
on any change in requirements which takes place in the meantime 
and the experience garnered from the current roadmap. 

The objectives and measures of our CR Roadmap 2023 will 
provide specifi c guidance to all the employees of the Group for 

three years in respect of Corporate Responsibility questions. We 
are already successfully managing their implementation in Germa-
ny through the Group's central CR management system and with 
the aid of the CR coordinators from the business units and the 
functional divisions of the holding company. 

The TÜV NORD GROUP is also perceived from the outside as a 
values-oriented and sustainable company: we were awarded 
EcoVadis Gold status back in December 2020. This places us in 
the top fi ve percent of companies rated by EcoVadis with regard 
to sustainability. We will continue to hold this award after the 
assessment which was successfully initiated at the end of 2021. 

Below we will provide information about the fi rst intermediate 
status of the implementation of our key objectives by the end of 
2021 and also about the subordinate objectives set in the three 
fi elds of action according to our CR Roadmap 2023. Details on the 
design and implementation status of our strategic CR topics by 
the end of the year 2021 are provided within the chapters 
“Company”, “People” and “Environment”.

  “ C O M PA N Y ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N
Topic Goals

Sustainable innovations and 
services

•  Corporate Responsibility is established as a parameter for the evaluation of our innovations and services. In particular, our 
innovation and portfolio management promotes ideas and concepts that contribute to sustainable development in economic, 
ecological and social terms.

Digital business models, processes 
and tools

•  The development and expansion of digital business models is promoted.
•  In the context of the TÜV NORD GROUP's process landscape, the meaningful digitalisation of business processes is underway/

an active aspiration.

Integrity and compliance •  With its structure, processes and measures, the Compliance Management System (CMS) is ensuring compliance with the 
rules. The CMS is reinforcing integrity as the basis of all our actions, for each individual employee and for the TÜV NORD 
GROUP as a whole.

•  A training programme for integrity and compliance has been introduced throughout the Group.

Responsibility in the value chain •  Awareness of sustainability matters has been generated at management level.
•  Sustainability criteria have been integrated into procurement processes.
•  Participation in CR ratings, rankings and assessments is being maintained and meaningfully expanded.

Integration of Group companies 
into non-fi nancial reporting

•  Through joint strategies and their implementation, the integration, success and sense of togetherness of all Group compa-
nies, both domestic and international, are increasing. The CR Strategy is making an important contribution to the creation of 
meaning and value orientation.

  

R O A D M A P  2 0 2 3  –  T O P I C S  A N D  G O A L S  P E R  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

  “ C O M PA N Y ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

  “ P E O P L E ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

  “ E N V I R O N M E N T ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

Topic Goals

Values-oriented corporate and 
Human Resource  management

•  The TÜV NORD GROUP is perceived by its employees as acting sustainably in accordance with values. The established man-
a ge ment guidelines of the TÜV NORD GROUP are being put into practice, management development programmes are serving 
to communicate them, and employees perceive the leadership to be adequate when measured according to the guidelines.

Individual development and 
advancement of employees

•  Flexible opportunities for the professional development of our employees are being systematically and continuously 
expanded and adapted to requirements.

•  The development of our employees is taking place based on dialogue, transparently and in a way which acknowledges staff  
needs. When it comes to appointments, internal candidates can primarily be called on.

•  The open culture of feedback is being systematically promoted and expanded.

Societal role in accordance with our 
vision and mission

• CR topics are becoming ever more visible.

Respect for human rights •  Processes for assessing and respecting human rights in accordance with the National Action Plan for Business and Human 
Rights (NAP) of the Federal Government have been implemented.

Appropriate working environment, 
health and safety

•  The TÜV NORD GROUP’s occupational health management programme is promoting the health and increasing the satisfaction 
of our employees. 

• The infrastructure provided and the working environment support innovative, creative and healthy work.

Diversity and inclusion • Equality of opportunity is guaranteed for all employees.

Targeted social commitment 
consistent with our value creation

•  Donations and sponsorship projects in the Group are being systematically recorded. The associated commitment is in 
accordance with value creation or linked with local or regional projects.

• Opportunities for ecological and social commitment on the part of employees are being promoted.

  

Topic Goals

Environmentally friendly travel 
behaviour

•  CO2e emissions from business-related travel will be avoided, reduced or off set to make them carbon neutral by 2030.

Energy effi  ciency in buildings •  The energy effi  ciency of the buildings we use is constantly increasing and CO2e emissions from the use of buildings are being 
avoided, reduced or off set to bring about their carbon-neutrality by 2030.

Resource effi  ciency and 
economy

• Resources are used in a purposeful and effi  cient manner within the Group and recycled after use.
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  “ C O M PA N Y ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N
Topic Goals

Sustainable innovations and 
services

•  Corporate Responsibility is established as a parameter for the evaluation of our innovations and services. In particular, our 
innovation and portfolio management promotes ideas and concepts that contribute to sustainable development in economic, 
ecological and social terms.

Digital business models, processes 
and tools

•  The development and expansion of digital business models is promoted.
•  In the context of the TÜV NORD GROUP's process landscape, the meaningful digitalisation of business processes is underway/

an active aspiration.

Integrity and compliance •  With its structure, processes and measures, the Compliance Management System (CMS) is ensuring compliance with the 
rules. The CMS is reinforcing integrity as the basis of all our actions, for each individual employee and for the TÜV NORD 
GROUP as a whole.

•  A training programme for integrity and compliance has been introduced throughout the Group.

Responsibility in the value chain •  Awareness of sustainability matters has been generated at management level.
•  Sustainability criteria have been integrated into procurement processes.
•  Participation in CR ratings, rankings and assessments is being maintained and meaningfully expanded.

Integration of Group companies 
into non-fi nancial reporting

•  Through joint strategies and their implementation, the integration, success and sense of togetherness of all Group compa-
nies, both domestic and international, are increasing. The CR Strategy is making an important contribution to the creation of 
meaning and value orientation.

  

R O A D M A P  2 0 2 3  –  T O P I C S  A N D  G O A L S  P E R  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

  “ C O M PA N Y ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

  “ P E O P L E ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

  “ E N V I R O N M E N T ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

Topic Goals

Values-oriented corporate and 
Human Resource  management

•  The TÜV NORD GROUP is perceived by its employees as acting sustainably in accordance with values. The established man-
a ge ment guidelines of the TÜV NORD GROUP are being put into practice, management development programmes are serving 
to communicate them, and employees perceive the leadership to be adequate when measured according to the guidelines.

Individual development and 
advancement of employees

•  Flexible opportunities for the professional development of our employees are being systematically and continuously 
expanded and adapted to requirements.

•  The development of our employees is taking place based on dialogue, transparently and in a way which acknowledges staff  
needs. When it comes to appointments, internal candidates can primarily be called on.

•  The open culture of feedback is being systematically promoted and expanded.

Societal role in accordance with our 
vision and mission

• CR topics are becoming ever more visible.

Respect for human rights •  Processes for assessing and respecting human rights in accordance with the National Action Plan for Business and Human 
Rights (NAP) of the Federal Government have been implemented.

Appropriate working environment, 
health and safety

•  The TÜV NORD GROUP’s occupational health management programme is promoting the health and increasing the satisfaction 
of our employees. 

• The infrastructure provided and the working environment support innovative, creative and healthy work.

Diversity and inclusion • Equality of opportunity is guaranteed for all employees.

Targeted social commitment 
consistent with our value creation

•  Donations and sponsorship projects in the Group are being systematically recorded. The associated commitment is in 
accordance with value creation or linked with local or regional projects.

• Opportunities for ecological and social commitment on the part of employees are being promoted.

  

Topic Goals

Environmentally friendly travel 
behaviour

•  CO2e emissions from business-related travel will be avoided, reduced or off set to make them carbon neutral by 2030.

Energy effi  ciency in buildings •  The energy effi  ciency of the buildings we use is constantly increasing and CO2e emissions from the use of buildings are being 
avoided, reduced or off set to bring about their carbon-neutrality by 2030.

Resource effi  ciency and 
economy

• Resources are used in a purposeful and effi  cient manner within the Group and recycled after use.
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The TÜV NORD GROUP is strategically positioning itself as a leading company in 
the TIC industry with regard to the ecologically, economically and socially sustainable 

design of its product and service portfolio; its positioning strategy includes 
identifying and moving into sustainable growth areas and applying sustainability 

criteria to innovations and services.

“Our corporate success is linked 
with the positive contribution 
we make to the sustainable 

development of the economy, 
society and the environment.”

Company



In conversation with 
Carsten Becker, 
Director of Innovation 
Management in 
the Industrial Services 
business unit

Sustainability is a Goal 
Worth Pursuing!

What role is sustainability playing in the 
innovation and digitalisation process of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP? Every innovation we 
launch today has sustainability as an impor-
tant evaluation criterion. This means that 
the sustainability assessment is a key factor 
in any decision to continue to pursue an idea. 
Of course, we also look at opportunities and 
risks, for example with regard to profi tability 
and reputation, but none of these factors 
enjoys the same detailed and thorough con-
sideration as the sustainability issue. 

How do you determine exactly whether an 
idea or a project is sustainable? We use our 
catalogue of criteria for sustainability as 
a benchmark; this has over 70 points and 
is based on the Sustainability Goals of the 
United Nations: will the service have an 
impact on water quality, will it improve food 
supply, will it reduce emissions ... We assess 
the extent of the positive or, potentially, 
negative impact of our innovation in the light 
of these points.  

And what happens if the project has a nega-
tive impact? In the case of slightly negative 
eff ects, we determine whether the negative 
impact can be signifi cantly reduced or even 
eliminated; in the case of strongly negative 
eff ects, the idea is shelved.  

Which of our current innovation projects 
are particularly sustainable? With remote 
inspections, we can massively reduce 
our emissions. In this way, we carry out 
inspections or audits, in whole or in part, by 
video link. Our experts don’t have to fl y to 
the location, and other specialists provided 
by our customers can also easily be brought 
in; on site, a local expert controls the camera 
and works with the team on the ground.
 This is now possible in many diff erent 
areas, for example in monitoring wind 

turbine production, carrying out damage 
assessments on cars or inspecting lightning 
conductors.  
 Another very important subject is hydro-
gen, which is one of the key technologies 
available to us to make our society more 
sustainable. In the HydroHub, we have 
pooled our knowledge and skills from all the 
business units so that we can work with our 
customers on driving this technology with 
all the energy at our disposal.  

How important is the sustainability of a ser-
vice to our customers? Awareness of sustain-
able services has grown very sharply, albeit 
of course with individual diff erences. The big 
advantage – one that gets forgotten by many 
people – is that sustainability is often asso-
ciated with a reduction in consumption of 
resources, which in turn reduces costs. This 
is also viewed positively by those for whom 
sustainability is less of a burning issue. Sus-
tainability is a goal worth pursuing!

And how are you supporting companies 
in their eff orts to act more sustainably 
themselves? By helping them measure their 
ecological footprint, for instance. To help 
them with this, we draw up an evaluation 
catalogue and make specifi c suggestions as 
to how the individual points can be im-
proved. With the CSR Performance Ladder, 
which is based on the ISO 26000 standard 
entitled “Guidance on Social Responsibility”, 
an organisation can continuously develop in 
this area, and, with the Sustainability Rating, 
companies can see how sustainable they 
are compared to the rest of the industry. 
In some cases, all this requires a very deep 
technical understanding of the various 
industries – and as a knowledge company, 
we’re well positioned for this.  
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32 % 5 % 26 %37 %

 

Through our innovation management, we are promoting ideas and concepts that will contribute to sustainable 
development. Since 2020, we have been carrying out sustainability assessments for the entire portfolio of 

innovation projects in the German companies of the TÜV NORD GROUP. We use in-house assessment criteria to 
carry out a qualitative assessment of the impact of our innovation projects on the United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals. The Sustainability Index that is determined in this way is included in the overall assess-

ment of our innovation projects and helps us to exploit growth opportunities for our company in 
sustainable areas.

The infographic shows the SDGs which all our innovation projects in the 
“Company” fi eld of action are having an impact on. According to the 
Sustainability Assessment, SDGs 8, 9, 12 and 17 are the crucial ones.  

For each SDG, we describe a selected innovation 
project and its impact.

Information Centred Evaluation 

(Code Quality Matrix) 

Analytical method to ensure quality 

in the source code of software 

products – impact of the project: 

ensuring software quality is an 

important component for sustainable 

economic growth in our digitalised 

world. As well as reducing the burdens 

on employees and the environment by 

avoiding the need to travel, this fully 

digitalised and accelerated test 

procedure is resulting in faster 

development cycles. In this way, 

we are also driving our customers’ 

digitalisation processes. 

HydroHub

Strategic and holistic further 

development of hydrogen-related 

technologies by pooling available 

technical information and 

data – impact of the project: 

climate-friendly hydrogen has a key 

role to play in improving resource 

effi  ciency in industry, sustainable 

economic growth and the develop-

ment of technology. With new 

products and collaborations within 

the framework of the Hydrogen 

Alliance, we are contributing to the 

development of a resilient and 

sustainable hydrogen infrastructure. 

CERA4in1

First universal certifi cation system for 

minerals; evaluation of sustainability 

criteria along the entire value 

chain – impact of the project: with 

this certifi cation, we are creating 

transparency, clarifying sustainability 

questions in the mineral value chain 

and playing our part in encouraging 

users to opt for sustainable solutions. 

Moreover, we can use the standard to 

have an infl uence, for instance, on 

ecological issues such as reducing the 

volume of waste. 

Next-level autonomous driving

Development of guidelines for type 

approvals and test procedures for 

automated driving  – impact of the 

project: we are making our results 

available to partner organisations, 

exchanging ideas with other actors 

from business and science and 

working in global partnerships on 

industry-wide solutions for 

environmentally friendly autonomous 

driving. In this way, we are jointly 

promoting the further development of 

environmentally friendly technologies 

and thus contributing to a long-term 

transition toward sustainable mobility.

Management Approach, 
Topics and Control

“ C O M PA N Y ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N 

As a company, we have a responsibility to position our business 
model with integrity and viability for the future and to increase the 
positive eff ects of our ecological, economic and social impacts. We 
want to achieve this primarily through the sustainable design of our 
products and services. At the same time, we want to accelerate the 
promotion of innovative digital technologies that will contribute to 
sustainable development. In doing so, we always follow our 
corporate vision with its three elements: “Technical. Digital. 
Connected.”.

In 2020, we adopted our “Strategy2025”, which defi nes sustainabil-
ity as a central pillar alongside innovation and digitalisation. The 
commitment to sustainability-oriented and innovative value 
creation anchored in the strategy is also refl ected in the sub-strate-
gies of our six business units. Each sub-strategy includes its own 
sustainability and innovation goals to the year 2025.  

We have set out our innovation and digitalisation goals in the 
sub-strategy entitled “Innovation and Digitalisation”. This serves as 
a framework for implementation in our operational business and 
defi nes the path we are taking to becoming a data-driven company. 
In the Group policy on innovation management, which is based on 
the ISO 56000 family, we defi ne the holistic process by which our 
innovations are evaluated. Among other things, our innovations 
must undergo an assessment with defi ned sustainability criteria. 
The “Digitalisation and Innovation” functional division is responsible 
for the Group-wide management of sustainability in the area of 
innovation and for digitalisation. 

In addition, from 2022 onwards, we will also evaluate our existing 
products in terms of sustainability to allow us to review and 
manage the impact of our product and service portfolio on 
sustainable development in a structured manner. The responsibility 
for implementation lies with the product managers of the operating 
units.

Integrity and compliance form the basis of our business activities. 
At the TÜV NORD GROUP, we thrive on the confi dence of our 
stakeholders in the safety, reliability and quality of our products 
and services. We reinforce this confi dence by ensuring that the 
conduct of every employee in every business unit is legally 
compliant, responsible and trustworthy. 

We use a compliance management system (CMS) to guarantee 
integrity and compliance within the TÜV NORD GROUP. In addition 
to specifi cations for structures, processes and controls, the CMS 
also includes preventive measures to identify compliance risks in 
the Group and, where possible, to rule them out. Since 2021, overall 
responsibility for compliance has rested with the Human Resources 
management. The central point of contact for all compliance issues 
is the Compliance contact person, who reports directly to the Board 
of Management. The individual business units are responsible for 
the local implementation of compliance requirements. Our mission 
statement, including the management guidelines, and our Code of 
Conduct also provide the employees of the TÜV NORD GROUP with 
important rules for action.

The audit and inspection business areas show how digitalisation, 
innovation and compliance can be combined in a single project. 
Through digitalisation in the form of remote audits and remote 
inspections, we can provide these services regardless of location 
and save greenhouse gas emissions by eliminating the need for 
business travel. We use unmanned aerial vehicles and smart 
glasses, for example. The Industrial Services business unit is 
currently reviewing more than 40 possible use cases as part of an 
innovation programme. 

As an international organisation, we also take responsibility for our 
subsidiaries in all regions of the world and, as of this reporting year, 
are going to integrate them into our CR reporting in line with a 
step-by-step plan. 

So that we can live up to our responsibility along the value chain, 
our high sustainability standards are also binding on our key 
business partners. The framework for sustainable procurement is 
provided by our Group “Purchasing” and “Subcontractors” policies. 
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Management Approach, 
Topics and Control

“ C O M PA N Y ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N 

As a company, we have a responsibility to position our business 
model with integrity and viability for the future and to increase the 
positive eff ects of our ecological, economic and social impacts. We 
want to achieve this primarily through the sustainable design of our 
products and services. At the same time, we want to accelerate the 
promotion of innovative digital technologies that will contribute to 
sustainable development. In doing so, we always follow our 
corporate vision with its three elements: “Technical. Digital. 
Connected.”.

In 2020, we adopted our “Strategy2025”, which defi nes sustainabil-
ity as a central pillar alongside innovation and digitalisation. The 
commitment to sustainability-oriented and innovative value 
creation anchored in the strategy is also refl ected in the sub-strate-
gies of our six business units. Each sub-strategy includes its own 
sustainability and innovation goals to the year 2025.  

We have set out our innovation and digitalisation goals in the 
sub-strategy entitled “Innovation and Digitalisation”. This serves as 
a framework for implementation in our operational business and 
defi nes the path we are taking to becoming a data-driven company. 
In the Group policy on innovation management, which is based on 
the ISO 56000 family, we defi ne the holistic process by which our 
innovations are evaluated. Among other things, our innovations 
must undergo an assessment with defi ned sustainability criteria. 
The “Digitalisation and Innovation” functional division is responsible 
for the Group-wide management of sustainability in the area of 
innovation and for digitalisation. 

In addition, from 2022 onwards, we will also evaluate our existing 
products in terms of sustainability to allow us to review and 
manage the impact of our product and service portfolio on 
sustainable development in a structured manner. The responsibility 
for implementation lies with the product managers of the operating 
units.

Integrity and compliance form the basis of our business activities. 
At the TÜV NORD GROUP, we thrive on the confi dence of our 
stakeholders in the safety, reliability and quality of our products 
and services. We reinforce this confi dence by ensuring that the 
conduct of every employee in every business unit is legally 
compliant, responsible and trustworthy. 

We use a compliance management system (CMS) to guarantee 
integrity and compliance within the TÜV NORD GROUP. In addition 
to specifi cations for structures, processes and controls, the CMS 
also includes preventive measures to identify compliance risks in 
the Group and, where possible, to rule them out. Since 2021, overall 
responsibility for compliance has rested with the Human Resources 
management. The central point of contact for all compliance issues 
is the Compliance contact person, who reports directly to the Board 
of Management. The individual business units are responsible for 
the local implementation of compliance requirements. Our mission 
statement, including the management guidelines, and our Code of 
Conduct also provide the employees of the TÜV NORD GROUP with 
important rules for action.

The audit and inspection business areas show how digitalisation, 
innovation and compliance can be combined in a single project. 
Through digitalisation in the form of remote audits and remote 
inspections, we can provide these services regardless of location 
and save greenhouse gas emissions by eliminating the need for 
business travel. We use unmanned aerial vehicles and smart 
glasses, for example. The Industrial Services business unit is 
currently reviewing more than 40 possible use cases as part of an 
innovation programme. 

As an international organisation, we also take responsibility for our 
subsidiaries in all regions of the world and, as of this reporting year, 
are going to integrate them into our CR reporting in line with a 
step-by-step plan. 

So that we can live up to our responsibility along the value chain, 
our high sustainability standards are also binding on our key 
business partners. The framework for sustainable procurement is 
provided by our Group “Purchasing” and “Subcontractors” policies. 



      Contributing to Innovation 
Increases Satisfaction

In conversation with 
Dr. Roland Bursy, 
Director of HR Strategy 
and Talent Management

With the "Strategy2025", the Group is 
continuing to intensify its focus on innova-
tion and sustainability. What do these issues 
have to do with employer attractiveness? 
Sustainability is a major competitive factor. 
In business, but also in the competition for 
talent. More and more applicants are paying 
attention to whether companies are operat-
ing and positioning themselves sustainably. 
And we will only be able to keep many of 
our colleagues in the TÜV NORD GROUP in 
the long term if we promote and develop the 
sustainability agenda. 
 For me, making the link between inno-
vation and employer attractiveness means 
creating the space for creative work. If I can 
contribute to creating something new and 
making sure our Group stays relevant in the 
future, then that’s a very satisfying feeling. 
It’s important for us to continue to off er this 
space in the future, coupled with a good 
culture of learning from mistakes.

The TÜV NORD GROUP is the birthplace of nu-
merous innovations. To what extent do these 
aff ect employee satisfaction?  Employee 
satisfaction certainly doesn’t depend on how 
many innovations reach market maturity. 
What matters much more is that I can make 
a personal contribution. If my input leads to 
the creation of something new that moves 
the company forward, then I think that 
provides satisfaction.  

Health protection and work-life balance are 
becoming increasingly important. To what 
extent can innovations help to promote these 
areas in the TÜV NORD GROUP? Health is and 
will remain a highly relevant issue when 
it comes to employer attractiveness. We 
know this and have been off ering a wide 
range of health measures for many years. 
We’ve also seen an increase in the desire for 
location-fl exible work, which has a positive 
impact on both health and work-life balance. 
This is another area where we’re off ering 

solutions. There are now numerous tools to 
conduct meetings and workshops remotely. 
But, of course, those who can’t work from 
home don’t have to miss out on health ser-
vices. Here the topic of the working environ-
ment is important.  

The individual development of employees 
is one of the goals of the CR Roadmap 2023. 
How can this be guaranteed if people hardly 
ever meet face to face anymore? Develop-
ment always goes in tandem with feedback. 
This is why it’s important to have a lively 
and vibrant feedback culture, not only 
between managers and their staff , but also 
between employees. This dialogue works 
both digitally and in personal conversations. 
Our HR development department regularly 
informs managers about the programmes 
available for further staff  development, and 
employees are of course also encouraged to 
consider which area of development they’re 
interested in pursuing.  

Which themes does the TÜV NORD GROUP 
need to engage with if it’s going to continue 
to be able to position itself as an attractive 
employer? The primary issue is job securi-
ty. We’re constantly being reminded how 
volatile the economy is. This is also having 
an impact on jobs. We’re well placed to score 
highly in this area. But to do that, we’re 
going to have to face up to the issues I cited 
above. What are we doing to keep our em-
ployees healthy? How are we dealing with 
sustainability? Are we giving our employees 
the scope they need to innovate? Another 
cornerstone of our strategy is internation-
ality. Young people in particular want to be 
part of an international team. In general, a 
policy of diversity that is put into practice 
in real life is a marker for a good corporate 
culture.  
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People

The TÜV NORD GROUP is strategically positioning itself as a leading company in the 
TIC industry with regard to the authentic communication of the meaningfulness and 

positive infl uence of its business activities on people and their basis of existence, 
acting responsibly at all times towards internal and external stakeholders and 
establishing itself as a values-oriented company with a positive infl uence as 

a social actor.

“To be truly meaningful, individual 
human development must take place 

in the context of society.”



      Contributing to Innovation 
Increases Satisfaction

In conversation with 
Dr. Roland Bursy, 
Director of HR Strategy 
and Talent Management

With the "Strategy2025", the Group is 
continuing to intensify its focus on innova-
tion and sustainability. What do these issues 
have to do with employer attractiveness? 
Sustainability is a major competitive factor. 
In business, but also in the competition for 
talent. More and more applicants are paying 
attention to whether companies are operat-
ing and positioning themselves sustainably. 
And we will only be able to keep many of 
our colleagues in the TÜV NORD GROUP in 
the long term if we promote and develop the 
sustainability agenda. 
 For me, making the link between inno-
vation and employer attractiveness means 
creating the space for creative work. If I can 
contribute to creating something new and 
making sure our Group stays relevant in the 
future, then that’s a very satisfying feeling. 
It’s important for us to continue to off er this 
space in the future, coupled with a good 
culture of learning from mistakes.

The TÜV NORD GROUP is the birthplace of nu-
merous innovations. To what extent do these 
aff ect employee satisfaction?  Employee 
satisfaction certainly doesn’t depend on how 
many innovations reach market maturity. 
What matters much more is that I can make 
a personal contribution. If my input leads to 
the creation of something new that moves 
the company forward, then I think that 
provides satisfaction.  

Health protection and work-life balance are 
becoming increasingly important. To what 
extent can innovations help to promote these 
areas in the TÜV NORD GROUP? Health is and 
will remain a highly relevant issue when 
it comes to employer attractiveness. We 
know this and have been off ering a wide 
range of health measures for many years. 
We’ve also seen an increase in the desire for 
location-fl exible work, which has a positive 
impact on both health and work-life balance. 
This is another area where we’re off ering 

solutions. There are now numerous tools to 
conduct meetings and workshops remotely. 
But, of course, those who can’t work from 
home don’t have to miss out on health ser-
vices. Here the topic of the working environ-
ment is important.  

The individual development of employees 
is one of the goals of the CR Roadmap 2023. 
How can this be guaranteed if people hardly 
ever meet face to face anymore? Develop-
ment always goes in tandem with feedback. 
This is why it’s important to have a lively 
and vibrant feedback culture, not only 
between managers and their staff , but also 
between employees. This dialogue works 
both digitally and in personal conversations. 
Our HR development department regularly 
informs managers about the programmes 
available for further staff  development, and 
employees are of course also encouraged to 
consider which area of development they’re 
interested in pursuing.  

Which themes does the TÜV NORD GROUP 
need to engage with if it’s going to continue 
to be able to position itself as an attractive 
employer? The primary issue is job securi-
ty. We’re constantly being reminded how 
volatile the economy is. This is also having 
an impact on jobs. We’re well placed to score 
highly in this area. But to do that, we’re 
going to have to face up to the issues I cited 
above. What are we doing to keep our em-
ployees healthy? How are we dealing with 
sustainability? Are we giving our employees 
the scope they need to innovate? Another 
cornerstone of our strategy is internation-
ality. Young people in particular want to be 
part of an international team. In general, a 
policy of diversity that is put into practice 
in real life is a marker for a good corporate 
culture.  
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18 % 2 % 23 %25 % 32 %

 

25 %

Through our innovation management, we are promoting ideas and concepts that will contribute to sustainable 
development. Since 2020, we have been carrying out sustainability assessments for the entire portfolio of 

innovation projects in the German companies of the TÜV NORD GROUP. We use in-house assessment criteria 
to carry out a qualitative assessment of the impact of our innovation projects on the United Nations’ 
Sustainable Development Goals. The Sustainability Index determined in this way is included in the 

overall assessment of our innovation projects and helps us to exploit growth opportunities for our company 
in sustainable fi elds.

The infographic shows the SDGs which all our innovation projects in the 
“People” fi eld of action are having an impact on. According to the 

Sustainability Assessment, SDGs 3, 4, 7, 11 and 17 are the crucial ones.

 For each SDG, we describe a selected innovation 
project and its impact. 

Online Campus

Trialling new digital learning 

formats and developing them 

to the point of readiness for 

large-scale rollout – impact 

of the project:  with the help 

of our new, digital learning 

formats, we are further 

expanding access to high- 

quality professional and 

vocational education. We are 

thus also off ering barrier-free, 

location-independent and 

low-threshold training 

services. This is enabling us 

to make an even greater 

contribution to the 

development of expertise 

and qualifying people to 

improve their prospects on 

the labour market and 

promote lifelong learning.

Remote Inspection

Investigation of the areas of 

application in which remote 

inspections could be carried 

out – impact of the project: 

remote inspections are used, 

among other things, to 

evaluate operations and 

production processes for 

wind turbines. This 

programme is giving us the 

opportunity to contribute to 

maintaining the infrastruc-

ture of renewable energies 

and securing access to clean 

energy.

PTI 2025+

Adaptation of the hardware 

and software necessary for 

the technical examination of 

vehicles to ongoing develop-

ments in vehicle and traffi  c 

technology  – impact of the 

project: the tests we carry 

out on vehicles and traffi  c 

installations make it 

possible to avoid technical 

errors. In this way, we are 

contributing to road safety, 

the reduction of 

environmental pollution and 

the setting of limit values, 

thereby promoting 

sustainable development 

and the attractiveness of 

cities. 

Product Testing Lab in 

Bangalore

Expansion of capacity for 

product testing and develop-

ment of new, innovative 

services in a new laboratory 

in Bangalore – impact of the 

project:  with these tests we 

can detect pollutants and 

safety issues in products 

and vehicles at an early 

stage. This is allowing us to 

reduce the potential risks to 

people and the environment 

and thus to promote human 

health and the ecological 

foundations of our 

existence.

Digital Assistant Auditor

Development of a tool to 

support diff erent testing 

activities both on the ground 

and remotely – impact of the 

project: if we are to achieve 

sustainable development, we 

need partnerships and 

knowledge transfers in the 

fi eld of environmentally 

friendly technologies. 

Knowledge from diff erent 

areas is being incorporated 

into the development of the 

tool. We are working closely 

with our cooperation 

partners, using our shared 

expertise and, at the same 

time, promoting the 

development and exchange 

of knowledge.

Management Approach, 
Topics and Control

“ P E O P L E ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

At the TÜV NORD GROUP, people are at the heart of everything we 
do: after all, our employees are the key to long-term success. 
Without their expertise, creativity, motivation and performance, we 
would not be able to provide our products and services in the fi rst 
place. They are the human face of our company for our customers. 
Their work is playing a key role in shaping the future of the Group.

With our corporate culture, we are promoting and reinforcing 
sustainable and responsible action within the Group. Essential 
factors here are our values-oriented Human Resource management 
with its emphasis on appreciation, comprehensive opportunities for 
personal and professional development and respect for human 
rights along the entire value chain. For us, it is a matter of course 
to guarantee diversity, inclusion and equal opportunities and to 
create a healthy working environment which also promotes creativ-
ity. We are also demonstrating social commitment by supporting 
the voluntary activities of our employees. With this holistic 
approach, we aspire to live up to our company’s social responsibili-
ty and remain an attractive employer for skilled workers in the 
future.

We have defi ned the principles of our corporate and HR manage-
ment in the TÜV NORD GROUP’s mission statement. This contains a 
summary of our vision, mission and values. Our Code of Conduct 
fl eshes out the mission statement and provides guidance for its 
implementation. The Code of Conduct is binding on all employees of 
the TÜV NORD GROUP. Moreover, our management guidelines, 
which were adopted at the beginning of 2020, provide managers 
and employees with clearly formulated guidelines for collaboration. 
The Change and Transformation manager is responsible for 
sustainable corporate and Human Resource management.

We accompany and support our employees in their professional 
and personal development through the Talent Development 
Competence Centre and our HR Strategy. We use our integrated 
management system and Group policies and staff  agreements to 
manage the numerous training off ers available to our workforce. In 
2021, for example, we developed a new trainee programme, 
expanded our succession management scheme and improved our 
e-learning portfolio. To allow us to continue with our sustainable 

staff  development work, we transferred the corresponding 
organisational unit to the TÜV NORD Akademie last year. This is a 
way of ensuring that our internal qualifi cation scheme is closely 
dovetailed with staff  development.

Alongside the professional development of our staff , we also 
promote diversity and equal opportunities in our workforce. To this 
end, we developed the “Diversity, Inclusion & Equity” strategy in 
2021. This defi nes a number of target values that we aim to achieve 
using a variety of measures, including recruiting. We are also 
working to improve staff  health, for example with an ISO 
45001-certifi ed management system for health and safety at work. 
We are developing numerous off ers and creating a Group policy for 
its implementation.

We are expressly committed to the protection of human rights and 
thus to the principles of the UN Charter of Human Rights, the OECD 
Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the labour and social 
standards of the International Labour Organisation (ILO). In 2021, 
we also drew up a declaration of principles on respect for human 
rights. Further signifi cant requirements are also enshrined in the 
National Action Plan for Business and Human Rights and the 
Supply Chain Due Diligence Act. The central CR management team 
at the TÜV NORD AG has taken interim responsibility for coordinat-
ing their implementation in various company processes.

As a sign of how seriously we take our social responsibility, we 
joined the UN Global Compact and the Alliance for Development 
and Climate in 2021. As a result, we have also committed ourselves 
at the international level to meeting important requirements for 
sustainable action. Responsibility for our social commitment lies 
with the Corporate Communications division.
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Management Approach, 
Topics and Control

“ P E O P L E ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N

At the TÜV NORD GROUP, people are at the heart of everything we 
do: after all, our employees are the key to long-term success. 
Without their expertise, creativity, motivation and performance, we 
would not be able to provide our products and services in the fi rst 
place. They are the human face of our company for our customers. 
Their work is playing a key role in shaping the future of the Group.

With our corporate culture, we are promoting and reinforcing 
sustainable and responsible action within the Group. Essential 
factors here are our values-oriented Human Resource management 
with its emphasis on appreciation, comprehensive opportunities for 
personal and professional development and respect for human 
rights along the entire value chain. For us, it is a matter of course 
to guarantee diversity, inclusion and equal opportunities and to 
create a healthy working environment which also promotes creativ-
ity. We are also demonstrating social commitment by supporting 
the voluntary activities of our employees. With this holistic 
approach, we aspire to live up to our company’s social responsibili-
ty and remain an attractive employer for skilled workers in the 
future.

We have defi ned the principles of our corporate and HR manage-
ment in the TÜV NORD GROUP’s mission statement. This contains a 
summary of our vision, mission and values. Our Code of Conduct 
fl eshes out the mission statement and provides guidance for its 
implementation. The Code of Conduct is binding on all employees of 
the TÜV NORD GROUP. Moreover, our management guidelines, 
which were adopted at the beginning of 2020, provide managers 
and employees with clearly formulated guidelines for collaboration. 
The Change and Transformation manager is responsible for 
sustainable corporate and Human Resource management.

We accompany and support our employees in their professional 
and personal development through the Talent Development 
Competence Centre and our HR Strategy. We use our integrated 
management system and Group policies and staff  agreements to 
manage the numerous training off ers available to our workforce. In 
2021, for example, we developed a new trainee programme, 
expanded our succession management scheme and improved our 
e-learning portfolio. To allow us to continue with our sustainable 

staff  development work, we transferred the corresponding 
organisational unit to the TÜV NORD Akademie last year. This is a 
way of ensuring that our internal qualifi cation scheme is closely 
dovetailed with staff  development.

Alongside the professional development of our staff , we also 
promote diversity and equal opportunities in our workforce. To this 
end, we developed the “Diversity, Inclusion & Equity” strategy in 
2021. This defi nes a number of target values that we aim to achieve 
using a variety of measures, including recruiting. We are also 
working to improve staff  health, for example with an ISO 
45001-certifi ed management system for health and safety at work. 
We are developing numerous off ers and creating a Group policy for 
its implementation.

We are expressly committed to the protection of human rights and 
thus to the principles of the UN Charter of Human Rights, the OECD 
Guidelines for Multinational Enterprises and the labour and social 
standards of the International Labour Organisation (ILO). In 2021, 
we also drew up a declaration of principles on respect for human 
rights. Further signifi cant requirements are also enshrined in the 
National Action Plan for Business and Human Rights and the 
Supply Chain Due Diligence Act. The central CR management team 
at the TÜV NORD AG has taken interim responsibility for coordinat-
ing their implementation in various company processes.

As a sign of how seriously we take our social responsibility, we 
joined the UN Global Compact and the Alliance for Development 
and Climate in 2021. As a result, we have also committed ourselves 
at the international level to meeting important requirements for 
sustainable action. Responsibility for our social commitment lies 
with the Corporate Communications division.



       Climate Protection is the 
Key Challenge of Our Age

In conversation with 
Marija Steinmeier, 
Head of Strategy and Innovation 
Management in the Mobility 
business unit.

What role do environmental issues cur-
rently play in the TÜV NORD GROUP? The 
responsible and environmentally conscious 
use of resources is a fundamental part of 
our self-view. We never lose sight of the 
goal of ensuring that our corporate success 
also makes a contribution to the sustainable 
development of society and, in particular, to 
the preservation of our environment. In terms 
of the issues of environmental and climate 
protection, awareness of the problem among 
the general population has increased signifi -
cantly in recent years and also imposed more 
stringent requirements on us. 

Why should the companies of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP use innovations in 
particular to contribute to sustainable 
development in the environmental fi eld? 
We see the protection of the climate and the 
environment as an essential challenge of our 
age. Here, we can send a clear signal. We’re 
steering a course of environmental protection 
in our Group and aligning the way we provide 
our services, our internal processes and our 
consumption patterns even more strong-
ly with sustainability and environmental 
protection. We’ve also expanded our service 
portfolio and are now off ering our customers 
services which promote sustainable thinking 
and action, including in the fi eld of renewable 
energies, the use of hydrogen and sustainable 
mobility applications.

How is the Mobility business unit imple-
menting this in practice? Since we provide a 
large part of our services on site at custom-
ers' premises – for example in car dealerships 
and workshops or at vehicle manufacturers 
– our travel patterns are a relevant lever for 
reducing air pollution. We’re making the iden-
tifi cation of CO

2
 savings potential in our daily 

journeys and on business trips a top priority. 
We avoid journeys where possible and are 
switching to carbon-neutral or low-emission 
alternatives. 

The point of our initiatives is to rethink our 
existing services. For example, we’re invest-
ing a lot of energy in developing processes 
that will allow us to off er remote services in 
a way that will bring clear benefi ts, and we’re 
implementing a concept that will allow us to 
reduce the emissions of our fl eet in the near 
future and make our entire fl eet carbon- 
neutral by 2030. 

Please give us an example of an innovation 
project and describe its specifi c eff ects on 
environmental/climate protection. We’ve 
set up a targeted innovation project to re-
search into alternative drives, with the aim of 
consistently aligning our tests of safety- and 
environmentally-relevant components in ve-
hicles and their batteries with the ever more 
stringent requirements of our customers. As 
an independent inspection company, it’s our 
responsibility to have the best test proce-
dures at our disposal so that new technolo-
gies can be used safely, responsibly and sus-
tainably. We can already off er our customers 
all the testing procedures which are relevant 
to the approval of electric vehicles. 

Which issues are you addressing with 
regard to the increasingly connected nature 
of the mobility of the future and the result-
ing challenges for technology and society? 
New forms of propulsion, electric motors, the 
phasing out of the combustion engine, fully 
automated driving, sensor technology, cloud-
based navigation, digitalised traffi  c control 
systems ... These are all matters that are 
setting the pace for us in the further devel-
opment of our services and the realignment 
of our portfolio as well as themselves being 
subject to constant change. That’s why we 
also see sustainability as a process. We won’t 
stint on our commitment to improving what 
we do.
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Environment

The TÜV NORD GROUP is explicitly committed to the 1.5-degree target, has 
undertaken to decarbonise its operations by 2030 and is strategically positioning 
itself as a leading company in the TIC industry with regard to environmental and 

climate protection.

“Climate protection and the 
preservation of the basic support 

systems for our way of life are 
among the greatest challenges of 
our time, and we will either rise to 

them together or not at all.”



       Climate Protection is the 
Key Challenge of Our Age

In conversation with 
Marija Steinmeier, 
Head of Strategy and Innovation 
Management in the Mobility 
business unit.

What role do environmental issues cur-
rently play in the TÜV NORD GROUP? The 
responsible and environmentally conscious 
use of resources is a fundamental part of 
our self-view. We never lose sight of the 
goal of ensuring that our corporate success 
also makes a contribution to the sustainable 
development of society and, in particular, to 
the preservation of our environment. In terms 
of the issues of environmental and climate 
protection, awareness of the problem among 
the general population has increased signifi -
cantly in recent years and also imposed more 
stringent requirements on us. 

Why should the companies of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP use innovations in 
particular to contribute to sustainable 
development in the environmental fi eld? 
We see the protection of the climate and the 
environment as an essential challenge of our 
age. Here, we can send a clear signal. We’re 
steering a course of environmental protection 
in our Group and aligning the way we provide 
our services, our internal processes and our 
consumption patterns even more strong-
ly with sustainability and environmental 
protection. We’ve also expanded our service 
portfolio and are now off ering our customers 
services which promote sustainable thinking 
and action, including in the fi eld of renewable 
energies, the use of hydrogen and sustainable 
mobility applications.

How is the Mobility business unit imple-
menting this in practice? Since we provide a 
large part of our services on site at custom-
ers' premises – for example in car dealerships 
and workshops or at vehicle manufacturers 
– our travel patterns are a relevant lever for 
reducing air pollution. We’re making the iden-
tifi cation of CO

2
 savings potential in our daily 

journeys and on business trips a top priority. 
We avoid journeys where possible and are 
switching to carbon-neutral or low-emission 
alternatives. 

The point of our initiatives is to rethink our 
existing services. For example, we’re invest-
ing a lot of energy in developing processes 
that will allow us to off er remote services in 
a way that will bring clear benefi ts, and we’re 
implementing a concept that will allow us to 
reduce the emissions of our fl eet in the near 
future and make our entire fl eet carbon- 
neutral by 2030. 

Please give us an example of an innovation 
project and describe its specifi c eff ects on 
environmental/climate protection. We’ve 
set up a targeted innovation project to re-
search into alternative drives, with the aim of 
consistently aligning our tests of safety- and 
environmentally-relevant components in ve-
hicles and their batteries with the ever more 
stringent requirements of our customers. As 
an independent inspection company, it’s our 
responsibility to have the best test proce-
dures at our disposal so that new technolo-
gies can be used safely, responsibly and sus-
tainably. We can already off er our customers 
all the testing procedures which are relevant 
to the approval of electric vehicles. 

Which issues are you addressing with 
regard to the increasingly connected nature 
of the mobility of the future and the result-
ing challenges for technology and society? 
New forms of propulsion, electric motors, the 
phasing out of the combustion engine, fully 
automated driving, sensor technology, cloud-
based navigation, digitalised traffi  c control 
systems ... These are all matters that are 
setting the pace for us in the further devel-
opment of our services and the realignment 
of our portfolio as well as themselves being 
subject to constant change. That’s why we 
also see sustainability as a process. We won’t 
stint on our commitment to improving what 
we do.
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Through our innovation management, we are promoting ideas and concepts that will contribute to sustainable 
development. Since 2020, we have been carrying out sustainability assessments for the entire portfolio of 

innovation projects in the German companies of the TÜV NORD GROUP. We use in-house assessment 
criteria to carry out qualitative assessments of the impact of our innovation projects on the United Nations’ 

Sustainable Development Goals. The Sustainability Index determined in this way is included in the 
overall assessment of our innovation projects and helps us to exploit growth opportunities for our 

company in sustainable areas.

The infographic shows the SDGs which all our Innovation projects in the 
“environment” fi eld of action are having an impact on. According to the 
Sustainability Assessment, SDGs 6, 13, 14 and 15 are the crucial ones.

For each SDG, we describe a selected innovation 
project and its impact. 

EPC projects DMT/Encos

Merger of the plant construction 

portfolios of two operative units for 

use in the chemical and petrochemical 

sectors and for the purpose of shared 

internationalisation – impact of the 

project: by optimising wastewater 

treatment and retreating contaminat-

ed wastewater in plant engineering, 

we can reduce water pollution and 

improve wastewater quality. With the 

help of in-plant wastewater reuse, it 

will in principle be possible to 

optimise water consumption, thereby 

contributing to resource effi  ciency.

eMobility

Expansion of the Mobility business 

unit with the aim of developing new 

off ers for e-mobility along the value 

chain, e.g. in the battery fi eld – im pact 

of the project:  by expanding our 

services in the fi eld of alternative 

drives, we are actively integrating 

climate protection measures into our 

company portfolio. By expanding 

resources in the fi eld of e-mobility, 

we are also promoting awareness of 

climate protection.

FoodLab in Indonesia and Thailand

The establishment and expansion of 

laboratory capacities for innovative 

audits and tests in the food sector in 

south-east Asia – impact of the 

project: with the controls carried out 

in these labs, we are contributing to 

environmental and food safety, e.g. by 

checking for pesticide residues and 

pollutants and examining drinking 

water and wastewater. The results are 

providing information about the state 

of water bodies, seas and oceans.

Green Button

Co-development of the criteria for the 

“Grüner Knopf” (“Green Button”) state 

seal for sustainable textiles and, as 

one of the fi rst qualifi ed auditing and 

certifi cation bodies, support in its 

practical implementation – impact of 

the project: the Green Button takes 

into account both human rights and 

social and ecological criteria in the 

production of textiles. As part of the 

audit, we verify, for example, the 

biodegradability of chemical 

substances or whether hazardous 

chemicals or pesticides have been 

used. In this way, we are contributing 

to the protection of ecosystems and 

the preservation of biological diversity. 

Management Approach, 
Topics and Control

“ E N V I R O N M E N T ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N 

Since 2020, sustainability has been a guiding principle of our 
Group and one of the four pillars of our “Strategy2025”. 

With the aim of sending an even clearer signal of our intentions in 
environmental and climate protection, we committed in 2020 to 
becoming carbon-neutral by 2030. Our declared and ambitious goal 
is to reduce CO2e emissions to zero by then for business trips, the 
use of real estate and the consumption of resources. As an 
intermediate step, we have set ourselves the target by 2025 of 
reducing CO2e emissions by 55% in comparison to the 2019 fi gure. 
In our implementation of this target, we will follow the triad of 
“avoid, reduce, off set”:

 ■ We are avoiding generating emissions within the company, for 
example, by developing new, digital ways of providing services 
and dispensing with unnecessary business travel and trips.

 ■ We are reducing the company's own emissions, for example by 
increasing the energy effi  ciency of our buildings, creating 
incentives to use low-emission means of transport such as rail 
and providing our employees with a climate-friendly vehicle 
fl eet.

 ■ In principle, we use a certifi ed climate protection project to 
compensate for the emissions that we cannot avoid or reduce to 
the planned extent.  

We have defi ned our goals and the specifi c measures and responsi-
bilities for the “Environment” fi eld of action in the Group’s CR 
Roadmap. We will also integrate this information into our environ-
mental management system (EMS). In this way, we will manage 
and monitor the implementation in a targeted manner and thus 
ensure that the emissions targets are achieved. Our EMS is certifi ed 
according to ISO 14001 and binding on all companies of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP. 

We envisage managing this process on two levels: at Group level, 
Group-wide reduction targets are set and their achievement is 
reviewed annually as part of CR reporting. The individual business 
units set their own reduction targets and work with the operating 
companies to establish a process control system for the implemen-
tation of the set reduction targets. At Group level, TÜV NORD AG 
ensures that the division-specifi c objectives are harmonised 
throughout the Group. The processes mentioned above are under 
development and have reached diff erent levels of maturity. Overall, 

they are expected to take eff ect in 2022. To this end, reduction 
targets as long-term incentives are already part of the target 
agreements with decision-makers at business unit level.

The implementation of the emission targets requires the right key 
fi gures and data. To calculate the emissions, both central and 
decentralised data sources are used. The centrally available data 
include travel-relevant data, such as kilometres travelled by train, 
car or plane, and the emissions data of the properties managed by 
the TÜV NORD GROUP. On the other hand, the energy data for 
rented properties and the travel data of the companies which are 
not yet connected to SAP or integrated into the central recording 
processes are available from the operating companies themselves 
rather than centrally. 

In order to support the recording, controlling and reporting 
processes, we have developed a Group-wide database which is 
currently in its pilot phase. All organisational units that contribute 
to the collection of emissions-relevant data will add their data to 
this database from 2022 onwards. 

With our many measures, we are striving to avoid and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions as far as we possibly can. As a result, we 
managed to achieve our reduction targets for the second time in a 
row in 2021, the second year of our climate protection and carbon 
neutrality programme. This was further facilitated by the extraordi-
nary coronavirus situation. In the event that we do not achieve our 
savings targets in the future, we have identifi ed a solar energy 
project in India in cooperation with First Climate with which we 
can off set our emissions. We have selected this project according 
to previously defi ned criteria. Among other things, it should 
contribute to the Sustainable Development Goals which are also 
being pursued by the Group. It was also important for us to choose 
a certifi ed project in a country where we operate ourselves.

The photovoltaic solar park in the state of Rajasthan has a total 
installed capacity of 400 megawatts and thus avoids the emission 
of around 780,000 tons of CO2e annually. This corresponds to the 
annual electricity needs of more than one million people in India. 
This “Gold Standard” project currently meets the highest require-
ments for CO2e mitigation. These include factors such as long-term 
emissions reductions, clear verifi cation and transparency and 
positive eff ects for the local environment and the social concerns 
of the local population. 
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Management Approach, 
Topics and Control

“ E N V I R O N M E N T ”  F I E L D  O F  A C T I O N 

Since 2020, sustainability has been a guiding principle of our 
Group and one of the four pillars of our “Strategy2025”. 

With the aim of sending an even clearer signal of our intentions in 
environmental and climate protection, we committed in 2020 to 
becoming carbon-neutral by 2030. Our declared and ambitious goal 
is to reduce CO2e emissions to zero by then for business trips, the 
use of real estate and the consumption of resources. As an 
intermediate step, we have set ourselves the target by 2025 of 
reducing CO2e emissions by 55% in comparison to the 2019 fi gure. 
In our implementation of this target, we will follow the triad of 
“avoid, reduce, off set”:

 ■ We are avoiding generating emissions within the company, for 
example, by developing new, digital ways of providing services 
and dispensing with unnecessary business travel and trips.

 ■ We are reducing the company's own emissions, for example by 
increasing the energy effi  ciency of our buildings, creating 
incentives to use low-emission means of transport such as rail 
and providing our employees with a climate-friendly vehicle 
fl eet.

 ■ In principle, we use a certifi ed climate protection project to 
compensate for the emissions that we cannot avoid or reduce to 
the planned extent.  

We have defi ned our goals and the specifi c measures and responsi-
bilities for the “Environment” fi eld of action in the Group’s CR 
Roadmap. We will also integrate this information into our environ-
mental management system (EMS). In this way, we will manage 
and monitor the implementation in a targeted manner and thus 
ensure that the emissions targets are achieved. Our EMS is certifi ed 
according to ISO 14001 and binding on all companies of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP. 

We envisage managing this process on two levels: at Group level, 
Group-wide reduction targets are set and their achievement is 
reviewed annually as part of CR reporting. The individual business 
units set their own reduction targets and work with the operating 
companies to establish a process control system for the implemen-
tation of the set reduction targets. At Group level, TÜV NORD AG 
ensures that the division-specifi c objectives are harmonised 
throughout the Group. The processes mentioned above are under 
development and have reached diff erent levels of maturity. Overall, 

they are expected to take eff ect in 2022. To this end, reduction 
targets as long-term incentives are already part of the target 
agreements with decision-makers at business unit level.

The implementation of the emission targets requires the right key 
fi gures and data. To calculate the emissions, both central and 
decentralised data sources are used. The centrally available data 
include travel-relevant data, such as kilometres travelled by train, 
car or plane, and the emissions data of the properties managed by 
the TÜV NORD GROUP. On the other hand, the energy data for 
rented properties and the travel data of the companies which are 
not yet connected to SAP or integrated into the central recording 
processes are available from the operating companies themselves 
rather than centrally. 

In order to support the recording, controlling and reporting 
processes, we have developed a Group-wide database which is 
currently in its pilot phase. All organisational units that contribute 
to the collection of emissions-relevant data will add their data to 
this database from 2022 onwards. 

With our many measures, we are striving to avoid and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions as far as we possibly can. As a result, we 
managed to achieve our reduction targets for the second time in a 
row in 2021, the second year of our climate protection and carbon 
neutrality programme. This was further facilitated by the extraordi-
nary coronavirus situation. In the event that we do not achieve our 
savings targets in the future, we have identifi ed a solar energy 
project in India in cooperation with First Climate with which we 
can off set our emissions. We have selected this project according 
to previously defi ned criteria. Among other things, it should 
contribute to the Sustainable Development Goals which are also 
being pursued by the Group. It was also important for us to choose 
a certifi ed project in a country where we operate ourselves.

The photovoltaic solar park in the state of Rajasthan has a total 
installed capacity of 400 megawatts and thus avoids the emission 
of around 780,000 tons of CO2e annually. This corresponds to the 
annual electricity needs of more than one million people in India. 
This “Gold Standard” project currently meets the highest require-
ments for CO2e mitigation. These include factors such as long-term 
emissions reductions, clear verifi cation and transparency and 
positive eff ects for the local environment and the social concerns 
of the local population. 
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Since our foundation over 150 years ago we have been the 
global byword for safety and security, independence and the 
highest quality. We protect both lives and goods and play our 
part in saving natural resources. As we increasingly evolve 
into a knowledge group, we constantly take the path of di-
alogue as we transfer experience and specialist knowledge 
in diverse international teams from a wide range of back-
grounds. With their specialisms ranging from engineering, IT 
security and the mobility of tomorrow, our 14,000 employees 
are hard at work in over 100 countries to ensure that our 
customers scale ever greater heights of success and the 
world becomes a safer place.

66  “The Pandemic has made  
us more Innovative” 
Interview with Dr. Astrid Petersen
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“The Pandemic has made 
us more Innovative”
: Interview mit Dr. Astrid Petersen

Dr. Astrid Petersen is the fi rst female Chief Human Resources Offi  cer in the 
history of the TÜV NORD GROUP. In her fi rst year in her new role, she and 
her team have worked hard to master the current challenges by drawing on 
innovative and sustainable solutions. As a knowledge company, the 
TÜV NORD GROUP is driving through a process of internal change and can 
consequently look back on an economically successful year in 2021. 

2021, like the year before, was all about the pandemic. How did the TÜV NORD GROUP 
manage to survive two years of coronavirus relatively unscathed? This was only possible 
thanks to the willingness of the employees to step up their performance. Coronavirus has 
asked a lot of every employee and every manager, as it has of society as a whole. It’s our 
understanding for each other and our cohesion which have carried us through the pandemic 
largely unscathed.

A cohesion that is not so easy to create in an age of home working. We didn’t allow the 
pandemic to beat us. Quite the reverse, despite the isolation, we as a team have managed to 
think outside the boxes of country, business unit, company and hierarchy. For the fi rst time, 
around 200 HR employees from 30 countries and all the business and functional divisions 
came together for a hybrid event. The event focused on the newly developed HR Strategy for 
2025 and the PEOPLE programme based on it.  

That was an exciting event, no question.  I particularly enjoyed experiencing so many people 
from very diff erent cultures. From my conversations with staff  members, I know that it’s 
important for them to work for a cosmopolitan company that acts ethically and with social 
responsibility. However, we can only achieve this goal with a good culture of learning from 
our mistakes and relationships with one another that are based on appreciation. I’m commit-
ted to this, as are the executives and staff  councils.

Executives should always act in an exemplary manner. Your managers also had to face a situ-
ation with all kinds of changed requirements. Yes, absolutely. The importance of leadership in 
the TÜV NORD GROUP is underscored by our “LEADING by Example” award, which was 
initiated by employees in 2021. It makes me proud that we honour our own examples of 
exemplary leadership and give all our employees and managers guidance and an incentive to 
work out the principles of good leadership for themselves. A total of 41 teams from all over 
the world applied. This level of participation shows how closely employees and managers 
work together and how they want to and can rely on each other. In these challenging times, 
this is an absolute added value for the Group.

How have you supported employee health during the pandemic? The health of our employees 
is always our top priority. That’s why we planned an internal vaccination campaign at an early 
stage. We launched our vaccination programme in June 2021 and expanded our off er to 
include booster jabs in December. We were able particularly to help those employees who 
found themselves on long waiting lists at their own family doctors. Not only that, but we also 
persisted with location-independent and fl exible working models and expanded both our 
“Healthy in the Job” off ers and the learning aid scheme for employees’ children.

What role does HR work play in the success of the TÜV NORD GROUP? The 
TÜV NORD GROUP is a knowledge company which has set itself the aim of always fi nding new 
solutions for our customers. However, we can only drive innovation and digitalisation forward 
if we have the skills we need in the company to do so. To fi nd appropriate strategies and 
instruments to teach these skills to our employees and executives is one of our core responsi-
bilities in human resources.

All in all, 2021 was a challenging but also a productive year. What conclusions have you 
drawn? Collectively, we can say that the pandemic is making us more innovative and focused, 
stronger and more sustainable. This is also confi rmed by the Group-wide employee survey. 
The commitment index, which gives an indication of the emotional ties our employees feel to 
the company, once again reveals an approval rate of 72 percent. That is a whole load of trust. 
The TÜV NORD GROUP has greatly accelerated its digital transformation process during the 
pandemic. This benefi ts not only the company, but especially also our customers.  

Dr. Petersen, thank you very much for talking to us.
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solutions for our customers. However, we can only drive innovation and digitalisation forward 
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All in all, 2021 was a challenging but also a productive year. What conclusions have you 
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stronger and more sustainable. This is also confi rmed by the Group-wide employee survey. 
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Roll-out of Microsoft Teams

First OneHR-Event (hybrid event)

further Masterplan licences for employees 
(resulting from the Pulse Check) 

NEXT pilot project supports structured 
knowledge transfer.

berufundfamilie certifi cate reaffi  rmed

Focus on diversity on Diversity Day

LEADING by Example – award for the 
exemplifi cation of leadership

Vaccination programme 
launched at 4 sites

03
Awarded the accolade of Leading Employer

new employees take part in the fi rst digital 
onboarding-event

01
Childcare in lockdown

ubiMaster – free online tutoring  for 
employees’ children

Highlights of 2021
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 faiLEARN allows us once again to learn 
from the mistakes of others

Opening of the new central building in Essen

Johanna Müller is one of the best 
apprentices in NRW

 Completion of the PEOPLE HR programme 

08

09

new apprentices and dual students

Holiday programme for employees’ children

“Healthy together” initiative  
is a total success

We celebrate the Day of Languages

Benefi ts survey with 2,000 participants

Particularly colourful on PRIDE Day

56
01.10.

07
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N E W  W O R L D  O F  W O R K

What had already been hinted at in 2020 was confi rmed last 
year: The coronavirus pandemic has changed the world of work 
forever. Flexible working models and digital solutions have 
become the norm. For our corporate culture, this means standing 
shoulder-to-shoulder with our employees as we face the new 
situation and mastering the challenges with close cooperation. 
The establishment of the TÜV NORD GROUP as a knowledge 
company is proving to be a great opportunity. Our existing exper-
tise and, above all, our qualifi ed employees are allowing us to fi nd 
innovative solutions in many business units. During the pandem-
ic it also became clear that the resilience, reliability, perseverance 
and, above all, motivation of our employees would largely allow 
our business activities to proceed in a completely satisfactory 
manner. We can therefore say one thing: the TÜV NORD GROUP 
has taken advantage of the pandemic for further development. 

Corporate Culture
Especially in times of great change, we need people to courageously lead the 

way and break new ground – and there are plenty of them at a knowledge 
company like the TÜV NORD GROUP. In 18 projects, the employees in the 
Human Resources division have pulled together to come up with solutions 
that support the development of the TÜV NORD GROUP and open up new 

opportunities beyond divisional and national borders.

N E W  S E R V I C E S

Of the many concerns aff ecting people in 2021, getting vaccinat-
ed against coronavirus was perhaps the most critical. However, 
actually getting vaccinated, especially in the fi rst half of the year, 
meant long waiting times. It was for this reason that we set up vac-
cination stations at several sites to allow us to off er vaccinations in 
good time to both customers and staff . 

The vaccinations were just one step towards achieving our most 
important goal: to keep all our employees healthy. It was for 
the same reason that we expanded our remote working models. 
We developed a tool that made it possible to carry out quality 
inspections, such as monitoring the production of wind turbines, 
digitally, without requiring the inspectors to actually be on site. 
Our software solution is based on the existing regulations of the 
German accreditation body, the International Accreditation Forum 
and the International Electrotechnical Commission Renewable 
Energy. This means that it meets all the necessary certifi cation 

“International cooperation has 
allowed us to respond quickly to 
the challenges of the pandemic. 

Remote inspections will help us use 
our expertise in the long term.”

S I H A M  B A H K A N I ,  TÜV NORD Systems

“ Thanks to interdisciplinary 
project work, we brought our 
vaccination campaign to fruition 
very quickly indeed. In just a few 
weeks, we were able to vaccinate 
a significant proportion of our 
employees.”

 I R A  R E I T E M E Y E R ,  TÜV NORD Service
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that support the development of the TÜV NORD GROUP and open up new 

opportunities beyond divisional and national borders.
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Of the many concerns aff ecting people in 2021, getting vaccinat-
ed against coronavirus was perhaps the most critical. However, 
actually getting vaccinated, especially in the fi rst half of the year, 
meant long waiting times. It was for this reason that we set up vac-
cination stations at several sites to allow us to off er vaccinations in 
good time to both customers and staff . 

The vaccinations were just one step towards achieving our most 
important goal: to keep all our employees healthy. It was for 
the same reason that we expanded our remote working models. 
We developed a tool that made it possible to carry out quality 
inspections, such as monitoring the production of wind turbines, 
digitally, without requiring the inspectors to actually be on site. 
Our software solution is based on the existing regulations of the 
German accreditation body, the International Accreditation Forum 
and the International Electrotechnical Commission Renewable 
Energy. This means that it meets all the necessary certifi cation 

“International cooperation has 
allowed us to respond quickly to 
the challenges of the pandemic. 

Remote inspections will help us use 
our expertise in the long term.”

S I H A M  B A H K A N I ,  TÜV NORD Systems

“ Thanks to interdisciplinary 
project work, we brought our 
vaccination campaign to fruition 
very quickly indeed. In just a few 
weeks, we were able to vaccinate 
a significant proportion of our 
employees.”

 I R A  R E I T E M E Y E R ,  TÜV NORD Service
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guidelines. As well as reducing contacts, remote inspection also has 
advantages over its on-site counterpart, such as time fl exibility and 
the streamlining of the associated organisational work.

N E W  WAY S  O F  W O R K I N G  T O G E T H E R

To improve our teamwork, we integrated the Microsoft Teams 
platform into our internal and external communication structure. 
This software solution makes it easy to communicate via laptop or 
smartphone, whether you are working at home or out and about. 

We believe that satisfi ed employees are the most productive. For 
this reason, a project team designed a new offi  ce concept closely 
based on the feedback of our employees and the ergonomics 
fi ndings of the Fraunhofer Institute for Industrial Engineering. 
Based on the plans, we set up creative spaces, new technical 

aids, remote audit rooms and quiet zones for focused individ-
ual work at the Essen site. The architecture of the new central 
building thus now combines contemporary and creative offi  ce 
concepts and supports our open corporate culture.

The presentation of our fi rst cross-selling award emphatical-
ly demonstrated the high level of operational cohesion that 
prevails in the TÜV NORD GROUP across all business units. To 
win the award, at least two employees from diff erent working 
areas had to join forces and present a project that had already 
been placed with at least one customer. As always with the 
TÜV NORD GROUP, the jury focused on projects with a 
customer-oriented approach. 

“ The Cross-Selling Award encourages 
employees to develop new, improved 
solutions for customers so that our 
diverse expertise really plays out in 
a way that demonstrates our 
strength.”

 D I R K  H E L M O L D ,  TÜV NORD Mobilität

N E W  WAY S  O F  L E A R N I N G

As a knowledge company, it is a matter of course for us that we off er 
our employees an improved range of training opportunities every 
year. In 2021, we introduced the Masterplan digital learning platform, 
on which our employees can participate in learning sequences that 
coincide with their individual interests and meet their development 
needs. 

In addition to this digital learning off er, 2021 was the fi rst year in 
which we implemented agile learning sprints. The participating staff  
members join together to form learning groups that are designed to 
allow them work on the tasks in the course of their daily work. The 
resulting regular exchange and feedback sessions improved our 
learning culture still further. We see our portfolio of learning options 
as a key concept for success. After all, our digital transformation will 
only succeed if we acquire new knowledge.

VA C C I N AT I O N S
3,458 of which were administered to 

employees and 7,266 to customers. 

10,724

“The Group-wide introduction of 
Microsoft Teams has paved the way 

to straightforward collaboration 
across national and divisional 

borders. This is leading to greater 
international coherence within 

the Group.”
L E R O Y  R A C E T T E ,  TÜV NORD Service
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Our world has changed enormously in the past two years. With our updated HR 
strategy, we are responding to the new requirements of everyday working life. 
With its 18 projects with diff erent priorities, the Human Resources division’s 
PEOPLE programme will allow us to face the challenges of the coming years. 

At the heart of every project is our most important asset: our staff .

HR Strategy

T H E  F U T U R E  AT  A  G L A N C E

To ensure that we will remain competitive in the long term, we 
have paid early attention to working on the training of qualifi ed 
specialists and executives. In the context of the HR strategy, the 
TÜV NORD GROUP’s trainee programme was revised and adapted 
to current requirements. The aim of the project was to develop a 
structured trainee programme for university graduates to make it 
easier for them to join one of Germany’s most attractive employ-
ers, the TÜV NORD GROUP. The choice of one of the various 
disciplines, including engineering, medical, IT and management, 
is based on the strengths of the individual trainees. For universi-
ty graduates with a migrant background, the programme also 
off ers targeted language training to prepare them for their 
position of choice.

S H A R I N G  B U R D E N S  T H R O U G H  T H E  D I V I S I O N 
O F  L A B O U R

Our best results are always achieved in close cooperation. The 
focus of the “Job Sharing” project was on making the department 
more successful through the division of labour. The idea was for 

two managers in each case to join forces to take on the technical 
and disciplinary management of an organisational unit and thereby 
to benefi t from each other’s strengths. On the one hand, this 
sparring partnership, with its more fl exible working hours, enables 
a better balance between work and private life. On the other, it 
improves key leadership skills such as personal responsibility, 
trust, communication and empathy.

C O N T E M P O R A R Y  O F F I C E  C O N C E P T

The “Working Environment” project team has dedicated itself to the 
design of contemporary, needs-based and target-group-oriented 
offi  ce space. Based on scientifi c fi ndings and the experience and 
ideas of its own managers and employees, a project team came up 
with the L.O.F.T. concept, which stands for “Local Offi  ces For TÜV 
NORD”. The L.O.F.T. principle divides offi  ce space into fi ve work 
zones, with each zone aligned to a specifi c type of work: in a team 
or alone, dialogue with colleagues or mobile working on the go. The 
concept met with positive feedback from both employees and the 
Board of Management and is intended to serve as a model for 
modern workplaces at all the German sites.

“The L.O.F.T. concept, which was 
designed by employees for 

employees, is blazing a trail for the 
future design of the working 

environment in the 
TÜV NORD GROUP.”

A N N A  L E N A  B A S T I S C H ,  DMT

3 workstreams

Project success
 ■ 98% implementation overall of PEOPLE measures
 ■ 15 of 18 projects with an international scope
 ■ Approx. 100 HR employees have developed concepts for the 18 pro-
jects and prepared them to the extent that they can be implemented 
in 2022

Collaboration between business units
 ■ The employees of the HR division were free to apply for any project 
topic of their choice, depending on their interests

 ■  The project teams worked together in an interdisciplinary manner 
and organised themselves independently

 ■ The resulting networks will be used to exchange knowledge

Project management and personal development
 ■ Experiencing new working methods, roles and responsibilities
 ■ Using digital tools for effi  cient collaboration and communication
 ■ Added value through short decision-making paths and continuous 
transparencynational measures

international measures

P E O P L E  2 0 2 1  –  K E Y  FA C T S

98%
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Recruiting and 
Developing Staff

We aim to use our state-of-the-art recruiting methods, modern working conditions 
and individual opportunities for further development to stand out from the crowd 

in the highly competitive jobs market. After all, only if we are attractive as an 
employer will we be able to attract qualifi ed personnel with whom we can achieve 

our corporate goals and thus secure our growth.

 ■ For the third year in a row, the independent “Leading 
Employers” study  lists the TÜV NORD GROUP among the top 
1% of all German employers and among the top 1% of training 
companies.

 ■ The “kununu” employer evaluation platform lists the 
TÜV NORD GROUP, as before, as an Open Company and a 
Top Company

 ■ Having recognised the achievements of the fi rst individual 
companies in 2009, extending to cover the entire Group in 
2018, the “berufundfamilie” audit has confi rmed that a family- 
and life-phase-aware orientation has to a great extent been 
integrated into the organisational philosophy and strategy of 
the TÜV NORD GROUP.

 ■ The following employer rankings also rate the TÜV NORD GROUP 
positively: Glassdoor, Indeed, Trendence, Mint minded Company.

AWA R D S  &  R A N K I N G SAT T R A C T I V E  E M P L OY E R

The main objective of the HR divison is at all times to create an 
attractive work environment and good working conditions for our 
employees. In 2021, we were delighted once again to receive 
numerous awards that confi rm the quality of our work in this 
fi eld. The “Leading Employers” study once again listed the 
TÜV NORD GROUP among the top 1 percent of employers at the 
beginning of 2022. In 2021, the study analysed 160,000 companies 
throughout Germany. The evaluation takes into account the 
satisfaction of employees in evaluation portals, the experience of 
young professionals and trainees in the companies and the activity 
of the companies on career websites or in social media. The 
“berufundfamilie” audit has also awarded our company a certifi cate 
for its outstanding HR policy which is tailored to the phases of life 
and family status of its employees. 

T R E N D  I N  WO R K F O R C E  N U M B E R S  A B S O L U T E 

N U M B E R  O F  E M P L OY E E S  ( H E A D C O U N T ) 1 

 Internationally      In Germany      Total

2019 2020 2021

14,182

3,834

10,348

 
14,088

3,653

10,435

 

V O C AT I O N A L  T R A I N I N G  P O S I T I O N S

D UA L  S T U DY  C O U R S E S  W I T H  I N T E G R AT E D  P R A C T I C E

 ■ Electronics engineers for devices and systems
 ■ IT specialists for system integration
 ■ Precision mechanics
 ■ Offi  ce management employees
 ■ IT system management employees
 ■ Mechatronics engineers
 ■ Medical professionals
 ■ Surveying technicians

 ■ Applied computer sciences
 ■ Computer sciences
 ■ Electrical engineering
 ■ Mechanical engineering
 ■ Mechatronics
 ■ Human Resources management
 ■ Process engineering

P R O M O T I O N  O F  YO U N G  TA L E N T

Since 2008, the TÜV NORD GROUP has been awarding the Ger-
man group scholarship to sponsor selected students whom we 
consider to have outstanding potential for achievement in their 
daily working life. Alongside fi nancial support, we also enable 
scholarship holders to get in touch with an attractive employer 
like the TÜV NORD GROUP at an early stage and to build up a 
network with our specialists. In collaboration with the START 
Foundation, we are also supporting students with a migrant 
background. For more than three years, the START scholarship 
holders not only receive fi nancial support, but can also choose 
from a comprehensive range of educational opportunities with 
workshops, seminars and projects. 

Within the TÜV NORD GROUP, we off er numerous training 
opportunities and dual study programmes. Apprentices and 
dual students benefi t from the support of experts and training 
offi  cers, payment according to a collective agreement or in the 
form of a maintenance allowance for students and exciting prac-
tical content from the daily life of the TÜV NORD GROUP. 

1 Scope of survey: HC; worldwide; permanent and 
other staff; period: December 2021

R AT E  O F  J O B  O F F E R S
to trainees or dual students who graduated from the 

TÜV NORD GROUP in 2021.

~ 95 %

14,478

4,076

10,402
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E A R LY  P E R S O N N E L  D E V E L O P M E N T

For junior staff  in whom we see the potential for leadership, we 
off er several cross-career programmes. In the nine-month junior 
management programme known as JUMP, we prepare the partic-
ipants to take responsibility in junior management. The one-year 
Tandem mentoring programme focuses on the targeted exchange of 
professional and personal experience in a safe and non-hierarchical 
atmosphere. The international middle management programme 
is designed for prospective and current senior executives. This 
programme trains participants to deal with current and future 
challenges and hones strategic thinking for better operational 
outcomes. 

D I G I TA L  O N B O A R D I N G

Last year, we once again improved the digital onboarding process, 
which we had already revised in 2020. The aim of this process, 
with particular reference to the current situation, is to facilitate 
the integration of new employees who cannot get to know their 
new colleagues personally due to the pandemic. Alongside virtual 
meetings and dialogue sessions, including Q&A, with colleagues, 
information on the business units, informal rules, policies and pro-
cedures and the corporate culture of the TÜV NORD GROUP are all 
integral elements of digital onboarding.

WA S  I N V E S T E D  I N  T R A I N I N G  
by the TÜV NORD GROUP in 2021. This corresponds to an 

average investment value of €677 per full-time equivalent.

E X T E R N A L  E M P L O Y E E  T U R N O V E R
Last but not least, the relatively low numbers leaving the company 

also testify to the high degree of loyalty to the TÜV NORD GROUP among 

its staff . At 4.2%, we were at a similar level in 2021 as in the previous year 

(2020: 3.7%).

€ 8.1 million 

4.2 %

“ NEXT aims to ensure the long-term 
filling of success-critical management 
and specialist positions in the 
company through a structured 
transfer of knowledge.”

 A L I N A  B O V I ,  TÜV NORD Akademie

Q UA L I F I C AT I O N  S T R U C T U R E  BY  T Y P E 
O F  Q UA L I F I C AT I O N 2

42.3 %
other 

educational 
qualifi cation3   

(2020: 42.9%) 

31.7 % 
University 
degree/master’s  
(2020: 31.5%)

26 % 
Degree from a university of 
applied science/Bachelor’s 
degree (2020: 25.6%)

2 Scope of survey: Germany; active regular staff; period: December 2021
3 Other educational qualification = employees without a university degree 

summarised in this category  

P R E PA R I N G  F O R  R E T I R E M E N T

For many people, retirement marks a drastic break from their 
previous everyday lives. With the NEXT project, we take employees 
of a certain age from critical specialist and management positions 
and gradually prepare them for retirement. At the same time, we get 
potential successor candidates involved in a knowledge transfer with 
the current managers at an early stage of the project. In this way, 
NEXT will not only make it easier for long-standing employees to 
retire, but will also ensure smooth and competent succession at both 
specialist and management level. 
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of a certain age from critical specialist and management positions 
and gradually prepare them for retirement. At the same time, we get 
potential successor candidates involved in a knowledge transfer with 
the current managers at an early stage of the project. In this way, 
NEXT will not only make it easier for long-standing employees to 
retire, but will also ensure smooth and competent succession at both 
specialist and management level. 
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Conditions and 
Supplementary Benefits

W O R K- L I F E  B A L A N C E

Balancing work and private life poses major challenges for par-
ents, especially during a pandemic. The closure of day-care cen-
tres, schools and kindergartens, some of which lasted for weeks, 
made childcare extremely diffi  cult. For this reason, in 2021 we 
worked intensively on the introduction of many benefi ts to 
provide relieve for employees with children.

With numerous additional benefi ts, the TÜV NORD GROUP ensures that 
its employees feel completely looked after in the long term. In 2021, 

we once again made some major readjustments: with initiatives ranging 
from online tutoring courses for our employees’ children to holiday pro-
grammes, child and nursing care, new digital health courses and corona-
virus vaccinations, the Group responded to the diff erent life situations 

and needs of the workforce. 

AT  A  G L A N C E  ( E XC E R P T  F R O M  B E N E F I T S  2 0 2 1 )

 ■ Online tutoring courses for employees’ children
 ■ Child and nursing care
 ■ Holiday programmes
 ■ Online health courses
 ■ Coronavirus vaccinations
 ■ Extension of fl exible working hours
 ■ Location-independent working
 ■ Masterplan annual licences for interested employees

O N L I N E  T U T O R I N G  C O U R S E S

To help parents of school-age children with pandemic-related 
home-schooling, we off er them digital tutoring and learning sup-
port. The award-winning app from ubiMaster is aimed at children 
in years 5 to 13 from all types of schools. Trained tutors are on 
hand to assist the students seven days a week with individual 
questions and issues. The annual licence proved to be a complete 
success: the app reduced the stress levels of the whole family.  

H O L I D AY  P R O G R A M M E  F O R 
T Ü V  N O R D  K I D S  I N  2 0 2 1

The work-life balance is a major issue not only during school hours, 
but also during holidays. As every year, we teamed up with the 
“Funtime” child and holiday care experts to organise a holiday 
programme for our employees’ children. In the design of the activi-
ties, we wanted to make things as fun as possible for the children 
while also observing all the applicable coronavirus regulations.  

ONLINE TUTORING COURSE S

Learning support for employees’ children off ered 

by ubiMaster.

M A S T E R P L A N  U S E R S 
benefi ted from the individual learning content of the 

Masterplan learning platform. 

144

2,200 

“ With the Masterplan virtual learning 
platform, we’re making meaningful 
links between lifelong learning and 
digitalisation while at the same time 
opening up new perspectives for the 
promotion of our innovative strength.”

 M A R V I N  T Ö P F E R ,  TÜV NORD Akademie

Conditions and 
Supplementary Benefits
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VA C C I N AT I O N S  A G A I N S T  C O V I D -1 9

Since June 2021, MEDITÜV has been off ering our employees at 
German sites free vaccinations against COVID-19. Especially for 
those employees who work in the fi eld during the week, we have 
also off ered vaccination appointments on weekends and outside 
business hours. At the beginning of the vaccination campaign, the 
focus was on initial vaccinations to ensure that our employees 
would be protected from severe illness as early as possible. In the 
course of the rapid spread of the Omicron variant, we expanded 
the off er to include booster vaccinations in December 2021. Risk 
groups such as people with disabilities were able to give advance 
notice via the internal vaccination booking system to reserve an 
appointment for a booster jab. 

O N L I N E  H E A LT H  C O U R S E S

Employees of the TÜV NORD GROUP have the opportunity to par-
ticipate in a wide range of online health courses. One major high-
light was the “MyWEIGHTcoach” and “myHEALTHcoach” nutrition 
courses, in which the participants learned strategies for a healthy 
diet in their daily working life. As in previous years, the “Gesund in 
den Tag” (“healthy start to the day”) virtual early morning sports 
programme enjoyed great popularity. 

H E A LT H  R AT I O
– a pleasing and stable fi gure despite the pandemic 

(2020: 95%) This high ratio is common to all the German

companies in the TÜV NORD GROUP.4

94.9 %

4 Scope of survey: national; active and passive regular staff 
Period: 01. 01.–31. 12. 2021

E M P L O Y E E S
took advantage of the wide ranging 

off er of online health courses. 

209
W O R K P L A C E  A C C I D E N T S  

were recorded in the TÜV NORD GROUP in 2021 – a comparatively 

low fi gure which has been constant in the Group for many years 

at this level.

88
Due to the pandemic-related reduction in social contacts, mental 
illness is on the rise. Almost overnight, our homes have become 
both a workplace and a place of recreation in one. But how do you 
draw a line under your work in this situation? How do you stay in 
touch with colleagues? The “Gesund in der digitalen Arbeitswelt” 
(“Healthy in the digital world of work”) workshop was dedicated to 
answering such questions. Trained psychologists taught strategies 
for dealing with the mental challenges of the new world of work.

I M P R O V E D  W O R K- L I F E  B A L A N C E

Notwithstanding its negative impacts, we at the Group have 
always seen the pandemic as an opportunity for improvement. 
For human resources, the expansion of fl exible working time 
models has proven to be a complete success, which is why we 
will continue this measure in the future. Above all, our employees 
appreciate the opportunity to work independently of location and 
the fl exible working hours which allow them to enjoy a signifi -
cantly improved work-life balance.  

“ Our Group offers a wide variety of 
benefits. The ubiMaster learning 
aid once again supported the 
families of our employees during 
the pandemic.”

 Ç I Ç E K  B E R S E ,  TÜV NORD AG 

82

T Ü V  N O R D  G R O U P   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T



VA C C I N AT I O N S  A G A I N S T  C O V I D -1 9

Since June 2021, MEDITÜV has been off ering our employees at 
German sites free vaccinations against COVID-19. Especially for 
those employees who work in the fi eld during the week, we have 
also off ered vaccination appointments on weekends and outside 
business hours. At the beginning of the vaccination campaign, the 
focus was on initial vaccinations to ensure that our employees 
would be protected from severe illness as early as possible. In the 
course of the rapid spread of the Omicron variant, we expanded 
the off er to include booster vaccinations in December 2021. Risk 
groups such as people with disabilities were able to give advance 
notice via the internal vaccination booking system to reserve an 
appointment for a booster jab. 

O N L I N E  H E A LT H  C O U R S E S

Employees of the TÜV NORD GROUP have the opportunity to par-
ticipate in a wide range of online health courses. One major high-
light was the “MyWEIGHTcoach” and “myHEALTHcoach” nutrition 
courses, in which the participants learned strategies for a healthy 
diet in their daily working life. As in previous years, the “Gesund in 
den Tag” (“healthy start to the day”) virtual early morning sports 
programme enjoyed great popularity. 

H E A LT H  R AT I O
– a pleasing and stable fi gure despite the pandemic 

(2020: 95%) This high ratio is common to all the German

companies in the TÜV NORD GROUP.4

94.9 %

4 Scope of survey: national; active and passive regular staff 
Period: 01. 01.–31. 12. 2021

E M P L O Y E E S
took advantage of the wide ranging 

off er of online health courses. 

209
W O R K P L A C E  A C C I D E N T S  

were recorded in the TÜV NORD GROUP in 2021 – a comparatively 

low fi gure which has been constant in the Group for many years 

at this level.

88
Due to the pandemic-related reduction in social contacts, mental 
illness is on the rise. Almost overnight, our homes have become 
both a workplace and a place of recreation in one. But how do you 
draw a line under your work in this situation? How do you stay in 
touch with colleagues? The “Gesund in der digitalen Arbeitswelt” 
(“Healthy in the digital world of work”) workshop was dedicated to 
answering such questions. Trained psychologists taught strategies 
for dealing with the mental challenges of the new world of work.

I M P R O V E D  W O R K- L I F E  B A L A N C E

Notwithstanding its negative impacts, we at the Group have 
always seen the pandemic as an opportunity for improvement. 
For human resources, the expansion of fl exible working time 
models has proven to be a complete success, which is why we 
will continue this measure in the future. Above all, our employees 
appreciate the opportunity to work independently of location and 
the fl exible working hours which allow them to enjoy a signifi -
cantly improved work-life balance.  

“ Our Group offers a wide variety of 
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Diversity and 
Participation 

S T R AT E G Y  F O R  D I V E R S I T Y,  I N C L U S I O N  A N D 
E Q U A L  O P P O R T U N I T I E S

At the TÜV NORD GROUP, all employees should feel valued regard-
less of their ethnic origin, age, sexual orientation or other individu-
al diff erences. The Group-wide strategy for diversity, inclusion and 
equal opportunities aims to create a working environment in which 
this appreciation will be a lived experience for our employees, thus 
empowering them to reach their full potential. We recognise and 
appreciate our diff erences.  

People who feel welcome and valued will contribute their talents most 
eff ectively. As a globally active knowledge company which is always on 
the lookout for innovative solutions, we cannot be competitive without 

diversity. In 2021, the Group implemented various measures to raise the 
awareness of diversity among employees, partners and customers.

R E D U C I N G  U N C O N S C I O U S  B I A S E S

(Unconscious) bias, which can lead to prejudice, is an impediment to 
a company’s economic success. It may lead to wrong decisions in 
recruitment, personnel development and promotion. Unconscious 
bias training was successfully piloted in Spain, the UK and France in 
2021. In the course of the training, the participants learned to 
recognise unconscious thought patterns and to actively work on 
changing their behaviour. This training programme is intended to 
take us a big step closer to an inclusive culture of trust. 

M A K I N G  D I V E R S I T Y  V I S I B L E  A N D  A U D I B L E

As a signatory to the Diversity Charter, the TÜV NORD GROUP is 
committed to internal and external dialogue on diversity in the 
workplace. To help us rise to the “Diversity Challenge” enshrined in 
the Diversity Charter, our team came up with the publicly accessi-
ble podcast series entitled “Diversity Lounge”. Each episode shows 
how employees of the TÜV NORD GROUP benefi t from greater 
openness and tolerance. Our aim is to off er the listeners sugges-
tions on how they can actively practise diversity in their own 
environment. The podcast series was honoured by the jury with a 

R ATIO O F  S E V E R E LY  D I S A B L E D  E M P L O Y E E S
a comparatively good figure that we would nonetheless like 

to improve with our new HR strategy.5 

3.9 %

5 Scope of survey: Germany; active permanent staff: 
Time: December 2020 and December 2021 

ranking in the top 10 – given the number of 600 participants from 
over 82 organisations, this is a result of which we can be proud.

Moreover, we also celebrated the linguistic diversity in the Group 
on our “Day of Languages”, and, with PRIDE Day, we set an 
example of equal opportunities for the LGBTQI+ community in the 
working world of the TÜV NORD GROUP.

P R O M O T I N G  D I V E R S I T Y  I N  T H E  F U T U R E

For 2022, we are planning further events that aim to lead to the 
recognition of diversity in the company and the removal of po-
tential barriers. At the same time, we will continue to expand our 
measures in recruiting, designing an attractive working environ-
ment and transformation in the next fi nancial year and place our 
inclusive diversity culture at the heart of our processes. 

“ Job sharing and shared leadership in 
the team are important approaches 
within our overall concept for 
increased diversity. In this way, we 
will create an open and inclusive 
culture in which we benefit in the long 
term from different perspectives.”

 T R I I N  T I N T,  TÜV NORD AG
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Employee Representation – 
Heading into the 
Future Together

S TA F F  C O U N C I L S
are in place in the TÜV NORD GROUP in Germany: 

a Group Staff  Council, nine general staff  councils and 

58 local and company staff  councils.

68

We attach great importance to always fi nding solutions that are 
directly relevant to the individual lives of our employees. For this, 

close and cooperative collaboration between the staff  councils and the 
TÜV NORD GROUP as employer is decisive – even, or perhaps especially, 

in challenging times. 

What issues did you discuss and ultimately make real progress 
on last year?  MARLIS KOOP We talked to both the Group Staff  
Council and the local employee representatives. For example, 
we considered the issue of education and training and launched 
a vaccination campaign. But last year, of course, as was true 
for many other companies, the focus also had to be on dealing 
with the pandemic. We’d already learned in 2020 how to work 
remotely and be responsive to our customers. Now we’ve agreed 
to look at the home working issue. 

RÜDIGER SPARFELD Interestingly enough, we looked at the 
home working issue before the pandemic, in November 2019, 
when no one was thinking about viruses. But the pandemic was 
a catalyst, that’s for sure. Trust is important if home working is 
going to succeed. And plenty of trust was in evidence. 

Did the negotiations sail through on a tide of trust: did the talks 
go smoothly or were they bumpy?  RS The discussions were 
very full-on. The art we had to master was to escalate an issue 
that was in the jurisdiction of the local staff  councils to Group 
level and to leave it there. We were mandated to conclude this 

agreement by a large part of the operations and companies. 
Without close and trust-based cooperation, this wouldn’t have 
worked.   

MK There are, of course, diff erences of opinion between the 
employer and the employees. But both sides are always looking 
for a solution. We openly addressed those things that were 
particularly important. And why they were important. So, to 
cut a long story short: there were diff erences of opinion, yes, 
but I certainly wouldn’t describe the talks as bumpy. 

Let’s go back to the home working regulation: has this been a 
fl agship project of the past three years?  MK Lots of companies 
are now dealing with working from home. But only rarely does 
this end up with group-wide agreements. Which is why our 
result is a fl agship project, yes. There are, of course, individual 
companies which have agreements in place. But we’re in a 
really good position, comparatively speaking.  

RS The agreement we’ve delivered is a good one, without being 
perfect. We’ve shown the courage to just give it a try. That’s 
something special. We want to listen to the feedback from the 
colleagues who are now trying this out, and then we’ll be just 
as interested as the managers to see how this agreement goes 
down with the workforce.   

What issues are you tackling now?  RS Digitalisation has been 
with us for a long time now. As have the ongoing promotion of 
diversity, training, employee data protection, and large-scale 
IT projects which represent a major challenge from the staff  
council’s point of view. We’re also constantly getting feedback 
and ideas from the workforce on issues including the benefi ts 
strategy and other things that will make us more attractive as 
an employer. We’re facing fi erce competition for skilled workers. 
We’re going to have to learn how to dress up our off er so as to 
create a portfolio that will be attractive to many people overall. 

R Ü D I G E R  S PA R F E L D , 

TÜV NORD Mobilität

M A R L I S  KO O P, 

TÜV NORD AG

MK The issue of benefi ts is also important for us as employer 
representatives. We have to work together to assess which of 
them we want to continue and which aren’t in demand at all. A 
second important question, which is also close to my heart, is 
that of the working environment. At the moment, a lot of people 
are working from home. But we also have the needs of the busi-
ness, of course, and the associated question of what a modern 
workplace environment can, should and must look like and how 
we want to work together in the future. Mr. Sparfeld has already 
brought up digitalisation: This year we’re going to have to make 
the fi nal decisions.   

RS I hope we’ll also fi nd a really attractive solution for our 
working time accounts. Finally there’s the question of how we 
can make better use of co-determination in the future, because 
processes have simply accelerated. We need to be fast and good 
and create tenable company agreements. Both sides have a 
responsibility here.  

MK Our company wants to grow. This is a responsibility for the 
staff  councils and for us as individuals: How do we shape our 
growth in such a way that we can recruit people and get them 
excited about our company while at the same time exemplifying 
co-determination in a spirit of partnership?  

Thank you very much for talking to us.

Employee Representation – 
Heading into the 
Future Together
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Let’s go back to the home working regulation: has this been a 
fl agship project of the past three years?  MK Lots of companies 
are now dealing with working from home. But only rarely does 
this end up with group-wide agreements. Which is why our 
result is a fl agship project, yes. There are, of course, individual 
companies which have agreements in place. But we’re in a 
really good position, comparatively speaking.  

RS The agreement we’ve delivered is a good one, without being 
perfect. We’ve shown the courage to just give it a try. That’s 
something special. We want to listen to the feedback from the 
colleagues who are now trying this out, and then we’ll be just 
as interested as the managers to see how this agreement goes 
down with the workforce.   

What issues are you tackling now?  RS Digitalisation has been 
with us for a long time now. As have the ongoing promotion of 
diversity, training, employee data protection, and large-scale 
IT projects which represent a major challenge from the staff  
council’s point of view. We’re also constantly getting feedback 
and ideas from the workforce on issues including the benefi ts 
strategy and other things that will make us more attractive as 
an employer. We’re facing fi erce competition for skilled workers. 
We’re going to have to learn how to dress up our off er so as to 
create a portfolio that will be attractive to many people overall. 

R Ü D I G E R  S PA R F E L D , 

TÜV NORD Mobilität

M A R L I S  K O O P, 

TÜV NORD AG

MK The issue of benefi ts is also important for us as employer 
representatives. We have to work together to assess which of 
them we want to continue and which aren’t in demand at all. A 
second important question, which is also close to my heart, is 
that of the working environment. At the moment, a lot of people 
are working from home. But we also have the needs of the busi-
ness, of course, and the associated question of what a modern 
workplace environment can, should and must look like and how 
we want to work together in the future. Mr. Sparfeld has already 
brought up digitalisation: This year we’re going to have to make 
the fi nal decisions.   

RS I hope we’ll also fi nd a really attractive solution for our 
working time accounts. Finally there’s the question of how we 
can make better use of co-determination in the future, because 
processes have simply accelerated. We need to be fast and good 
and create tenable company agreements. Both sides have a 
responsibility here.  

MK Our company wants to grow. This is a responsibility for the 
staff  councils and for us as individuals: How do we shape our 
growth in such a way that we can recruit people and get them 
excited about our company while at the same time exemplifying 
co-determination in a spirit of partnership?  

Thank you very much for talking to us.

Employee Representation – 
Heading into the 
Future Together
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Group Management Report

F U N D A M E N TA L S  O F  T H E  G R O U P

Business activity
The TÜV NORD GROUP is a globally active technology group 
and the byword for safety, independence and quality. The 
TÜV NORD GROUP has been active in the TICCET (Testing, 
Inspection, Certifi cation, Consulting, Engineering, Training) market 
for over 150 years. The focus of its business activities has always 
been – and is now more than ever – on testing technology and 
safety in accordance with recognised standards and national and 
international legal requirements. More than 14,000 employees 
deploy their expertise in support of customers worldwide, thereby 
contributing to making products, services and systems safer. 

More than 1,500 diff erent safety-related services are off ered in 
six operative business units. Traditional TÜV activities in areas 
such as energy, mobility and training have been supplemented in 
recent decades by the Engineering and Natural Resources and the 
Aerospace business units. In addition to its operating business 
units, the Group’s internal services are also grouped together 
in the Holding / Services division. The operative business of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP is managed via the Group Executive Committee 
(GEC). This consists of the Board of Management and a representa-
tive from each of the six business units.

 ■ The Group off ers a wide range of testing and certifi cation ser-
vices for systems, products and complex plants of its Industrial 
Services business unit.

 ■ The Mobility business unit off ers numerous services. These 
include vehicle inspections and driving tests in Germany, vehicle 
assessments, testing the reliability of vehicle components and 
vehicles (homologation) and development-related testing and 
consulting for the automotive sector. 

 ■ Experts in the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit 
are active in plant construction and process engineering, con-
struction and infrastructure, mining and energy markets.

 ■ The Training business unit off ers qualifi cations and training for 
specialists and executives, along with publicly funded training 
measures. 

 ■ The Aerospace business unit provides its services to the aero-
space industry and other highly specialised industries. These 
consist primarily of the procurement, modifi cation, integration, 
testing and certifi cation of electronic components.

 ■ Inspection, testing and certifi cation services relating to IT secu-
rity fall within the remit of the IT business unit. In addition, the 
business unit advises on the operation and planning of telecom-
munications and IT networks.

The Group’s key fi nancial performance indicators are revenue 
and operating profi t before special items (EBIT). Operating profi t 
before special items is defi ned as earnings before taxes (EBT) 
plus fi nancial result, adjusted for special eff ects.

The TÜV NORD GROUP acts independently and impartially in 
the provision of all its services. The management company TÜV 
NORD AG, which is based in Hanover, manages the subsidiaries 
worldwide as a management holding company. As of 31 Decem-
ber 2021, the Group, with TÜV NORD AG, embraced a total of 83 
fully consolidated companies, 41 of which are domiciled in Ger-
many and  42 abroad. The TÜV NORD AG consolidated fi nancial 
statement includes all major companies in Germany and abroad 
in which TÜV NORD AG either directly or indirectly holds the 
majority of voting rights.

E C O N O M I C  R E P O R T

Macroeconomic and sector-specific conditions
The year 2021 was characterised by strong economic growth (5.9%) 
after the sharp slump in the global economy caused by the pande-
mic in the previous year (–3.1%). However, the recovery is still highly 
vulnerable to risks, which diff er signifi cantly from region to region. 
Emerging and developing countries are especially struggling with 
the coronavirus pandemic due to the relatively low proportion of 
vaccinated individuals. Although the industrialised nations have 
fully vaccinated a high proportion of their populations, they are now 
also having to contend with supply bottlenecks and rising infl ation 
rates, which are having a negative impact on growth. Nor can the 
risk of Covid-19 can be discounted in these countries either.

Whereas China was the only major economic nation to record eco-
nomic growth in 2020, the recovery spread through all the regions 
of the world in 2021. Among the industrialised nations, the USA 
was a strong driver of growth in 2021. However, a growth rate of 
5.6% was already over one percentage point lower than expected in 
the summer of 2021. This was due in particular to pandemic-related 
supply bottlenecks. The eurozone also grew strongly in 2021, with 
a growth rate of 5%. France and Italy, in particular, stand out with 
growth rates in excess of 6%.

According to the latest announcement of the International Mone-
tary Fund (IMF) in January 2022, the German economy still grew 
by 2.7% in 2021. This corresponds to a reduction of 0.4 percentage 
points compared to the outlook from the autumn forecast. In its 
autumn projection, the Federal Ministry for Economic Aff airs and 
Climate Action cut the anticipated growth rate from 3.5% to 2.6% 
for 2021. The main reasons for the lower rate of growth of the 
German economy are supply bottlenecks, high energy prices and 
expensive raw materials, all of which are having negative impact 
on industrial production – one of the strengths of the export-heavy 
German economy. 

The TIC (Testing, Inspection, Certifi cation) market also recovered in 
2021 after a dramatic slump in the previous year and has almost 
returned to its pre-crisis level. Global growth in 2021 was just under 
5%, with the Asia-Pacifi c region in particular driving global growth 
with a rate of over 6%. Europe was also above the global average 
and is therefore a growth driver. The TIC market is growing, among 
other reasons, because of the introduction of advanced technolo-
gies, for instance in industry, healthcare and consumer electronics, 
and of new services and solutions such as virtual inspections and 
remote audits. 

The TÜV NORD GROUP, which is developing into a data-driven 
international knowledge company, has increased its use of remote 
audits since 2020 and has thus been able to support its customers 
even during the pandemic. 

Business trends
As was the case in the previous year, the TÜV NORD GROUP 
faced a number of major challenges in 2021 due to the corona- 
virus pandemic. The focus remained on keeping business opera-
tions on a secure footing and taking measures to ensure liquidity.

All business units were aff ected to varying degrees by the con-
sequences of the pandemic. With the exception of the Engineer-
ing and Natural Resources (constraints on international travel, 
postponements in the project business) and Training business 
units (extended lockdown with the associated signifi cant restrict-
ions), all business units recorded better developments than 
planned. 

Revenue trends were as set out in the 2020 Group Management 
Report and in the outlook for 2021.

Thanks to the measures adopted to secure earnings and liquidity, 
the Group achieved a positive operative result which, notwith-
standing the impairment of its operating business as a result of 
the pandemic, was signifi cantly above the operative level of the 
2020 reporting period and the plan for 2021.

The revenue and EBIT (earnings) fi nancial performance indicators 
for the individual business units are as follows: 

The planned revenue increases in the Industrial Services business 
unit were achieved. In this business unit, the decisive factor 
behind the positive trend was foreign revenue, mainly in Europe, 
India and China. Earnings exceeded both the planned volume and 
the previous year.

The Mobility business unit exceeded its planned positive revenue 
and earnings trend in 2021. The driving licence business was 
confronted with particular challenges due to the coronavirus 
pandemic.

In the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit, revenue 
and earnings exceeded those of the previous year. However, due 
to the end of mask inspection mandate and further project post-
ponements, the planned values were not achieved. Because of its 
strongly international focus, the business unit is still particularly 
aff ected by global travel restrictions.

Although revenue and earnings in the Training business unit also 
exceeded the previous year’s level in the 2021 reporting period, 
they nonetheless fell short of the planned volume. The tempo-
rary bans on classroom training and the contact restrictions and 
hygiene regulations led to a signifi cant reduction in business 
operations and a decline in orders. 
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Group Management Report

F U N D A M E N TA L S  O F  T H E  G R O U P

Business activity
The TÜV NORD GROUP is a globally active technology group 
and the byword for safety, independence and quality. The 
TÜV NORD GROUP has been active in the TICCET (Testing, 
Inspection, Certifi cation, Consulting, Engineering, Training) market 
for over 150 years. The focus of its business activities has always 
been – and is now more than ever – on testing technology and 
safety in accordance with recognised standards and national and 
international legal requirements. More than 14,000 employees 
deploy their expertise in support of customers worldwide, thereby 
contributing to making products, services and systems safer. 

More than 1,500 diff erent safety-related services are off ered in 
six operative business units. Traditional TÜV activities in areas 
such as energy, mobility and training have been supplemented in 
recent decades by the Engineering and Natural Resources and the 
Aerospace business units. In addition to its operating business 
units, the Group’s internal services are also grouped together 
in the Holding / Services division. The operative business of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP is managed via the Group Executive Committee 
(GEC). This consists of the Board of Management and a representa-
tive from each of the six business units.

 ■ The Group off ers a wide range of testing and certifi cation ser-
vices for systems, products and complex plants of its Industrial 
Services business unit.

 ■ The Mobility business unit off ers numerous services. These 
include vehicle inspections and driving tests in Germany, vehicle 
assessments, testing the reliability of vehicle components and 
vehicles (homologation) and development-related testing and 
consulting for the automotive sector. 

 ■ Experts in the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit 
are active in plant construction and process engineering, con-
struction and infrastructure, mining and energy markets.

 ■ The Training business unit off ers qualifi cations and training for 
specialists and executives, along with publicly funded training 
measures. 

 ■ The Aerospace business unit provides its services to the aero-
space industry and other highly specialised industries. These 
consist primarily of the procurement, modifi cation, integration, 
testing and certifi cation of electronic components.

 ■ Inspection, testing and certifi cation services relating to IT secu-
rity fall within the remit of the IT business unit. In addition, the 
business unit advises on the operation and planning of telecom-
munications and IT networks.

The Group’s key fi nancial performance indicators are revenue 
and operating profi t before special items (EBIT). Operating profi t 
before special items is defi ned as earnings before taxes (EBT) 
plus fi nancial result, adjusted for special eff ects.

The TÜV NORD GROUP acts independently and impartially in 
the provision of all its services. The management company TÜV 
NORD AG, which is based in Hanover, manages the subsidiaries 
worldwide as a management holding company. As of 31 Decem-
ber 2021, the Group, with TÜV NORD AG, embraced a total of 83 
fully consolidated companies, 41 of which are domiciled in Ger-
many and  42 abroad. The TÜV NORD AG consolidated fi nancial 
statement includes all major companies in Germany and abroad 
in which TÜV NORD AG either directly or indirectly holds the 
majority of voting rights.

E C O N O M I C  R E P O R T

Macroeconomic and sector-specific conditions
The year 2021 was characterised by strong economic growth (5.9%) 
after the sharp slump in the global economy caused by the pande-
mic in the previous year (–3.1%). However, the recovery is still highly 
vulnerable to risks, which diff er signifi cantly from region to region. 
Emerging and developing countries are especially struggling with 
the coronavirus pandemic due to the relatively low proportion of 
vaccinated individuals. Although the industrialised nations have 
fully vaccinated a high proportion of their populations, they are now 
also having to contend with supply bottlenecks and rising infl ation 
rates, which are having a negative impact on growth. Nor can the 
risk of Covid-19 can be discounted in these countries either.

Whereas China was the only major economic nation to record eco-
nomic growth in 2020, the recovery spread through all the regions 
of the world in 2021. Among the industrialised nations, the USA 
was a strong driver of growth in 2021. However, a growth rate of 
5.6% was already over one percentage point lower than expected in 
the summer of 2021. This was due in particular to pandemic-related 
supply bottlenecks. The eurozone also grew strongly in 2021, with 
a growth rate of 5%. France and Italy, in particular, stand out with 
growth rates in excess of 6%.

According to the latest announcement of the International Mone-
tary Fund (IMF) in January 2022, the German economy still grew 
by 2.7% in 2021. This corresponds to a reduction of 0.4 percentage 
points compared to the outlook from the autumn forecast. In its 
autumn projection, the Federal Ministry for Economic Aff airs and 
Climate Action cut the anticipated growth rate from 3.5% to 2.6% 
for 2021. The main reasons for the lower rate of growth of the 
German economy are supply bottlenecks, high energy prices and 
expensive raw materials, all of which are having negative impact 
on industrial production – one of the strengths of the export-heavy 
German economy. 

The TIC (Testing, Inspection, Certifi cation) market also recovered in 
2021 after a dramatic slump in the previous year and has almost 
returned to its pre-crisis level. Global growth in 2021 was just under 
5%, with the Asia-Pacifi c region in particular driving global growth 
with a rate of over 6%. Europe was also above the global average 
and is therefore a growth driver. The TIC market is growing, among 
other reasons, because of the introduction of advanced technolo-
gies, for instance in industry, healthcare and consumer electronics, 
and of new services and solutions such as virtual inspections and 
remote audits. 

The TÜV NORD GROUP, which is developing into a data-driven 
international knowledge company, has increased its use of remote 
audits since 2020 and has thus been able to support its customers 
even during the pandemic. 

Business trends
As was the case in the previous year, the TÜV NORD GROUP 
faced a number of major challenges in 2021 due to the corona- 
virus pandemic. The focus remained on keeping business opera-
tions on a secure footing and taking measures to ensure liquidity.

All business units were aff ected to varying degrees by the con-
sequences of the pandemic. With the exception of the Engineer-
ing and Natural Resources (constraints on international travel, 
postponements in the project business) and Training business 
units (extended lockdown with the associated signifi cant restrict-
ions), all business units recorded better developments than 
planned. 

Revenue trends were as set out in the 2020 Group Management 
Report and in the outlook for 2021.

Thanks to the measures adopted to secure earnings and liquidity, 
the Group achieved a positive operative result which, notwith-
standing the impairment of its operating business as a result of 
the pandemic, was signifi cantly above the operative level of the 
2020 reporting period and the plan for 2021.

The revenue and EBIT (earnings) fi nancial performance indicators 
for the individual business units are as follows: 

The planned revenue increases in the Industrial Services business 
unit were achieved. In this business unit, the decisive factor 
behind the positive trend was foreign revenue, mainly in Europe, 
India and China. Earnings exceeded both the planned volume and 
the previous year.

The Mobility business unit exceeded its planned positive revenue 
and earnings trend in 2021. The driving licence business was 
confronted with particular challenges due to the coronavirus 
pandemic.

In the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit, revenue 
and earnings exceeded those of the previous year. However, due 
to the end of mask inspection mandate and further project post-
ponements, the planned values were not achieved. Because of its 
strongly international focus, the business unit is still particularly 
aff ected by global travel restrictions.

Although revenue and earnings in the Training business unit also 
exceeded the previous year’s level in the 2021 reporting period, 
they nonetheless fell short of the planned volume. The tempo-
rary bans on classroom training and the contact restrictions and 
hygiene regulations led to a signifi cant reduction in business 
operations and a decline in orders. 
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Despite the pandemic, revenue and earnings in the Aerospace 
business unit were slightly above the planned level and signifi -
cantly above that of the previous year, which was dominated by 
the coronavirus pandemic. There were further declines in orders 
from small and medium-sized customers and postponements  
of larger projects.

The IT business unit also reported revenue and earnings growth in 
excess of the planned level and the previous year. Further expan-
sion of the consulting business was delayed due to the pandemic.

The number of full-time employees of the Group in 2021, albeit 
higher than the previous year, did not reach the planned fi gure. 

The Group’s innovation projects continued as planned with the 
aim of developing new services.

The year-on-year fi nancial performance indicators within the 
Group in the 2021 reporting period were as follows:

 ■ Revenue increased by 8.3% from €1,265.6 million to €1,369.3 mil-
lion. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the 
Industrial Services and Mobility business units. 

 ■ Operating profi t before special items (EBIT) increased by 52.9% 
from €47.8 million to €73.1 million. The special items of €1.4 mil-
lion in 2021 mainly relate to book gains from the sale of real 
estate. The increase in earnings of €25.3 million was mainly attrib-
utable to the Industrial Services and Mobility business units. 

 ■ The return on revenue, measured by EBIT, was 5.3%, following on 
from 3.8% in the previous year.

 ■ Earnings before tax (EBT) increased by €41.4 million to €73.3 mil-
lion.

 ■ The average number of employees, converted to full-time basis, 
increased from 11,658 to 11,959 in 2021. 

Earnings
The 2021 reporting period came to an end with revenue of 
€1,369.3 million (2020: €1,265.6 million). The following fi gure shows 
the trend of revenue in the Group (€ million) in the last fi ve years: 

T R E N D  O F  R E V E N U E

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

1,184.8
1,229.5

1,282.4
1,369.3

1,265.6

The breakdown of revenue by region (€ million) shows the follow-
ing fi gure: 

R E V E N U E  BY  R EG I O N

19.3
Americas

6.4
Africa

1,008.9
Germany

205.9
Rest of Europe

128.8
Asia

The Group’s domestic revenue in 2021 amounted to €1,008.9 mil-
lion (2020: €945.3 million). Revenue from the international 
business amounted to €360.4 million (2020: €320.4 million) 
and achieved a share of 26.3%.

Broken down by business units and Holding / Services (in %), the 
following overall picture emerged for the year 2021:  

2.3
IT

R E V E N U E  BY  B U S I N E S S  U N I T

0.2
Holding / Services

3.8
Aerospace

5.8
Training

44.7
Industrial 
Services

34.7
Mobility

8.5
Engineering
and Natural

Resources

 

Due to the coronavirus pandemic, the heterogeneous nature of their 
market presence, their various product spectra and their regional 
alignments, the individual business units developed very diff erently.

The Industrial Services business unit generated revenue of €612.4 mil-
lion (2020: €582.1 million). The year-on-year revenue growth is mainly 
attributable to business activities abroad, in particular in the Europe, 
India and China regions. Revenue abroad was €241.3 million (2020: 
€210.4 million), bolstered by the positive impact of the fi rst-time 
consolidation of a Croatian company as of 1 January 2021. In Germany, 
revenue, at €371.1 million, was slightly below the previous year´s level 
(2020: €371.7 million), which was largely accounted for by tests of 
personal protective equipment.

The revenue of the Mobility business unit, at €475.2 million, was 8.0% 
higher than in the previous year, €440.1 million. The increase in rev-
enue was primarily accounted for by the introduction of the “Optimi-
sation of practical driving licence testing” and the further expansion 
of business with the cooperation partners as well as the fi rst-time 
 consolidation of two subsidiaries as of 1 January 2021. Pandemic- 
related eff ects, such as the partial discontinuation of the driving 
licence tests in the 1st quarter of 2021 and the decline in orders for 
property and value appraisals due to falling accident fi gures, were 
successfully mitigated elsewhere.  

In the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit, revenue of 
€115.8 million (2020: €96.1 million) was generated. The main reasons 
for the increase were a reduction in pandemic-related restrictions on 
domestic business activities and the start of a major project.  

The increase in the Training business unit's revenue to €79.6 million 
(2020: €75.9 million), resulted from the expansion of the training 
portfolio in hybrid or digital form. Nevertheless, the coronavirus 
pandemic continued to have a negative impact on the business unit 
due to issues such as bans on classroom training and major events, 
including job speed-dating.  

The revenue of the Aerospace business unit, at €52.6 million, is higher 
than in the previous year (2020: €40.1 million) due to the extension 
of contracts for major projects and the eff ects of the recovery which 
took hold in France after a pandemic-related decline in the previous 
year. 

The development in the IT consulting business segment (TÜV NORD IT 
Secure Communications GmbH & Co. KG) was the main factor behind 
the increase in revenue in the IT business unit to €31.0 million (2020: 
€27.6 million). 

Group expense increased by 5.3% to €1,336.2 million during the 
fi nancial year. 

The cost of materials reached €267.1 million in comparison to 
€236.4 million in the previous year, as a result of an increase in the 
use of services in connection with the growth in revenue.

Personnel expense increased by 4.8% to €790.6 million, primarily 
due to the recruitment of new staff  and the conclusion of a collective 
agreement.
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Despite the pandemic, revenue and earnings in the Aerospace 
business unit were slightly above the planned level and signifi -
cantly above that of the previous year, which was dominated by 
the coronavirus pandemic. There were further declines in orders 
from small and medium-sized customers and postponements  
of larger projects.

The IT business unit also reported revenue and earnings growth in 
excess of the planned level and the previous year. Further expan-
sion of the consulting business was delayed due to the pandemic.

The number of full-time employees of the Group in 2021, albeit 
higher than the previous year, did not reach the planned fi gure. 

The Group’s innovation projects continued as planned with the 
aim of developing new services.

The year-on-year fi nancial performance indicators within the 
Group in the 2021 reporting period were as follows:

 ■ Revenue increased by 8.3% from €1,265.6 million to €1,369.3 mil-
lion. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the 
Industrial Services and Mobility business units. 

 ■ Operating profi t before special items (EBIT) increased by 52.9% 
from €47.8 million to €73.1 million. The special items of €1.4 mil-
lion in 2021 mainly relate to book gains from the sale of real 
estate. The increase in earnings of €25.3 million was mainly attrib-
utable to the Industrial Services and Mobility business units. 

 ■ The return on revenue, measured by EBIT, was 5.3%, following on 
from 3.8% in the previous year.

 ■ Earnings before tax (EBT) increased by €41.4 million to €73.3 mil-
lion.

 ■ The average number of employees, converted to full-time basis, 
increased from 11,658 to 11,959 in 2021. 

Earnings
The 2021 reporting period came to an end with revenue of 
€1,369.3 million (2020: €1,265.6 million). The following fi gure shows 
the trend of revenue in the Group (€ million) in the last fi ve years: 
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The breakdown of revenue by region (€ million) shows the follow-
ing fi gure: 
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The Group’s domestic revenue in 2021 amounted to €1,008.9 mil-
lion (2020: €945.3 million). Revenue from the international 
business amounted to €360.4 million (2020: €320.4 million) 
and achieved a share of 26.3%.

Broken down by business units and Holding / Services (in %), the 
following overall picture emerged for the year 2021:  
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Due to the coronavirus pandemic, the heterogeneous nature of their 
market presence, their various product spectra and their regional 
alignments, the individual business units developed very diff erently.

The Industrial Services business unit generated revenue of €612.4 mil-
lion (2020: €582.1 million). The year-on-year revenue growth is mainly 
attributable to business activities abroad, in particular in the Europe, 
India and China regions. Revenue abroad was €241.3 million (2020: 
€210.4 million), bolstered by the positive impact of the fi rst-time 
consolidation of a Croatian company as of 1 January 2021. In Germany, 
revenue, at €371.1 million, was slightly below the previous year´s level 
(2020: €371.7 million), which was largely accounted for by tests of 
personal protective equipment.

The revenue of the Mobility business unit, at €475.2 million, was 8.0% 
higher than in the previous year, €440.1 million. The increase in rev-
enue was primarily accounted for by the introduction of the “Optimi-
sation of practical driving licence testing” and the further expansion 
of business with the cooperation partners as well as the fi rst-time 
 consolidation of two subsidiaries as of 1 January 2021. Pandemic- 
related eff ects, such as the partial discontinuation of the driving 
licence tests in the 1st quarter of 2021 and the decline in orders for 
property and value appraisals due to falling accident fi gures, were 
successfully mitigated elsewhere.  

In the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit, revenue of 
€115.8 million (2020: €96.1 million) was generated. The main reasons 
for the increase were a reduction in pandemic-related restrictions on 
domestic business activities and the start of a major project.  

The increase in the Training business unit's revenue to €79.6 million 
(2020: €75.9 million), resulted from the expansion of the training 
portfolio in hybrid or digital form. Nevertheless, the coronavirus 
pandemic continued to have a negative impact on the business unit 
due to issues such as bans on classroom training and major events, 
including job speed-dating.  

The revenue of the Aerospace business unit, at €52.6 million, is higher 
than in the previous year (2020: €40.1 million) due to the extension 
of contracts for major projects and the eff ects of the recovery which 
took hold in France after a pandemic-related decline in the previous 
year. 

The development in the IT consulting business segment (TÜV NORD IT 
Secure Communications GmbH & Co. KG) was the main factor behind 
the increase in revenue in the IT business unit to €31.0 million (2020: 
€27.6 million). 

Group expense increased by 5.3% to €1,336.2 million during the 
fi nancial year. 

The cost of materials reached €267.1 million in comparison to 
€236.4 million in the previous year, as a result of an increase in the 
use of services in connection with the growth in revenue.

Personnel expense increased by 4.8% to €790.6 million, primarily 
due to the recruitment of new staff  and the conclusion of a collective 
agreement.
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Write-downs decreased to €68.0 million (2020: €77.3 million); the 
previous year's fi gure also included a write-down of the goodwill of 
the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit in the amount of 
€10.5 million.

Further information on expenses can be found in the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, under No. 3, “Consolidated Income 
Statement disclosures”.

Earnings before tax (EBT) amounted to €73.3 million and were thus 
€41.4 million above the previous year’s result of €31.9 million. The 
Industrial Services, Mobility, Aerospace and IT business units contri-
buted to the positive result of the Group. 

Net profi t, at €45.5 million, exceeded that of the previous year (2020: 
€13.5 million).

Assets 
The TÜV NORD GROUP balance sheet reveals a sound structure, 
notwithstanding the economic eff ects of the coronavirus pandemic. 

Total assets increased to €1,102.4 million during the fi nancial year, 
as against €1,045.6 million in 2020.

Non-current assets rose from €645.4 million to €655.2 million. 
The rate of coverage of non-current assets (equity plus pension 
provisions divided by non-current assets) amounted to 100.6% 
(2020: 102.3%).

Current assets, which make up  40.6% of total assets, are recog-
nised at €447.2 million (2020: €400.3 million). The increase is 
mainly due to a growth in cash and cash equivalents during the 
fi nancial year to €154.7 million (2020: €134.9 million).

The Group has additional hidden reserves, which primarily take the 
form of property ownership and investments.

Equity capital, at €158.7 million, is above the level of the previous 
year (2020: €126.3 million). The equity ratio amounted to 14.4% 
(2020: 12.1%). In 2021, actuarial profi ts in the Other equity posi-
tions amounting to €6.3 million in 2021 (2020: €–8.4 million) were 
off set, thereby aff ecting the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
In the 2021 fi nancial year, a subordinated registered debenture in 
the amount of €20.0 million was repaid to the Alters- und Hinter-

bliebenen-Versicherung der Technischen Überwachungsvereine 
-VvaG- (AHV). 

In the 2021 reporting period, €784.1 million (2020: €777.4 million) 
of plan assets were netted against pension provisions. The propor-
tion of the provisions for current and future pension obligations 
that is not covered by plan assets amounted to €500.4 million 
(2020: €531.4 million). As a result of additional payments into the 
reinsurance scheme in 2021, the coverage gap from pensions was 
further reduced compared to the previous year. 

Further information on the asset situation can be found in the 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, under No. 5, “Con-
solidated Balance Sheet disclosures”. 

Financial status
The positive net fi nancial position of the TÜV NORD GROUP 
improved signifi cantly year on year due to the measures taken to 
ensure liquidity- and opportunity-oriented management during the 
pandemic, despite the ongoingly high level of investment. As of 
31 December 2021, the TÜV NORD GROUP remained free of debt 
and was on a solid fi nancial footing. This has enabled targeted 
investments to be made in innovation, training and sustainability 
of services, even during the pandemic. The implementation of 
appropriate measures maintained the Group’s ability to act, and no 
recourse to credit was necessary. 

The most important objectives of the conservative fi nancial policy 
the remain of the further maintenance of the Group’s good rating 
and the safeguarding of an adequate level of liquidity for the 
centralised fi nancing of the subsidiary companies by the Group, and 
these objectives were consistently pursued as in previous years.

In addition, it is fundamental to the Group’s fi nancial strategy to 
ensure a broad measure of fi nancial fl exibility along with transpar-
ent risk and opportunity management. 

The Deutsche Bundesbank, having investigated important fi nan-
cial metrics such as profi tability, internal fi nancing strength, 
liquidity and capital structure on the basis of audited fi nancial 
statements, has for the fi fteenth year in succession awarded the 
TÜV NORD GROUP the accolade of eligibility for rediscount with 
the central bank. The Group has thus belonged to the group of 

companies whose credit liabilities can be used by commercial 
banks as collateral with regard to the Deutsche Bundesbank since 
the very fi rst assessment in 2007. This continues to guarantee the 
TÜV NORD GROUP a preferential position in terms of access to 
fi nancial resources. 

The cash fl ow (see “Consolidated Cash Flow Statement”) amounted 
to €86.8 million and was essentially applied to investments in 
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, and to the reinsur-
ance of pension liabilities. Capital expenditure excluding corporate 
acquisitions amounted to €58.7 million in the fi nancial year as 
against €56.9 million in 2020. Of this, €49.6 million was invested 
by the German companies, and €9.1 million abroad. The focus was 
on the construction of real estate in Essen, physical investment in 
testing equipment, vehicle fl eets and computer hardware and soft-
ware. No material capital expenditure obligations existed as of the 
reporting date. The Group spent a total of €4.2 million on increasing 
a shareholding. 

The Group’s net fi nancial position amounted to €121.1 million at the 
end of the fi nancial year, a fi gure which, despite the pandemic and a 
high level of investment, exceeded that of the previous year (2020: 
€82.6 million).

The syndicated loan in the amount of €125.0 million, which expires 
in December 2023, was extended early for one year. It had not been 
used as of 31 December 2021.

In 2021, the Group was in the position to meet its payment obliga-
tions at all times.

Overall situation
As a result of the macroeconomic situation and the ongoing 
corona virus pandemic, the TÜV NORD GROUP was once again 
confronted with major challenges in the fi nancial year. As in the 
previous year, the Group has thus far managed the eff ects 
of the crisis well, and the business trend has been a pleasing 
one. The earnings, asset and fi nancial position has developed 
positively.

In the future, as before, every eff ort will be made to optimise the 
company’s position in terms of its earnings, assets and fi nances. 
The TÜV NORD GROUP assumes a stable earnings, asset and 
fi nancial position for the future, too.

N O N - F I N A N C I A L  P E R F O R M A N C E  I N D I C AT O R S

Innovation report
Innovations are key growth drivers and will serve to secure long-
term sustainability and extend the international competitiveness of 
the TÜV NORD GROUP. 

Opportunities continue to be associated primarily with innovative 
services in the individual business units, for example, automation 
and digitalisation. The TÜV NORD GROUP is driving the innovation 
process by investing in new technologies. Active innovation man-
agement is an element of the company’s development. 

Despite the ongoing coronavirus pandemic, the TÜV NORD GROUP 
continued on its successful path of innovation development. More-
over, the demand for new services has increased due to the pan-
demic. These include, for example, new consulting services for the 
implementation of occupational health and safety standards and 
consulting services for the expansion of digital networks. With the 
launch of the multi-year initiative entitled “#GoNORD – Innovation 
by Everyone”, formats are now available for the active participation 
of all employees in the innovation context. 

One of the priorities of #GoNORD was the piloting of a global 
innovation platform with almost 2,000 employees. As a result, all 
the business units successfully used targeted campaigns to moti-
vate employees throughout the Group to contribute their ideas to 
strategic innovation topics, including sustainability. Furthermore, 
employees can now develop their own ideas with targeted support 
from internal and external mentors and develop them to the point 
at which they can be implemented. #GoNORD also includes a 
comprehensive range of learning and training opportunities for all 
employees. 

#GoNORD is also intended to increase the breadth of innovation 
within the Group by reinforcing and combining the expertise and 
innovative strength of the individual business units through the 
establishment of knowledge networks. 

Employees
Long-term security for our customers is the goal of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP. Knowledge is the key to achieving it. This 
is why the Group is building on the knowledge of its employees 
and consciously investing in training. Expenditure amounting 
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Write-downs decreased to €68.0 million (2020: €77.3 million); the 
previous year's fi gure also included a write-down of the goodwill of 
the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit in the amount of 
€10.5 million.

Further information on expenses can be found in the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements, under No. 3, “Consolidated Income 
Statement disclosures”.

Earnings before tax (EBT) amounted to €73.3 million and were thus 
€41.4 million above the previous year’s result of €31.9 million. The 
Industrial Services, Mobility, Aerospace and IT business units contri-
buted to the positive result of the Group. 

Net profi t, at €45.5 million, exceeded that of the previous year (2020: 
€13.5 million).

Assets 
The TÜV NORD GROUP balance sheet reveals a sound structure, 
notwithstanding the economic eff ects of the coronavirus pandemic. 

Total assets increased to €1,102.4 million during the fi nancial year, 
as against €1,045.6 million in 2020.

Non-current assets rose from €645.4 million to €655.2 million. 
The rate of coverage of non-current assets (equity plus pension 
provisions divided by non-current assets) amounted to 100.6% 
(2020: 102.3%).

Current assets, which make up  40.6% of total assets, are recog-
nised at €447.2 million (2020: €400.3 million). The increase is 
mainly due to a growth in cash and cash equivalents during the 
fi nancial year to €154.7 million (2020: €134.9 million).

The Group has additional hidden reserves, which primarily take the 
form of property ownership and investments.

Equity capital, at €158.7 million, is above the level of the previous 
year (2020: €126.3 million). The equity ratio amounted to 14.4% 
(2020: 12.1%). In 2021, actuarial profi ts in the Other equity posi-
tions amounting to €6.3 million in 2021 (2020: €–8.4 million) were 
off set, thereby aff ecting the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
In the 2021 fi nancial year, a subordinated registered debenture in 
the amount of €20.0 million was repaid to the Alters- und Hinter-

bliebenen-Versicherung der Technischen Überwachungsvereine 
-VvaG- (AHV). 

In the 2021 reporting period, €784.1 million (2020: €777.4 million) 
of plan assets were netted against pension provisions. The propor-
tion of the provisions for current and future pension obligations 
that is not covered by plan assets amounted to €500.4 million 
(2020: €531.4 million). As a result of additional payments into the 
reinsurance scheme in 2021, the coverage gap from pensions was 
further reduced compared to the previous year. 

Further information on the asset situation can be found in the 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, under No. 5, “Con-
solidated Balance Sheet disclosures”. 

Financial status
The positive net fi nancial position of the TÜV NORD GROUP 
improved signifi cantly year on year due to the measures taken to 
ensure liquidity- and opportunity-oriented management during the 
pandemic, despite the ongoingly high level of investment. As of 
31 December 2021, the TÜV NORD GROUP remained free of debt 
and was on a solid fi nancial footing. This has enabled targeted 
investments to be made in innovation, training and sustainability 
of services, even during the pandemic. The implementation of 
appropriate measures maintained the Group’s ability to act, and no 
recourse to credit was necessary. 

The most important objectives of the conservative fi nancial policy 
the remain of the further maintenance of the Group’s good rating 
and the safeguarding of an adequate level of liquidity for the 
centralised fi nancing of the subsidiary companies by the Group, and 
these objectives were consistently pursued as in previous years.

In addition, it is fundamental to the Group’s fi nancial strategy to 
ensure a broad measure of fi nancial fl exibility along with transpar-
ent risk and opportunity management. 

The Deutsche Bundesbank, having investigated important fi nan-
cial metrics such as profi tability, internal fi nancing strength, 
liquidity and capital structure on the basis of audited fi nancial 
statements, has for the fi fteenth year in succession awarded the 
TÜV NORD GROUP the accolade of eligibility for rediscount with 
the central bank. The Group has thus belonged to the group of 

companies whose credit liabilities can be used by commercial 
banks as collateral with regard to the Deutsche Bundesbank since 
the very fi rst assessment in 2007. This continues to guarantee the 
TÜV NORD GROUP a preferential position in terms of access to 
fi nancial resources. 

The cash fl ow (see “Consolidated Cash Flow Statement”) amounted 
to €86.8 million and was essentially applied to investments in 
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, and to the reinsur-
ance of pension liabilities. Capital expenditure excluding corporate 
acquisitions amounted to €58.7 million in the fi nancial year as 
against €56.9 million in 2020. Of this, €49.6 million was invested 
by the German companies, and €9.1 million abroad. The focus was 
on the construction of real estate in Essen, physical investment in 
testing equipment, vehicle fl eets and computer hardware and soft-
ware. No material capital expenditure obligations existed as of the 
reporting date. The Group spent a total of €4.2 million on increasing 
a shareholding. 

The Group’s net fi nancial position amounted to €121.1 million at the 
end of the fi nancial year, a fi gure which, despite the pandemic and a 
high level of investment, exceeded that of the previous year (2020: 
€82.6 million).

The syndicated loan in the amount of €125.0 million, which expires 
in December 2023, was extended early for one year. It had not been 
used as of 31 December 2021.

In 2021, the Group was in the position to meet its payment obliga-
tions at all times.

Overall situation
As a result of the macroeconomic situation and the ongoing 
corona virus pandemic, the TÜV NORD GROUP was once again 
confronted with major challenges in the fi nancial year. As in the 
previous year, the Group has thus far managed the eff ects 
of the crisis well, and the business trend has been a pleasing 
one. The earnings, asset and fi nancial position has developed 
positively.

In the future, as before, every eff ort will be made to optimise the 
company’s position in terms of its earnings, assets and fi nances. 
The TÜV NORD GROUP assumes a stable earnings, asset and 
fi nancial position for the future, too.

N O N - F I N A N C I A L  P E R F O R M A N C E  I N D I C AT O R S

Innovation report
Innovations are key growth drivers and will serve to secure long-
term sustainability and extend the international competitiveness of 
the TÜV NORD GROUP. 

Opportunities continue to be associated primarily with innovative 
services in the individual business units, for example, automation 
and digitalisation. The TÜV NORD GROUP is driving the innovation 
process by investing in new technologies. Active innovation man-
agement is an element of the company’s development. 

Despite the ongoing coronavirus pandemic, the TÜV NORD GROUP 
continued on its successful path of innovation development. More-
over, the demand for new services has increased due to the pan-
demic. These include, for example, new consulting services for the 
implementation of occupational health and safety standards and 
consulting services for the expansion of digital networks. With the 
launch of the multi-year initiative entitled “#GoNORD – Innovation 
by Everyone”, formats are now available for the active participation 
of all employees in the innovation context. 

One of the priorities of #GoNORD was the piloting of a global 
innovation platform with almost 2,000 employees. As a result, all 
the business units successfully used targeted campaigns to moti-
vate employees throughout the Group to contribute their ideas to 
strategic innovation topics, including sustainability. Furthermore, 
employees can now develop their own ideas with targeted support 
from internal and external mentors and develop them to the point 
at which they can be implemented. #GoNORD also includes a 
comprehensive range of learning and training opportunities for all 
employees. 

#GoNORD is also intended to increase the breadth of innovation 
within the Group by reinforcing and combining the expertise and 
innovative strength of the individual business units through the 
establishment of knowledge networks. 

Employees
Long-term security for our customers is the goal of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP. Knowledge is the key to achieving it. This 
is why the Group is building on the knowledge of its employees 
and consciously investing in training. Expenditure amounting 
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to €8.1 million was incurred in 2021 for the use of internal and 
external training services (2020: €6.5 million). 

Individual working time arrangements – for instance, to meet 
childcare needs or to allow employees to look after relatives – 
changes of workplace and an extensive programme of health care 
are an everyday reality in the TÜV NORD GROUP. A good work-
life balance is in reach for all employees. Loyalty and security are 
fundamental to the relationship between employer and employees. 

Despite all the diffi  culties, the coronavirus pandemic has made 
the Group more innovative, more focused, stronger and more 
sustainable. This is also confi rmed by the Group-wide employee 
survey conducted in 2021. 

The TÜV NORD GROUP is committed to a corporate culture in 
which all individuals are treated with appreciation and fairness 
and everyone has equal opportunities and possibilities to contrib-
ute to the company’s success. The fact that diversity is practised 
rather than just preached is shown by the outstanding ranking 
gained by our participation in the Diversity Challenge in 2021. 

The brands of the TÜV NORD GROUP are attracting additional 
staff  around the world. As of 31 December 2021, the domestic 
and foreign companies of the TÜV NORD GROUP employed an 
average of 11,959 staff  (converted to full-time equivalent) in com-
parison to 11,658 in the previous year. 8,109 employees work in 
Germany. The number of employees abroad increased in 2021 to 
3,850. The largest business unit is Industrial Services, with 6,461 
employees in Germany and abroad, followed by the Mobility busi-
ness unit with 2,801 employees. 

On the sampling date of 31 December 2021 the absolute number 
of employees was 14,253. The proportion of women working in 
the Group is 30% (2020: 29%).

The pandemic has once again placed major demands on both em-
ployees and managers over the past year. The cohesion, mutual 
understanding and, above all, willingness of the Group's employ-
ees to work hard contributed signifi cantly to the fact that the 
Group came through the year largely unscathed, both at home 
and abroad. The Board of Management and the Group Executive 
Committee would like to thank all the staff , the company manag-
ers, and the employee representatives.

O U T L O O K ,  O P P O R T U N I T Y  A N D  R I S K  R E P O R T

Outlook
In its January 2022 forecast, the International Monetary Fund 
(IMF) expects global economic output to grow by 4.4% in 2022. 
This is a reduction of half a percentage point compared to the 
autumn forecast. The reasons for this are restrictions on mobility, 
border closures and health consequences of the spread of the 
omicron variant of coronavirus. However, the reasons cited vary 
greatly from country to country. This means that the global upturn 
has continued since 2021, albeit with weakening momentum. 

The loss of momentum compared to 2021 is also evident in the 
eurozone, where growth is still forecast to be 3.9%. Growth in the 
USA is also expected to decline to 4.0%, 1.2 percentage points low-
er than forecast in the autumn. The two major Asian economies are 
split down the middle: while India is still expected to show a strong 
growth rate of 9.0% in 2022, growth in China will weaken signif-
icantly. For 2022, the IMF expects growth of only 4.8%, which is 
well below the 8.1% recorded in the previous year and represents a 
further reduction of 0.8 percentage points compared to the autumn 
forecast. Reasons for this include disruptions in house building, 
which marked the prelude to this broader economic slowdown. In 
the light of a strict zero-COVID strategy which resulted in recurring 
constraints on mobility and worsening prospects for employment 
in the construction sector, private consumption is also likely to be 
lower than expected. This means that China is no longer the stand-
out growth driver of the global economy that it has been for the 
past three decades. The reversal of the growth trend expected for 
Germany in 2022 has once again been set back. While the IMF’s 
autumn forecast for 2022 still assumed a robust growth rate of 
4.6%, the outlook for 2022 has been scaled down by 0.8 percent to 
3.8%. This is in line with the growth forecasts for 2022 of German 
economic research institutes. The reasons for the slowdown in the 
economic sectors vary. For instance, the fourth wave of coronavi-
rus has halted the recovery of the service sector, and the trade and 
hospitality sectors are also suff ering under the restrictions. In the 
manufacturing sector, it is the ongoing distortions in international 
supply chains in particular which are hampering the upswing. 

The growth driver in the global TIC market in 2022 will once again 
be the Asia-Pacifi c region, whose 5.5% growth rate will drive the 
overall global fi gure of 4.3%. Europe anticipates growth of over 
4.0% and is in line with the global trend. In absolute terms, the 

value of the TIC market is estimated at $215 billion in 2022. 25% of 
the market, or $54 billion, is accounted for by Europe. 

For the 2022 reporting period, the TÜV NORD GROUP thus expects 
a positive development in terms of the performance indicators. 
However, the key ratios will continue to be impacted in 2022 by 
the eff ects of the coronavirus pandemic, the planned expansion of 
the workforce, age-related employee turnover and future invest-
ments in SAP and digitalisation projects.

Revenue is expected to rise to slightly above 2021 levels. 

For the 2022 reporting period, stable earnings (EBIT) at the level 
of 2021 are expected. Moreover, all business units are once again 
planning to contribute positively to overall earnings.

For the 2022 reporting period, the Industrial Services business 
unit forecasts a slight growth in revenue in its traditional business 
segments, both in Germany and in other European countries. In the 
2022 reporting period, earnings will be restrained primarily by a 
growth in staff  numbers and expenses in connection with SAP and 
digitalisation projects and will decrease signifi cantly compared to 
2021. Medium-term planning assumes that earnings will rise again.

The Mobility business unit anticipates a moderate increase in 
revenue in 2022. Earnings are expected to decline slightly in 2022 
due to increased staff  numbers and expenses in connection with 
SAP and digitalisation projects. In the following years, however, 
earnings are expected to rise again. An increase in revenue fi gures 
for periodic vehicle inspections and exhaust gas tests, general price 
increases, the expansion of the partner organisation, growth in the 
homologation fi eld and the digitalisation and further development 
of services are expected to make a signifi cant contribution to the 
planned positive development. 

In 2022, it is assumed that the Engineering and  Natural Resources 
business unit will see increased demand in the areas of infrastruc-
ture, plant engineering, and plant and product testing at home and 
the further lifting of travel restrictions abroad. Revenue is forecast 
to rise signifi cantly. The majority of the business segments will con-
tribute to the signifi cant increase in earnings in 2022. In growth 
projects, the focus is on revenue support alongside targeted inno-
vations and effi  ciency improvements. At the same time, customer 
access is to be improved with the aid of location concepts.  

The Training business unit expects a signifi cant increase in revenue 
in 2022 to roughly the level before the coronavirus pandemic. 
However, the business unit continues to be impacted by the fallout 
from the pandemic. Despite the relaxation of restrictions, the 
in crease in earnings in the planned year will be dampened in parti-
cular by the ongoing hygiene rules and issues surrounding small 
groups.  There is still a risk that planned events will be postponed 
or cancelled.

The Aerospace business unit plans a moderate increase of revenue 
and earnings for 2022. The business unit is continuing its strategy 
of focusing on engineering services. 

The IT business unit anticipates a slight decline in revenue in 2022. 
In the following years, the plan assumes that revenue will rise. Slight 
increases in earnings are expected, especially in the IT Security 
business segment, which will be further expanded in 2022.

The planned increases in revenue in the Group go hand in hand 
with a scheduled moderate increase in the number of employees. 
A recruitment drive in the course of business expansion will play a 
signifi cant part in this.

The innovation projects identifi ed in the context of the strategy 
should contribute to the organic growth of the Group in the long 
term. These projects will continue in 2022 with the aim of develop-
ing new services.

Risk and opportunity management system 
The business activities of the TÜV NORD GROUP are infl uenced by 
many risks and opportunities. The risk and opportunity manage-
ment system is thus a fundamental element of corporate gover-
nance. The early identifi cation of risks and opportunities and their 
forward-looking management are key success factors for business 
development in the TÜV NORD GROUP. 
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to €8.1 million was incurred in 2021 for the use of internal and 
external training services (2020: €6.5 million). 

Individual working time arrangements – for instance, to meet 
childcare needs or to allow employees to look after relatives – 
changes of workplace and an extensive programme of health care 
are an everyday reality in the TÜV NORD GROUP. A good work-
life balance is in reach for all employees. Loyalty and security are 
fundamental to the relationship between employer and employees. 

Despite all the diffi  culties, the coronavirus pandemic has made 
the Group more innovative, more focused, stronger and more 
sustainable. This is also confi rmed by the Group-wide employee 
survey conducted in 2021. 

The TÜV NORD GROUP is committed to a corporate culture in 
which all individuals are treated with appreciation and fairness 
and everyone has equal opportunities and possibilities to contrib-
ute to the company’s success. The fact that diversity is practised 
rather than just preached is shown by the outstanding ranking 
gained by our participation in the Diversity Challenge in 2021. 

The brands of the TÜV NORD GROUP are attracting additional 
staff  around the world. As of 31 December 2021, the domestic 
and foreign companies of the TÜV NORD GROUP employed an 
average of 11,959 staff  (converted to full-time equivalent) in com-
parison to 11,658 in the previous year. 8,109 employees work in 
Germany. The number of employees abroad increased in 2021 to 
3,850. The largest business unit is Industrial Services, with 6,461 
employees in Germany and abroad, followed by the Mobility busi-
ness unit with 2,801 employees. 

On the sampling date of 31 December 2021 the absolute number 
of employees was 14,253. The proportion of women working in 
the Group is 30% (2020: 29%).

The pandemic has once again placed major demands on both em-
ployees and managers over the past year. The cohesion, mutual 
understanding and, above all, willingness of the Group's employ-
ees to work hard contributed signifi cantly to the fact that the 
Group came through the year largely unscathed, both at home 
and abroad. The Board of Management and the Group Executive 
Committee would like to thank all the staff , the company manag-
ers, and the employee representatives.

O U T L O O K ,  O P P O R T U N I T Y  A N D  R I S K  R E P O R T

Outlook
In its January 2022 forecast, the International Monetary Fund 
(IMF) expects global economic output to grow by 4.4% in 2022. 
This is a reduction of half a percentage point compared to the 
autumn forecast. The reasons for this are restrictions on mobility, 
border closures and health consequences of the spread of the 
omicron variant of coronavirus. However, the reasons cited vary 
greatly from country to country. This means that the global upturn 
has continued since 2021, albeit with weakening momentum. 

The loss of momentum compared to 2021 is also evident in the 
eurozone, where growth is still forecast to be 3.9%. Growth in the 
USA is also expected to decline to 4.0%, 1.2 percentage points low-
er than forecast in the autumn. The two major Asian economies are 
split down the middle: while India is still expected to show a strong 
growth rate of 9.0% in 2022, growth in China will weaken signif-
icantly. For 2022, the IMF expects growth of only 4.8%, which is 
well below the 8.1% recorded in the previous year and represents a 
further reduction of 0.8 percentage points compared to the autumn 
forecast. Reasons for this include disruptions in house building, 
which marked the prelude to this broader economic slowdown. In 
the light of a strict zero-COVID strategy which resulted in recurring 
constraints on mobility and worsening prospects for employment 
in the construction sector, private consumption is also likely to be 
lower than expected. This means that China is no longer the stand-
out growth driver of the global economy that it has been for the 
past three decades. The reversal of the growth trend expected for 
Germany in 2022 has once again been set back. While the IMF’s 
autumn forecast for 2022 still assumed a robust growth rate of 
4.6%, the outlook for 2022 has been scaled down by 0.8 percent to 
3.8%. This is in line with the growth forecasts for 2022 of German 
economic research institutes. The reasons for the slowdown in the 
economic sectors vary. For instance, the fourth wave of coronavi-
rus has halted the recovery of the service sector, and the trade and 
hospitality sectors are also suff ering under the restrictions. In the 
manufacturing sector, it is the ongoing distortions in international 
supply chains in particular which are hampering the upswing. 

The growth driver in the global TIC market in 2022 will once again 
be the Asia-Pacifi c region, whose 5.5% growth rate will drive the 
overall global fi gure of 4.3%. Europe anticipates growth of over 
4.0% and is in line with the global trend. In absolute terms, the 

value of the TIC market is estimated at $215 billion in 2022. 25% of 
the market, or $54 billion, is accounted for by Europe. 

For the 2022 reporting period, the TÜV NORD GROUP thus expects 
a positive development in terms of the performance indicators. 
However, the key ratios will continue to be impacted in 2022 by 
the eff ects of the coronavirus pandemic, the planned expansion of 
the workforce, age-related employee turnover and future invest-
ments in SAP and digitalisation projects.

Revenue is expected to rise to slightly above 2021 levels. 

For the 2022 reporting period, stable earnings (EBIT) at the level 
of 2021 are expected. Moreover, all business units are once again 
planning to contribute positively to overall earnings.

For the 2022 reporting period, the Industrial Services business 
unit forecasts a slight growth in revenue in its traditional business 
segments, both in Germany and in other European countries. In the 
2022 reporting period, earnings will be restrained primarily by a 
growth in staff  numbers and expenses in connection with SAP and 
digitalisation projects and will decrease signifi cantly compared to 
2021. Medium-term planning assumes that earnings will rise again.

The Mobility business unit anticipates a moderate increase in 
revenue in 2022. Earnings are expected to decline slightly in 2022 
due to increased staff  numbers and expenses in connection with 
SAP and digitalisation projects. In the following years, however, 
earnings are expected to rise again. An increase in revenue fi gures 
for periodic vehicle inspections and exhaust gas tests, general price 
increases, the expansion of the partner organisation, growth in the 
homologation fi eld and the digitalisation and further development 
of services are expected to make a signifi cant contribution to the 
planned positive development. 

In 2022, it is assumed that the Engineering and  Natural Resources 
business unit will see increased demand in the areas of infrastruc-
ture, plant engineering, and plant and product testing at home and 
the further lifting of travel restrictions abroad. Revenue is forecast 
to rise signifi cantly. The majority of the business segments will con-
tribute to the signifi cant increase in earnings in 2022. In growth 
projects, the focus is on revenue support alongside targeted inno-
vations and effi  ciency improvements. At the same time, customer 
access is to be improved with the aid of location concepts.  

The Training business unit expects a signifi cant increase in revenue 
in 2022 to roughly the level before the coronavirus pandemic. 
However, the business unit continues to be impacted by the fallout 
from the pandemic. Despite the relaxation of restrictions, the 
in crease in earnings in the planned year will be dampened in parti-
cular by the ongoing hygiene rules and issues surrounding small 
groups.  There is still a risk that planned events will be postponed 
or cancelled.

The Aerospace business unit plans a moderate increase of revenue 
and earnings for 2022. The business unit is continuing its strategy 
of focusing on engineering services. 

The IT business unit anticipates a slight decline in revenue in 2022. 
In the following years, the plan assumes that revenue will rise. Slight 
increases in earnings are expected, especially in the IT Security 
business segment, which will be further expanded in 2022.

The planned increases in revenue in the Group go hand in hand 
with a scheduled moderate increase in the number of employees. 
A recruitment drive in the course of business expansion will play a 
signifi cant part in this.

The innovation projects identifi ed in the context of the strategy 
should contribute to the organic growth of the Group in the long 
term. These projects will continue in 2022 with the aim of develop-
ing new services.

Risk and opportunity management system 
The business activities of the TÜV NORD GROUP are infl uenced by 
many risks and opportunities. The risk and opportunity manage-
ment system is thus a fundamental element of corporate gover-
nance. The early identifi cation of risks and opportunities and their 
forward-looking management are key success factors for business 
development in the TÜV NORD GROUP. 
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For all companies in which the TÜV NORD GROUP holds the ma-
jority, market and competition data are analysed in the context of 
the risk and opportunity management system. Moreover, effi  cient 
measures to reduce or eliminate risk are introduced. Risks in 
the individual companies are identifi ed using a standardised, IT- 
supported periodic process and classifi ed according to the amount 
of damage and probability of occurrence at the end of each quarter, 
before and after measures (gross and net). In this way, after classi-
fi cation, recommendations for action on risk reduction or elimina-
tion can be developed and implemented. Individual risks will where 
necessary be mitigated through provisions. The possible fi nancial 
impacts of emerging risks can be limited with the aid of the Group’s 
centralised insurance management system. Signifi cant and exist-
ential risks are generally reported on at scheduled intervals, with 
additional ad-hoc reports as and when particular events occur.

The Group Executive Committee, the Board of Management and 
the Supervisory Board are kept informed at regular intervals of 
the current risk situation of the Group and the individual business 
units. This report includes the causes of the risk situation (net) and 
the measures taken in response to it. 

Additionally, the risk management is verifi ed by the corporate audit 
division and external auditors. The results of these audits are also 
reported to the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board.

Risks and opportunities for the TÜV NORD GROUP
The coronavirus pandemic once again aff ected the business of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP in the fi nancial year. Nevertheless, the general 
business situation improved signifi cantly year on year. In contrast, 
the risks and opportunities relevant to the TÜV NORD GROUP did 
not change signifi cantly in the same period compared to the previous 
year. In the 2021 reporting period, however, no risks, including any 
associated with the ongoing pandemic, were identifi ed which might, 
either individually or as a whole, endanger the survival of the Group 
or substantially impair its asset, fi nancial and earnings position. As 
far, as can be seen at present, there are no risks in the foreseeable 
future which might jeopardise the survival of the Group.

Interest rate risks can arise in connection with pension obligations. 
The plan assets intended to fi nance the pension obligations are man-
aged in a fi duciary capacity by the TÜV NORD PENSION TRUST e. V., 

which was founded in 2008. Changes to the actuarial interest rates 
in the valuation of pension obligations can have an impact on the 
cash value of the discounted pension obligations and thus infl uence 
the equity capital and overall earnings. 

Futhermore, the Group is not exposed to any material price, credit 
loss or liquidity risks, or to risks arising from fl uctuations in cash 
fl ow. The Group’s fi nancial assets are invested in such a way that, as 
far as can be seen at present, no material risks exist.

The intensifying competition for qualifi ed personnel is having a deci-
sive infl uence on the achievement of targets. The looming shortage of 
skilled workers due to demographic developments and the poaching 
of employees is being counteracted in the individual business units 
with the deployment of a variety of measures. For instance, targeted 
measures are being implemented to fi ll vacancies with suitable appli-
cants and to secure the loyalty of top performers in the long term. In 
addition, processes are being standardised and digitalised.

The individual business units report the following risks and opportu-
nities: 

Notwithstanding the ongoing coronavirus pandemic, the Industrial 
Services business unit anticipates a fundamentally positive devel-
opment at home and abroad. The trend in infections is currently 
mainly seen as a risk to the international business, especially in the 
south-east Asian region. In Germany, the risks mainly lie in possible 
changes to regulations which might result in the abolition of previ-
ously mandatory inspections and / or a situation in which tests can be 
carried out by less qualifi ed personnel. The off er of new services and 
the internationalisation of existing ones are seen as an opportunity. 
For example, the business unit’s international market presence in the 
fi elds of wind energy, railway technology, food and medical devices 
will be further expanded. 

After the shutdown of the nuclear power plants in Germany, the 
services previously required for the operation of these power plants 
will cease to exist, but there are already long-term orders for services 
related to decommissioning and dismantling and to the disposal of 
radioactive waste. Opportunities presented by national and interna-
tional markets and new technologies are being further developed in a 
targeted manner. 

The risks in the certifi cation business will be contingent on the elimi-
nation of the regulatory or legal basis of individual services. Changes 
in the perception of the value of certifi cations by policymakers and 
society at large may also pose a risk. Appropriate countermeasures 
include sweeping regional and sectoral diversifi cation measures. 
Strategic positioning as a certifi cation partner to globally active 
companies will be an eff ective countermeasure against this risk. The 
accreditation on which the certifi cation business depends is still ex-
posed to risk due to the possibility of individual rule violations, which 
could lead to the withdrawal of accreditations for certain areas. The 
risk of loss of accreditation is countered by a strong accreditation or 
quality management system with eff ective measures (e.g. internal 
auditing). On the other hand, opportunities are presented by invest-
ments in areas of high future relevance, e.g. digitalisation, sustain-
ability, the careful scrutiny of supply chains or the certifi cation of 
medical devices. 

In the coming years, stable development is expected for the Mobility 
business unit, despite the pandemic. The customer-group-oriented 
strategy of the Mobility business unit will lead to the early identifi -
cation through market and competition analyses of sector-specifi c 
risks and changes in market conditions in the segments and regions. 
The consolidation of the market for car dealerships and workshops is 
continuing to exert competitive pressure. With the implementation of 
a Germany-wide market presence with franchise partners, services 
can be provided anywhere in Germany, eff ectively counteracting the 
consequences of the trend of progressive concentration in the car 
dealership and workshop sector and making it possible to exploit the 
resulting opportunities for major orders across the country. 

Electromobility is set to have an impact on the market for homologa-
tions because the variety of models off ered by vehicle manufacturers 
will decline. This may be counterbalanced by increases in demand for 
the approval of alternative drives and connected driving. Technolog-
ical developments in the automotive sector are resulting in changes 
in the requirements that apply to the safety of mobility concepts 
and data security. The increasing complexity of vehicles requires 
the inspections to be supplemented by the testing of software for 
security management purposes. Furthermore, the vehicle valuations 
portfolio presents opportunities in the globally growing used car 
markets. Opportunities in other European countries arising from 
easier market access (similar legal framework conditions, proximity) 
have been identifi ed and are being exploited. No discernible risks for 
the Mobility business unit have arisen out of the exhaust emissions 
scandal that was uncovered in 2015. 

In the long term, opportunities and risks may arise from the dereg-
ulation of driving tests, which is included as a declaration of intent 
in the coalition agreement. The business unit aims to actively help 
mould the changes while clarifying the advantages of the current 
system with regard to neutrality, organisation and quality.  

In the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit, the pan-
demic continues to aff ect existing projects and orders in almost all 
business activities and to delay planned developments. International 
business is suff ering under existing travel restrictions and project 
postponements or suspensions. There are opportunities to expand 
the business through new partnerships and M&A activities. Stable 
development is forecast in the infrastructure and plant construction 
markets, in the natural resources industry and in energy consul t-
ing. Previously acquired major projects and those which are in the 
process of being acquired point to a stable development trend in the 
coming years. 

As a result of the coronavirus pandemic, risks may arise in the 
Training business unit from ongoing hygiene and social distancing 
rules as well as travel restrictions that prevent the implementation of 
face-to-face events such as job speed-dating. The provision of training 
in an alternative digital or hybrid form will mitigate this risk. There 
may also be fewer contracts in the fi eld of publicly funded education. 
Opportunities may arise from the increase in short-time work and 
unemployment and in the nursing and healthcare sector, as the need 
for caregivers is increasing due to demographic trends.

The pandemic continues to have an impact on the Aerospace busi-
ness unit, e.g. through project postponements. Overall, however, the 
opportunities outweigh the risks, as the aeronautical industry is seen 
as a key driver of innovation in Europe, in particular thanks to its 
contributions to the fi ght against climate change and to digitalisation. 
In this context, the business unit has built a photonic design centre 
in Scotland to accelerate the development and commercialisation of 
opto-electronic products. Unmanned aerial vehicles will be another 
important growth area in the aeronautical industry in the short and 
medium term. The new European regulation on the testing and certifi -
cation of unmanned aerial vehicles also presents a great opportunity 
for the business unit, as ALTER TECHNOLOGY TÜV NORD S.A.U. has 
become the fi rst company in Europe to be accredited as a “Notifi ed 
Body” for the conformity assessment of unmanned aerial vehicles. 
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For all companies in which the TÜV NORD GROUP holds the ma-
jority, market and competition data are analysed in the context of 
the risk and opportunity management system. Moreover, effi  cient 
measures to reduce or eliminate risk are introduced. Risks in 
the individual companies are identifi ed using a standardised, IT- 
supported periodic process and classifi ed according to the amount 
of damage and probability of occurrence at the end of each quarter, 
before and after measures (gross and net). In this way, after classi-
fi cation, recommendations for action on risk reduction or elimina-
tion can be developed and implemented. Individual risks will where 
necessary be mitigated through provisions. The possible fi nancial 
impacts of emerging risks can be limited with the aid of the Group’s 
centralised insurance management system. Signifi cant and exist-
ential risks are generally reported on at scheduled intervals, with 
additional ad-hoc reports as and when particular events occur.

The Group Executive Committee, the Board of Management and 
the Supervisory Board are kept informed at regular intervals of 
the current risk situation of the Group and the individual business 
units. This report includes the causes of the risk situation (net) and 
the measures taken in response to it. 

Additionally, the risk management is verifi ed by the corporate audit 
division and external auditors. The results of these audits are also 
reported to the Board of Management and the Supervisory Board.

Risks and opportunities for the TÜV NORD GROUP
The coronavirus pandemic once again aff ected the business of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP in the fi nancial year. Nevertheless, the general 
business situation improved signifi cantly year on year. In contrast, 
the risks and opportunities relevant to the TÜV NORD GROUP did 
not change signifi cantly in the same period compared to the previous 
year. In the 2021 reporting period, however, no risks, including any 
associated with the ongoing pandemic, were identifi ed which might, 
either individually or as a whole, endanger the survival of the Group 
or substantially impair its asset, fi nancial and earnings position. As 
far, as can be seen at present, there are no risks in the foreseeable 
future which might jeopardise the survival of the Group.

Interest rate risks can arise in connection with pension obligations. 
The plan assets intended to fi nance the pension obligations are man-
aged in a fi duciary capacity by the TÜV NORD PENSION TRUST e. V., 

which was founded in 2008. Changes to the actuarial interest rates 
in the valuation of pension obligations can have an impact on the 
cash value of the discounted pension obligations and thus infl uence 
the equity capital and overall earnings. 

Futhermore, the Group is not exposed to any material price, credit 
loss or liquidity risks, or to risks arising from fl uctuations in cash 
fl ow. The Group’s fi nancial assets are invested in such a way that, as 
far as can be seen at present, no material risks exist.

The intensifying competition for qualifi ed personnel is having a deci-
sive infl uence on the achievement of targets. The looming shortage of 
skilled workers due to demographic developments and the poaching 
of employees is being counteracted in the individual business units 
with the deployment of a variety of measures. For instance, targeted 
measures are being implemented to fi ll vacancies with suitable appli-
cants and to secure the loyalty of top performers in the long term. In 
addition, processes are being standardised and digitalised.

The individual business units report the following risks and opportu-
nities: 

Notwithstanding the ongoing coronavirus pandemic, the Industrial 
Services business unit anticipates a fundamentally positive devel-
opment at home and abroad. The trend in infections is currently 
mainly seen as a risk to the international business, especially in the 
south-east Asian region. In Germany, the risks mainly lie in possible 
changes to regulations which might result in the abolition of previ-
ously mandatory inspections and / or a situation in which tests can be 
carried out by less qualifi ed personnel. The off er of new services and 
the internationalisation of existing ones are seen as an opportunity. 
For example, the business unit’s international market presence in the 
fi elds of wind energy, railway technology, food and medical devices 
will be further expanded. 

After the shutdown of the nuclear power plants in Germany, the 
services previously required for the operation of these power plants 
will cease to exist, but there are already long-term orders for services 
related to decommissioning and dismantling and to the disposal of 
radioactive waste. Opportunities presented by national and interna-
tional markets and new technologies are being further developed in a 
targeted manner. 

The risks in the certifi cation business will be contingent on the elimi-
nation of the regulatory or legal basis of individual services. Changes 
in the perception of the value of certifi cations by policymakers and 
society at large may also pose a risk. Appropriate countermeasures 
include sweeping regional and sectoral diversifi cation measures. 
Strategic positioning as a certifi cation partner to globally active 
companies will be an eff ective countermeasure against this risk. The 
accreditation on which the certifi cation business depends is still ex-
posed to risk due to the possibility of individual rule violations, which 
could lead to the withdrawal of accreditations for certain areas. The 
risk of loss of accreditation is countered by a strong accreditation or 
quality management system with eff ective measures (e.g. internal 
auditing). On the other hand, opportunities are presented by invest-
ments in areas of high future relevance, e.g. digitalisation, sustain-
ability, the careful scrutiny of supply chains or the certifi cation of 
medical devices. 

In the coming years, stable development is expected for the Mobility 
business unit, despite the pandemic. The customer-group-oriented 
strategy of the Mobility business unit will lead to the early identifi -
cation through market and competition analyses of sector-specifi c 
risks and changes in market conditions in the segments and regions. 
The consolidation of the market for car dealerships and workshops is 
continuing to exert competitive pressure. With the implementation of 
a Germany-wide market presence with franchise partners, services 
can be provided anywhere in Germany, eff ectively counteracting the 
consequences of the trend of progressive concentration in the car 
dealership and workshop sector and making it possible to exploit the 
resulting opportunities for major orders across the country. 

Electromobility is set to have an impact on the market for homologa-
tions because the variety of models off ered by vehicle manufacturers 
will decline. This may be counterbalanced by increases in demand for 
the approval of alternative drives and connected driving. Technolog-
ical developments in the automotive sector are resulting in changes 
in the requirements that apply to the safety of mobility concepts 
and data security. The increasing complexity of vehicles requires 
the inspections to be supplemented by the testing of software for 
security management purposes. Furthermore, the vehicle valuations 
portfolio presents opportunities in the globally growing used car 
markets. Opportunities in other European countries arising from 
easier market access (similar legal framework conditions, proximity) 
have been identifi ed and are being exploited. No discernible risks for 
the Mobility business unit have arisen out of the exhaust emissions 
scandal that was uncovered in 2015. 

In the long term, opportunities and risks may arise from the dereg-
ulation of driving tests, which is included as a declaration of intent 
in the coalition agreement. The business unit aims to actively help 
mould the changes while clarifying the advantages of the current 
system with regard to neutrality, organisation and quality.  

In the Engineering and Natural Resources business unit, the pan-
demic continues to aff ect existing projects and orders in almost all 
business activities and to delay planned developments. International 
business is suff ering under existing travel restrictions and project 
postponements or suspensions. There are opportunities to expand 
the business through new partnerships and M&A activities. Stable 
development is forecast in the infrastructure and plant construction 
markets, in the natural resources industry and in energy consul t-
ing. Previously acquired major projects and those which are in the 
process of being acquired point to a stable development trend in the 
coming years. 

As a result of the coronavirus pandemic, risks may arise in the 
Training business unit from ongoing hygiene and social distancing 
rules as well as travel restrictions that prevent the implementation of 
face-to-face events such as job speed-dating. The provision of training 
in an alternative digital or hybrid form will mitigate this risk. There 
may also be fewer contracts in the fi eld of publicly funded education. 
Opportunities may arise from the increase in short-time work and 
unemployment and in the nursing and healthcare sector, as the need 
for caregivers is increasing due to demographic trends.

The pandemic continues to have an impact on the Aerospace busi-
ness unit, e.g. through project postponements. Overall, however, the 
opportunities outweigh the risks, as the aeronautical industry is seen 
as a key driver of innovation in Europe, in particular thanks to its 
contributions to the fi ght against climate change and to digitalisation. 
In this context, the business unit has built a photonic design centre 
in Scotland to accelerate the development and commercialisation of 
opto-electronic products. Unmanned aerial vehicles will be another 
important growth area in the aeronautical industry in the short and 
medium term. The new European regulation on the testing and certifi -
cation of unmanned aerial vehicles also presents a great opportunity 
for the business unit, as ALTER TECHNOLOGY TÜV NORD S.A.U. has 
become the fi rst company in Europe to be accredited as a “Notifi ed 
Body” for the conformity assessment of unmanned aerial vehicles. 



100

T Ü V  N O R D  G R O U P   |   A N N U A L  R E P O R T

Despite ongoing restrictions due to the coronavirus pandemic, the 
IT business unit expects to see a fundamentally positive business 
trend at home and abroad in the coming years. There are risks due 
to the pandemic-related postponement of the tender deadlines for 
large-scale master contracts. On the other hand, the pandemic is even 
proving to be driver of digitalisation, automation and connectedness, 
which has further reinforced the ongoing major growth potential of 
the information security and cybersecurity sector. Various national 
and international digital policy initiatives also off er further extensive 
opportunities for testing and consulting services.

C O R P O R AT E  R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y 

Corporate responsibility and sustainability – brought together under 
the term Corporate Responsibility (CR) – are essential pillars of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP’s corporate activities. They shape its actions 
and support the Group’s business. The corporate success of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP is thus intimately linked with the contribution 
the Group companies make to the sustainable development of the 
economy, society and the environment. The TÜV NORD GROUP 
sees the implementation of Corporate Responsibility as a long-term 
project that will lead it into the future. CR continues to be based on 
the Group’s six key values:

 ■ The focus is on customers.
The TÜV NORD GROUP considers it a responsibility to contribute 
to the success of its customers. The Group off ers them services 
of the highest quality and effi  ciency in the context of a sustain-
able portfolio of services and new ideas to help them on their 
way into the future. 

 ■ Employees are the key to success. 
As employers, the TÜV NORD GROUP companies are responsible 
for creating an attractive work environment which communi-
cates their appreciation of their staff . They off er their employees 
the space they need to design a working life which is character-
ised by individual responsibility; they set great store by team-
work, support the reconciliation of work and family and off er 
individual training opportunities. The employees in turn have a 
responsibility to contribute to the success of the company. 

 ■ Integrity is fundamental. 
The TÜV NORD GROUP operates sustainably – in respect of the 
economy, the environment and society. A culture of openness 
is cultivated which is fi rmly rooted in mutual respect and trust. 
Based on a mandatory code of conduct, the TÜV NORD GROUP 
always acts lawfully and transparently in respect of its business 
partners and society. The TÜV NORD GROUP is also responsible 
for taking the impact of its actions on the environment and 
society into account. 

 ■ Sustainability opens up new paths to a shared future. 
The TÜV NORD GROUP pays close attention to the economic, 
environmental and social impacts of its entrepreneurial deci-
sions and actions. Sustainability is an elemental part of its core 
brand – both in the service portfolio and in every other issue 
relating to innovation. At the same time, it is incumbent on 
the TÜV NORD GROUP to continuously reduce its own carbon 
footprint.

 ■ Our diversity opens up new opportunities. 
Diversity and internationality are an enrichment for the business 
units and companies of the Group. The TÜV NORD GROUP 
promotes equal opportunities and respects the individuality of 
each and every person within it. The TÜV NORD GROUP uses 
mixed teams and interdisciplinary work to off er its customers 
tailor-made solutions. 

 ■ The Group has a forward-looking culture of innovation. 
The business units and companies of the TÜV NORD GROUP are 
continuously improving their products and processes, developing 
new ideas for their customers and driving innovation. They see it 
as their responsibility to the future to measure their own services 
against sustainability criteria and requirements and to align 
themselves in the process with the United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals.

Sustainability, as a guiding value of the TÜV NORD GROUP, has 
been part of the mission statement since the beginning of 2020.
The TÜV NORD GROUP has thus recognised the importance of 
this issue to the public and its stakeholders.

The four fi elds of action of the previous CR Strategy (responsi-
ble value creation, staff  orientation, environmental orientation 
and societal orientation) and the associated topics were further 
 developed in 2020 and 2021 and combined to form a new  
CR Strategy 2025. The new consolidated and systemically 

 positioned fi elds of action under the headings of Company, 
Environment and Society comprise a total of 15 consolidated and 
further developed CR topics. In the fi nancial year, the current 
topics were subjected to a materiality analysis, which took into 
account the relevance of these topics from the company’s own 
point of view, while also referring to the stakeholder perspective, 
and the assessment of the economic, ecological and / or social 
impacts of the activities. The 15 CR topics were furnished with 
specifi c objectives, measures and requirements for the Group’s 
business units and summarised in a CR Roadmap, and their 
implementation was prioritised and initiated in line with the level 
of materiality determined in each case. The 2021 CR coverage 
provides information on the degree of compliance with the CR 
targets as of the end of 2021. 

Responsibility for Corporate Responsibility lies with the Group 
Executive Committee. This body is supported, as before, by a 
CR manager whose job it is to coordinate the CR activities. A CR 
steering committee, consisting of the CR coordinators from the 
business units, consults internally on all cross-cutting issues and 
activities. The CR coordinators also support the business unit 
management boards in the execution of their CR responsibilities 
at business unit level. 

In the case of the Group companies, responsibility for CR lies 
with the management of the companies concerned. The manage-
ment offi  cer of the company supports the management in the 
planning, implementation and reporting of CR activities.

Based on the 2018 Corporate Responsibility Report, progress 
reports were published for 2019 and 2020 which provided 
information on the current status of the TÜV NORD GROUP’s 
CR commitment and the progress made. A more comprehensive 
report is being published for 2021, providing information on the 
new CR Strategy 2025, the associated CR Roadmap 2023 and 
the fi rst measures processed and milestones achieved. One of 
the key successes in 2021 in the sustainability fi eld was the Gold 
Medal award presented to the TÜV NORD GROUP by EcoVadis in 
its sustainability rating. 

C O R P O R AT E  G O V E R N A N C E

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board aspire to 
align the management and monitoring of the company with na-
tionally and internationally recognised standards of good and re-
sponsible corporate governance and are guided in their implemen-
tation by the requirements that the German Corporate Governance 
Code places on capital-market-oriented companies.

The governance structure is based on the globally recognised 
Three-Lines-of-Defense (TLoD) governance model, with the inten-
tion of guaranteeing leadership and control aimed at long-term 
value creation. With its three connected lines of defence, the 
fi rst of which is operative management, the second risk man-
agement, controlling, law, compliance etc., and the third internal 
auditing, the TÜV NORD GROUP guarantees the lawfulness of all 
its business processes and organisational structures along with 
the effi  ciency and eff ectiveness of its established internal control 
system (ICS). 

Appropriately conceived and clearly formulated policies and 
regulations, accessible to all staff  at all times via the Intranet, are 
fundamental factors when it comes to ensuring good corporate 
governance. The adoption of corporate policies and a Code of 
Conduct have given employees a concrete framework of guidelines 
for their actions, thus reinforcing good business practices in com-
pliance with the law. Information events and trainings which make 
use of e-learning modules raise awareness among the staff  of the 
signifi cance of compliance-relevant issues.

In accordance with TLoD requirements, the TÜV NORD GROUP 
established its Compliance Management System (CMS) as an 
essential component of corporate governance more than ten years 
ago. 

The aim of the TÜV NORD GROUP’s CMS is to promote compli-
ance with laws and company policies on the basis of a culture of 
integrity, to prevent misconduct and to systematically minimise 
compliance risks. 

In conjunction with the TÜV NORD GROUP’s mission statement 
and values, possible risks are effi  ciently prevented to avert dam-
age to the TÜV NORD GROUP. The CMS also dovetails closely with 
the TÜV NORD GROUP’s Corporate Responsibility (CR) strategy. 
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Despite ongoing restrictions due to the coronavirus pandemic, the 
IT business unit expects to see a fundamentally positive business 
trend at home and abroad in the coming years. There are risks due 
to the pandemic-related postponement of the tender deadlines for 
large-scale master contracts. On the other hand, the pandemic is even 
proving to be driver of digitalisation, automation and connectedness, 
which has further reinforced the ongoing major growth potential of 
the information security and cybersecurity sector. Various national 
and international digital policy initiatives also off er further extensive 
opportunities for testing and consulting services.

C O R P O R AT E  R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y 

Corporate responsibility and sustainability – brought together under 
the term Corporate Responsibility (CR) – are essential pillars of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP’s corporate activities. They shape its actions 
and support the Group’s business. The corporate success of the 
TÜV NORD GROUP is thus intimately linked with the contribution 
the Group companies make to the sustainable development of the 
economy, society and the environment. The TÜV NORD GROUP 
sees the implementation of Corporate Responsibility as a long-term 
project that will lead it into the future. CR continues to be based on 
the Group’s six key values:

 ■ The focus is on customers.
The TÜV NORD GROUP considers it a responsibility to contribute 
to the success of its customers. The Group off ers them services 
of the highest quality and effi  ciency in the context of a sustain-
able portfolio of services and new ideas to help them on their 
way into the future. 

 ■ Employees are the key to success. 
As employers, the TÜV NORD GROUP companies are responsible 
for creating an attractive work environment which communi-
cates their appreciation of their staff . They off er their employees 
the space they need to design a working life which is character-
ised by individual responsibility; they set great store by team-
work, support the reconciliation of work and family and off er 
individual training opportunities. The employees in turn have a 
responsibility to contribute to the success of the company. 

 ■ Integrity is fundamental. 
The TÜV NORD GROUP operates sustainably – in respect of the 
economy, the environment and society. A culture of openness 
is cultivated which is fi rmly rooted in mutual respect and trust. 
Based on a mandatory code of conduct, the TÜV NORD GROUP 
always acts lawfully and transparently in respect of its business 
partners and society. The TÜV NORD GROUP is also responsible 
for taking the impact of its actions on the environment and 
society into account. 

 ■ Sustainability opens up new paths to a shared future. 
The TÜV NORD GROUP pays close attention to the economic, 
environmental and social impacts of its entrepreneurial deci-
sions and actions. Sustainability is an elemental part of its core 
brand – both in the service portfolio and in every other issue 
relating to innovation. At the same time, it is incumbent on 
the TÜV NORD GROUP to continuously reduce its own carbon 
footprint.

 ■ Our diversity opens up new opportunities. 
Diversity and internationality are an enrichment for the business 
units and companies of the Group. The TÜV NORD GROUP 
promotes equal opportunities and respects the individuality of 
each and every person within it. The TÜV NORD GROUP uses 
mixed teams and interdisciplinary work to off er its customers 
tailor-made solutions. 

 ■ The Group has a forward-looking culture of innovation. 
The business units and companies of the TÜV NORD GROUP are 
continuously improving their products and processes, developing 
new ideas for their customers and driving innovation. They see it 
as their responsibility to the future to measure their own services 
against sustainability criteria and requirements and to align 
themselves in the process with the United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals.

Sustainability, as a guiding value of the TÜV NORD GROUP, has 
been part of the mission statement since the beginning of 2020.
The TÜV NORD GROUP has thus recognised the importance of 
this issue to the public and its stakeholders.

The four fi elds of action of the previous CR Strategy (responsi-
ble value creation, staff  orientation, environmental orientation 
and societal orientation) and the associated topics were further 
 developed in 2020 and 2021 and combined to form a new  
CR Strategy 2025. The new consolidated and systemically 

 positioned fi elds of action under the headings of Company, 
Environment and Society comprise a total of 15 consolidated and 
further developed CR topics. In the fi nancial year, the current 
topics were subjected to a materiality analysis, which took into 
account the relevance of these topics from the company’s own 
point of view, while also referring to the stakeholder perspective, 
and the assessment of the economic, ecological and / or social 
impacts of the activities. The 15 CR topics were furnished with 
specifi c objectives, measures and requirements for the Group’s 
business units and summarised in a CR Roadmap, and their 
implementation was prioritised and initiated in line with the level 
of materiality determined in each case. The 2021 CR coverage 
provides information on the degree of compliance with the CR 
targets as of the end of 2021. 

Responsibility for Corporate Responsibility lies with the Group 
Executive Committee. This body is supported, as before, by a 
CR manager whose job it is to coordinate the CR activities. A CR 
steering committee, consisting of the CR coordinators from the 
business units, consults internally on all cross-cutting issues and 
activities. The CR coordinators also support the business unit 
management boards in the execution of their CR responsibilities 
at business unit level. 

In the case of the Group companies, responsibility for CR lies 
with the management of the companies concerned. The manage-
ment offi  cer of the company supports the management in the 
planning, implementation and reporting of CR activities.

Based on the 2018 Corporate Responsibility Report, progress 
reports were published for 2019 and 2020 which provided 
information on the current status of the TÜV NORD GROUP’s 
CR commitment and the progress made. A more comprehensive 
report is being published for 2021, providing information on the 
new CR Strategy 2025, the associated CR Roadmap 2023 and 
the fi rst measures processed and milestones achieved. One of 
the key successes in 2021 in the sustainability fi eld was the Gold 
Medal award presented to the TÜV NORD GROUP by EcoVadis in 
its sustainability rating. 

C O R P O R AT E  G O V E R N A N C E

The Board of Management and the Supervisory Board aspire to 
align the management and monitoring of the company with na-
tionally and internationally recognised standards of good and re-
sponsible corporate governance and are guided in their implemen-
tation by the requirements that the German Corporate Governance 
Code places on capital-market-oriented companies.

The governance structure is based on the globally recognised 
Three-Lines-of-Defense (TLoD) governance model, with the inten-
tion of guaranteeing leadership and control aimed at long-term 
value creation. With its three connected lines of defence, the 
fi rst of which is operative management, the second risk man-
agement, controlling, law, compliance etc., and the third internal 
auditing, the TÜV NORD GROUP guarantees the lawfulness of all 
its business processes and organisational structures along with 
the effi  ciency and eff ectiveness of its established internal control 
system (ICS). 

Appropriately conceived and clearly formulated policies and 
regulations, accessible to all staff  at all times via the Intranet, are 
fundamental factors when it comes to ensuring good corporate 
governance. The adoption of corporate policies and a Code of 
Conduct have given employees a concrete framework of guidelines 
for their actions, thus reinforcing good business practices in com-
pliance with the law. Information events and trainings which make 
use of e-learning modules raise awareness among the staff  of the 
signifi cance of compliance-relevant issues.

In accordance with TLoD requirements, the TÜV NORD GROUP 
established its Compliance Management System (CMS) as an 
essential component of corporate governance more than ten years 
ago. 

The aim of the TÜV NORD GROUP’s CMS is to promote compli-
ance with laws and company policies on the basis of a culture of 
integrity, to prevent misconduct and to systematically minimise 
compliance risks. 

In conjunction with the TÜV NORD GROUP’s mission statement 
and values, possible risks are effi  ciently prevented to avert dam-
age to the TÜV NORD GROUP. The CMS also dovetails closely with 
the TÜV NORD GROUP’s Corporate Responsibility (CR) strategy. 
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Compliance and integrity are important components of this strat-
egy. Compliance measures such as corruption prevention using 
e-learning modules are therefore an integral part of the CR goals. 

The Code of Conduct of the TÜV NORD GROUP is an essential 
part of the CMS. All Group policies and the company’s internal 
regulations and instructions are based on the mission statement 
and the Code of Conduct which sets out the central corporate 
principles for conduct in day-to-day business and interpersonal 
relations in the company, with business partners and customers. 
In addition to respect for law and order, the company’s principles 
also include fairness, transparency, the active practice of diversity, 
and individuality. The Code of Conduct also contains regulations 
on respect for human rights and dealing with confl icts of interest. 
It also prohibits corruption in any form.

The Board of Management has commissioned the central point of 
contact for Compliance to set up and develop an appropriate CMS 
in the TÜV NORD GROUP that is geared to the company’s risk 
profi le. This person is the coordinator and contact point for compli-
ance matters, whistleblower management and the ombudsperson. 
The central point of contact for Compliance regularly updates 
the Board of Management and the Group Executive Committee 
on relevant compliance matters and the status of the CMS in the 
company. A Compliance Committee (CC) controls and monitors 
the implementation and development of the TÜV NORD GROUP’s 
compliance programme.

The TÜV NORD GROUP’s corporate culture is being strengthened 
by a preventive compliance approach which is intended to avert 
potential violations of the rules before they occur by raising 
awareness and educating the workforce. Another signifi cant 
element is risk-oriented evaluation in the development of new 
business models or the acquisition of companies within the scope 
of M&A projects. 

TÜV NORD AG’s CMS has been validated by external auditors on 
the basis of the IDW auditing standard PS 980. An appropriate 
way of implementing and directing the CMS was identifi ed in the 
audit report. A second audit in line with IDW PS 980 is planned 
for 2023.

Membership of the industry association of the TIC Council stipu-
lates the mandatory implementation of the TIC Council Compliance 
Code of Conduct, which must take place annually in the form of an 
“agreed-upon procedure” audit by an independent auditing fi rm. 
The results are reported to the TIC Council and taken into account 
in the further development of the CMS.  

Integrity and rule-compliant behaviour are prerequisites for any 
kind of trust-based cooperation and business relationship. The 
Compliance Code for Suppliers and Business Partners imposes the 
same expectations on third parties. Care is taken in the selection 
of business partners to ensure that these comply with the law and 
follow ethical principles and also impose the same requirements 
on their own supply chains. By signing the agreement on the 
Compliance Code, the business partners undertake to act in the 
spirit of TÜV NORD AG’s compliance standards. These include the 
basic requirements of human rights, equal opportunities and non- 
discrimination, environmental protection, product and occupational 
safety, observance of the law and the elimination of corruption. 

Employees or business partners can use the services of an 
external ombudsperson, who is obliged to observe secrecy and 
anonymity, to fi le reports of violations of laws and internal compa-
ny guidelines or suspected cases of violation. In addition to direct 
contact, the e-mail, telephone and fax reporting channels can be 
used for this purpose, as can a form which is available in several 
languages on the Internet. 

All corporate governance structures and processes are regularly 
reviewed to ensure that they are up to date and, if necessary, 
adapted to meet new requirements. Compliance with the corpo-
rate governance rules and regulations is continually monitored 
by the Internal Audit Department on the basis of risk-orientated 
audit planning. The quality management system implemented by 
the Group’s internal audit department serves to guarantee the 
effi  ciency and eff ectiveness of its auditing work. The eff ectiveness 
of the established processes is regularly confi rmed by an external 
and voluntary audit in accordance with the DIIR (German institute 
of internal auditing) standard. 

Awareness and sensitivity in respect of compliance, both at cor-
porate management level and among the employees, are very well 
developed across the Group. Regular compliance queries submit-
ted by the employees in advance of active business transactions 
and the recommendations for conduct issued in reply represent 
eff ective and effi  cient measures for the prevention of harm. 

Possible compliance risks are systematically mitigated by risk- 
oriented internal process controls, such as a compliance check for 
business partners. The tracking, sanctioning, evaluation and docu-
mentation of breaches of compliance represent an integral part of 
the continuous improvement process. These measures are further 
strengthening the existing compliance structures and permanently 
reinforcing awareness of the mandatory nature of TÜV NORD 
compliance in the Group’s day-to-day business.

S TAT E M E N T  O N  C O R P O R AT E  G O V E R N A N C E

Findings on the promotion of the participation of women 
in leadership positions according to Article 76 (4) and 
Article 111 (5) German Stock Corporation Act1

For TÜV NORD GROUP, diversity and equal opportunities are 
important cornerstones of corporate culture and management.

In December 2020 / January 2021, the Supervisory Board resolved 
on new targets for the share of women in the Board of Manage-
ment and the Supervisory Board for the period ending on 30 June 
2025. The target for the share of women on the Supervisory Board 
is set at 30%; for the Board of Management, it is 33%.

Since 1 January 2021, the share of women on the Board of Manage-
ment has been one third, so the target has thus already been met. 
The share of women on the Supervisory Board is currently 25%.

For each of the fi rst and second tiers of management below the 
Board of Management a target of 30% was set, with a deadline 
for implementation at the end of 30 June 2022. These targets are 
currently being surpassed. 

For the other aff ected companies in the Group, the targets for 
the proportion of women in the Supervisory Board, the Board of 
Management and the next two tiers of management and imple-
mentation deadlines were set on time. Our goal is to continuously 
increase the proportion of women in management positions in the 
Group companies.

1  Pursuant to the act on the equal participation of women and men in managerial positions in 
the private and public sectors, certain companies in Germany are committed to setting targets 
for the proportion of women on their supervisory boards, executive boards and in the 
following two management tiers and to set a date for the achievement of these targets. 

F U R T H E R  I N F O R M AT I O N

TÜV NORD AG is deemed to be directly dependent within the 
meaning of Sec. 17 of the Stock Corporations Act (Aktiengesetz 
– AktG) upon TÜV Nord Holding GmbH & Co. KG of Hamburg 
and TÜV HSA Holding GmbH & Co. KG of Hanover, and indirectly 
dependent upon TÜV Nord e. V. and TÜV Hannover/Sachsen- 
Anhalt e. V. For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2021 and 
in respect of relevant special transactions during the 2021 fi nancial 
year, the Board of Management of TÜV NORD AG has drawn up a 
report pursuant to Sec. 312 AktG regarding relations between the 
company, on the one hand, and TÜV Nord Holding GmbH & Co. KG, 
TÜV HSA Holding GmbH & Co. KG, TÜV Nord e. V., TÜV Hannover/
Sachsen-Anhalt e. V. and the affi  liated companies, on the other. 

This report ends with the following declaration:

“We declare that, in the case of the legal transactions listed in 
the report on relations with affi  liated companies, TÜV NORD AG 
received appropriate consideration for each transaction in accor-
dance with the circumstances known to us at the time in which the 
legal transactions were executed. 

No measures were taken or omitted on the initiative or in the inter-
ests of the dominant enterprise or any enterprise affi  liated with it.”

Hanover, 28 February 2022

TÜV NORD AG

The Board of Management 
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Compliance and integrity are important components of this strat-
egy. Compliance measures such as corruption prevention using 
e-learning modules are therefore an integral part of the CR goals. 

The Code of Conduct of the TÜV NORD GROUP is an essential 
part of the CMS. All Group policies and the company’s internal 
regulations and instructions are based on the mission statement 
and the Code of Conduct which sets out the central corporate 
principles for conduct in day-to-day business and interpersonal 
relations in the company, with business partners and customers. 
In addition to respect for law and order, the company’s principles 
also include fairness, transparency, the active practice of diversity, 
and individuality. The Code of Conduct also contains regulations 
on respect for human rights and dealing with confl icts of interest. 
It also prohibits corruption in any form.

The Board of Management has commissioned the central point of 
contact for Compliance to set up and develop an appropriate CMS 
in the TÜV NORD GROUP that is geared to the company’s risk 
profi le. This person is the coordinator and contact point for compli-
ance matters, whistleblower management and the ombudsperson. 
The central point of contact for Compliance regularly updates 
the Board of Management and the Group Executive Committee 
on relevant compliance matters and the status of the CMS in the 
company. A Compliance Committee (CC) controls and monitors 
the implementation and development of the TÜV NORD GROUP’s 
compliance programme.

The TÜV NORD GROUP’s corporate culture is being strengthened 
by a preventive compliance approach which is intended to avert 
potential violations of the rules before they occur by raising 
awareness and educating the workforce. Another signifi cant 
element is risk-oriented evaluation in the development of new 
business models or the acquisition of companies within the scope 
of M&A projects. 

TÜV NORD AG’s CMS has been validated by external auditors on 
the basis of the IDW auditing standard PS 980. An appropriate 
way of implementing and directing the CMS was identifi ed in the 
audit report. A second audit in line with IDW PS 980 is planned 
for 2023.

Membership of the industry association of the TIC Council stipu-
lates the mandatory implementation of the TIC Council Compliance 
Code of Conduct, which must take place annually in the form of an 
“agreed-upon procedure” audit by an independent auditing fi rm. 
The results are reported to the TIC Council and taken into account 
in the further development of the CMS.  

Integrity and rule-compliant behaviour are prerequisites for any 
kind of trust-based cooperation and business relationship. The 
Compliance Code for Suppliers and Business Partners imposes the 
same expectations on third parties. Care is taken in the selection 
of business partners to ensure that these comply with the law and 
follow ethical principles and also impose the same requirements 
on their own supply chains. By signing the agreement on the 
Compliance Code, the business partners undertake to act in the 
spirit of TÜV NORD AG’s compliance standards. These include the 
basic requirements of human rights, equal opportunities and non- 
discrimination, environmental protection, product and occupational 
safety, observance of the law and the elimination of corruption. 

Employees or business partners can use the services of an 
external ombudsperson, who is obliged to observe secrecy and 
anonymity, to fi le reports of violations of laws and internal compa-
ny guidelines or suspected cases of violation. In addition to direct 
contact, the e-mail, telephone and fax reporting channels can be 
used for this purpose, as can a form which is available in several 
languages on the Internet. 

All corporate governance structures and processes are regularly 
reviewed to ensure that they are up to date and, if necessary, 
adapted to meet new requirements. Compliance with the corpo-
rate governance rules and regulations is continually monitored 
by the Internal Audit Department on the basis of risk-orientated 
audit planning. The quality management system implemented by 
the Group’s internal audit department serves to guarantee the 
effi  ciency and eff ectiveness of its auditing work. The eff ectiveness 
of the established processes is regularly confi rmed by an external 
and voluntary audit in accordance with the DIIR (German institute 
of internal auditing) standard. 

Awareness and sensitivity in respect of compliance, both at cor-
porate management level and among the employees, are very well 
developed across the Group. Regular compliance queries submit-
ted by the employees in advance of active business transactions 
and the recommendations for conduct issued in reply represent 
eff ective and effi  cient measures for the prevention of harm. 

Possible compliance risks are systematically mitigated by risk- 
oriented internal process controls, such as a compliance check for 
business partners. The tracking, sanctioning, evaluation and docu-
mentation of breaches of compliance represent an integral part of 
the continuous improvement process. These measures are further 
strengthening the existing compliance structures and permanently 
reinforcing awareness of the mandatory nature of TÜV NORD 
compliance in the Group’s day-to-day business.

S TAT E M E N T  O N  C O R P O R AT E  G O V E R N A N C E

Findings on the promotion of the participation of women 
in leadership positions according to Article 76 (4) and 
Article 111 (5) German Stock Corporation Act1

For TÜV NORD GROUP, diversity and equal opportunities are 
important cornerstones of corporate culture and management.

In December 2020 / January 2021, the Supervisory Board resolved 
on new targets for the share of women in the Board of Manage-
ment and the Supervisory Board for the period ending on 30 June 
2025. The target for the share of women on the Supervisory Board 
is set at 30%; for the Board of Management, it is 33%.

Since 1 January 2021, the share of women on the Board of Manage-
ment has been one third, so the target has thus already been met. 
The share of women on the Supervisory Board is currently 25%.

For each of the fi rst and second tiers of management below the 
Board of Management a target of 30% was set, with a deadline 
for implementation at the end of 30 June 2022. These targets are 
currently being surpassed. 

For the other aff ected companies in the Group, the targets for 
the proportion of women in the Supervisory Board, the Board of 
Management and the next two tiers of management and imple-
mentation deadlines were set on time. Our goal is to continuously 
increase the proportion of women in management positions in the 
Group companies.

1  Pursuant to the act on the equal participation of women and men in managerial positions in 
the private and public sectors, certain companies in Germany are committed to setting targets 
for the proportion of women on their supervisory boards, executive boards and in the 
following two management tiers and to set a date for the achievement of these targets. 

F U R T H E R  I N F O R M AT I O N

TÜV NORD AG is deemed to be directly dependent within the 
meaning of Sec. 17 of the Stock Corporations Act (Aktiengesetz 
– AktG) upon TÜV Nord Holding GmbH & Co. KG of Hamburg 
and TÜV HSA Holding GmbH & Co. KG of Hanover, and indirectly 
dependent upon TÜV Nord e. V. and TÜV Hannover/Sachsen- 
Anhalt e. V. For the period from 1 January to 31 December 2021 and 
in respect of relevant special transactions during the 2021 fi nancial 
year, the Board of Management of TÜV NORD AG has drawn up a 
report pursuant to Sec. 312 AktG regarding relations between the 
company, on the one hand, and TÜV Nord Holding GmbH & Co. KG, 
TÜV HSA Holding GmbH & Co. KG, TÜV Nord e. V., TÜV Hannover/
Sachsen-Anhalt e. V. and the affi  liated companies, on the other. 

This report ends with the following declaration:

“We declare that, in the case of the legal transactions listed in 
the report on relations with affi  liated companies, TÜV NORD AG 
received appropriate consideration for each transaction in accor-
dance with the circumstances known to us at the time in which the 
legal transactions were executed. 

No measures were taken or omitted on the initiative or in the inter-
ests of the dominant enterprise or any enterprise affi  liated with it.”

Hanover, 28 February 2022

TÜV NORD AG

The Board of Management 
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The complete Consolidated Financial Statements can be found at  
tuev-nord-group.com / en / company / annual-reports-facts-and-figures /  
annual -report-2021

24

Consolidated Income Statement

€k Note 2021 2020

Revenue 3.1. 1,369,252 1,265,649

Other income 3.2. 41,496 39,160

Cost of materials 3.3. –267,149 –236,383

Personnel expense 3.4.   

 a) Wages and salaries  –646,732 –618,349

 b) Social security contributions, post-employment and welfare benefi ts  –143,912 –136,255

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 3.5. –67,967 –77,257

Other expenses 3.6. –210,483 –201,196

Operating profi t  74,505 35,369

Income from investments consolidated at equity  549 –1,961

Income from other equity investments  69 765

Interest income  783 874

Interest expense  –2,407 –2,648

Other fi nancial items  –228 –471

Financial result 3.7. –1,233 –3,441

Earnings before tax (EBT)  73,272 31,928

Taxes on income 3.8. –27,730 –18,405

Consolidated earnings after tax  45,541 13,523

The consolidated earnings after tax are attributable to    

 owners of TÜV NORD AG  41,052 9,880

 non-controlling interests  4,489 3,643
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Consolidated Income Statement

€k Note 2021 2020

Revenue 3.1. 1,369,252 1,265,649

Other income 3.2. 41,496 39,160

Cost of materials 3.3. –267,149 –236,383

Personnel expense 3.4.   

 a) Wages and salaries  –646,732 –618,349

 b) Social security contributions, post-employment and welfare benefi ts  –143,912 –136,255

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 3.5. –67,967 –77,257

Other expenses 3.6. –210,483 –201,196

Operating profi t  74,505 35,369

Income from investments consolidated at equity  549 –1,961

Income from other equity investments  69 765

Interest income  783 874

Interest expense  –2,407 –2,648

Other fi nancial items  –228 –471

Financial result 3.7. –1,233 –3,441

Earnings before tax (EBT)  73,272 31,928

Taxes on income 3.8. –27,730 –18,405

Consolidated earnings after tax  45,541 13,523

The consolidated earnings after tax are attributable to    

 owners of TÜV NORD AG  41,052 9,880

 non-controlling interests  4,489 3,643
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

ASSETS
€k Note 31. 12. 2021 31. 12. 2020

A. Non-Current Assets    

Intangible assets 5.1. 102,695 91,537

Property, plant and equipment 5.2. 259,444 249,408

Rights of use from leases 5.3. 67,482 69,213

At equity consolidated investments 5.4. 4,969 4,924

Other fi nancial assets 5.5. 23,430 26,880

Trade and other receivables 5.7. 433 1,131

Other assets 5.8. 6,469 5,926

Deferred tax assets 3.8. 190,282 196,336

Total Non-Current Assets  655,204 645,355

B. Current Assets    

Inventories 5.6. 4,675 5,320

Trade and other receivables 5.7. 258,140 237,502

Other assets 5.8. 20,338 17,296

Current tax assets  9,283 4,839

Cash and cash equivalents 5.9. 154,650 134,908

Total Current Assets  447,086 399,865

C.  Non-Current Assets Held For Sale 5.10. 124 406

Total ASSETS  1,102,414 1,045,626
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EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
€k Note 31. 12. 2021 31. 12. 2020

A. Equity    

Subscribed capital 5.11. 10,000 10,000

Capital reserves 5.11. 114,413 114,413

Subordinated registered debenture 5.11. 30,000 50,000

Retained earnings 5.11. 311,086 267,449

Other equity items 5.11. –328,633 –335,117

Total Equity of TÜV NORD AG’s owners  136,866 106,745

Non-controlling interests 5.11. 21,869 19,516

Total Equity  158,735 126,261

B. Non-Current Liabilities and Provisions    

Provisions for pensions and other post-employment benefi ts 5.12. 500,388 531,409

Other provisions 5.13. 34,018 30,429

Amounts payable to banks 5.14. 73 102

Liabilities from leases 5.14. 47,340 49,082

Trade and other payables 5.14. 9,621 7,381

Deferred tax liabilities 3.8. 13,252 11,895

Total Non-Current Liabilities and Provisions  604,692 630,298

C. Current Liabilities and Provisions    

Provisions 5.13. 79,399 66,128

Amounts payable to banks 5.14. 56 69

Liabilities from leases 5.14. 21,458 21,008

Trade and other payables 5.14. 230,082 188,954

Current tax liabilities  7,992 12,908

Total Current Liabilities and Provisions  338,987 289,067

Total EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,102,414 1,045,626

27

C O N S O L I D A T E D  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T  2 0 2 1
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Chairman (until 30 June 2021)
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